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1.MESAZH I KRYETARIT TË BORDIT TË DREJTORËVE

Edmond LEKA
Kryetar i Bordit të Drejtorëve 

Është kënaqësi e veçantë të prezantoj Raportin 
Vjetor të Union Bank për vitin 2018. Ky raport 
vjetor paraqet një spektër të plotë të zhvillimeve 
financiare dhe operacionale të vitit së bashku me 
mënyrën si funksionon Banka, si ajo bën biznes, me 
integritet dhe në përputhje me kërkesat ligjore e 
rregullatore në fuqi.  

Viti 2018 ishte një vit shumë i mirë për Bankën. Union Bank vazhdoi edhe këtë 
vit rritjen e saj dyshifrore në asete dhe ROE. Banka performoi më mirë se 
mesatarja e sistemit bankar shqiptar pa i ulur aspak kërkesat e saj të larta për 
shërbim të shkëlqyer klientele, kulturë risku të përgjegjshme dhe procedura të 
qarta operacionale.  

Në emër të Bordit të Drejtorëve të Union Bank falenderoj me gjithë zemër klientët 
e Bankës për besimin që tregojnë ndaj nesh por edhe gjithë stafin e bankës për 
kontributin e tyre të madh. 

Ne presim një vit tjetër  të  suksesshëm në 2019-n. Përveç rritjes natyrale, 
nëpërmjet punës me klientët gjatë vitit 2019, Union Bank do të rritet edhe nga 
përthithja e ICB. Besimi ynë për suksesin e vitit 2019 bazohet në besimin e 
klienteve tanë. Arsyeja e besimit ndaj Union bank qëndron pikerisht tek kujdesi 
dhe puna e mrekullueshme që stafi i bankës, në përditshmërinë e saj, ofron në 
marrëdhëniet me ta.

Gjatë vitit 2018 Union Bank firmosi me Grupin Financiar ICB marrëveshjen 
për blerjen 100% të aksioneve të Bankës Ndërkombëtare Tregtare, 

marrëveshje e cila do të finalizohet gjatë vitit 2019.    
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2.CILËT JEMI NE 

Vizioni Ynë 

Misioni Ynë

Qëllimi ynë strategjik

Kemi plane afatgjata për marrëdhëniet me klientët tanë

...duke ofruar për ta produkte dhe shërbime me çmime konkuruese

...të cilat janë inovative dhe proaktive me ta.

Ne formojmë profesionistë, të trajnuar shumë mirë dhe të motivuar

...të cilët punojnë në ekipe

...duke komunikuar në mënyrë të sinqertë në të gjitha nivelet. 

Ne veprojmë me integritet në të gjitha marrëdhëniet tona.

Ne nuk

- Mashtrojmë klientët tanë;

- Mund të mosrespektojmë punonjësit tanë;

- Shkelim ligjin.

Vizioni i Union Bank është të jetë një bankë e shëndetshme, e qëndrueshme dhe 
fitimprurëse, për aksionerët, klientët dhe punonjësit tanë.

Union Bank ka marrë përsipër të jetë një institucion i qëndrueshëm dhe i fuqishëm 
financiar, lehtësisht i prekshëm nga çdo qytetar dhe biznes shqiptar duke ofruar produkte 
dhe shërbime të një niveli shumë të lartë.
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3.BANKA DHE AKSIONERËT E SAJ

3.1. Historia e Union Bank  

Zhvillimet Kryesore

2006 

- Më 9 Janar 2006, Banka mori liçencën për të zhvilluar aktivitet bankar.
- U hapën 7 degë dhe Banka fillon aktivitetin në Tiranë, Durrës, Elbasan, Fushë Krujë dhe Fier.
- Banka ofron shërbim të plotë për depozita, kredi dhe shërbime pagesash. 

- Union Bank lidh marrëveshjem me BERZH për një linjë kredie në mbështetje të SME-ve.
- Në përgjigje të rritjes së Bankës në madhësi dhe kompleksitet, fillon zbatimi i një strukture 
të re organizative dhe një proces i ri i vlerësimt të performancës.  

- U lançua Karta e Debitit Maestro dhe Karta e kreditit Mastercard. 
- Doli në treg produkti UB-Online, bankingu me internet. 
- Asetet totale të Bankës kalojnë vlerën 100 million EUR.
- BERZH i bashkohet Union Bank si aksioneri i dytë më i madh me 12.5% të aksioneve. 
- Hapen gjashtë degë të reja, përfshi dy degët në qytetet Divjakë dhe Poliçan.

- Programi për Forcimin Institucional (IBP); nisi si një program dyvjeçar për asistencë teknike 
nga BERZH me qëllim forcimin e mëtejshëm të Bankës.
- Me degët e Kavajës dhe Vlorës si dhe 2 degë të reja në Tiranë, rrjeti i degëve arrin 30 degë 
dhe 39 ATM. 
- Eshte viti i parë që Union Bank realizon fitim vjetor.  

- Në Tiranë, Kukës, Berat, Korçë, Shkodër, Pogradec, Lezhë, Lushnjë, Laç dhe Rrogozhinë 
hapen trembëndhjetë degë të reja

2007 

2008 

2009 

2010

2011

 

- Pavarësisht krizës financiare Union Bank realizon rritje të qëndrueshme në asete.
- Banka realizon fitim për të tretin vit radhazi  

Union Bank është liçensuar nga Banka e Shqipërisë në Janar 2006. Union Bank është 
regjistruar si shoqëri aksionere dhe ofron shërbime të shumëllojshme bankare, kryesisht 
për individe dhe kompani  në Republikën e Shqipërisë. Duke filluar nga viti 2014, Union 
Bank zotëron 100% të aksioneve të një kompanie lisingu e cila ka  operuar në Shqipëri që 
nga viti 2005.
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2012
- Asetet totale të Bankës rriten me 20% dhe arrijnë 200 mil EUR.

2013 
- Përfitueshmeria e Bankës rritet pesë herë krahasuar me vitin 2012.
- Banka fillon fazën finale të implementimit të sistemit bankar të përmirësuar. 

2014 
- Union Bank blen 100% të aksioneve të Landeslease sha., një kompani lisingu aktive në 
Shqipëri që në vitin 2005.
- Asetet totale të Bankës rriten me 10% duke arritur 256 mln EUR.

2015
- Vazhdon rritja e qëndrueshme. Union Bank renditet e teta në vend mes 16 bankave 
konkurente. 
- Për të dytin vit radhazi përfitimi i Bankës (pas taksave) stabilizohet mbi 11 RoE.

2016 
- Rritja e fondeve dhe e kredive kalon dyfishin e parametrave të zhvillimit të sistemit. 
- Hapet degë e re në zonën e ish Bllokut.
- Fillon rishikimi i procesit strategjik 10-vjeçar, si udhërrëfyes për të ardhem e Bankës.  

2017 
- Union Bank vazhdon me rritje vjetore dyfish në aseteve dhe në ROE.
- Banka renditet ndër gjashtë bankat më të mira në vend për rritjen e portofolit të 
kredive dhe ndër tre më të mirat në vend për rritjen e fondeve.   
- Union Bank merr nga BERZH një linjë financimi 5 milion € për Programin e Nxitjes 
së Tregtisë. 

2018
- Union Bank firmos marrëveshjen për blerjen e 100% të aksioneve të Bankës 
Ndërkombetare Tregtare sh.a.
- Asetet totale të bankës kalojnë 415 milion EUR. 
- Union Bank vazhdon me rritje vjetore dyshifrore në aseteve dhe në ROE.
- Union Bank firmos me BERZH një marrëveshje për një linjë kredie 6 million €, 
në mbështetje të zbatimit të Projektit GEFF në Shqipëri. 
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3.2.AKSIONERËT E BANKËS

Aksionerët e Union Bank dhe njëkohësisht mbështetësit kryesorë të aktivitetit të  Bankës, 
janë dy institucione financiare dhe disa sipërmarrës të suksesshëm. 

Unioni Financiar Tiranë (UFT)

Banka Europiane për Rindërtim dhe Zhvillim (BERZH)

UFT, aksioneri kryesor i Union Bank është institucioni financiar jobankar më i suksesshëm 
në rajon. UFT përfaqëson Western Union në Shqipëri, Kosovë, Maqedoni dhe Zvicër. UFT 
i ofron një numri shumë të madh klientësh shërbimin e transfertave të parave në mënyre 
të thjeshtë, të shpejtë dhe moderne.

BERZH është aksioneri i dytë më i madh në Union Bank. BERZH investon në mbi 30 shtete 
me shtrirje nga Estonia në Egypt dhe nga Maroku në Mongoli. BERZH mbështet zhvillimin 
e sektorit privat dhe ekonominë e tregut. Nëpërmjet lehtësive financiare dhe duke suportuar 
investime në teknologji të rinovueshme, Banka ka qënë gjithashtu një pioniere për investime 
në energji të rinovueshme. Sot BERZH është pronë e 67 shteteve, Bashkimit Europian dhe 
e Bankës Europiane të Investimeve. Investimi i BERZH në Union Bank mbështet standartet 
e larta të mirëqeverisjes korporative dhe ndihmon Bankën të arrijë synimin e saj për tu 
bërë një nga institucionet fianciare lider në Shqipëri. BERZH përfaqesohet në asamblene 
e përgjithëshme të Union Bank dhe ka një anëtar në bordin e saj të drejtorëve. 
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Z. Edmond Leka

Z. Niko Leka

Z. Leka ka një experiencë të gjërë në aktivitete 
të ndryshme financiare. Ai është President dhe 
Drejtor i Përgjithshëm i Unionit Financiar Tiranë 
(UFT) që nga marsi i vitit 1995 dhe nga viti 2006 
Kryetar i Bordit të Drejtorëve të Union Bank. 
Gjatë periiudhës shtator 2000-2008 z. Leka ka 
qënë Zëvëndes President i Dhomës Amerikane 
të Tregtisë në Shqipëri dhe më parë Kryetar i 
Bordit të AMC. Ai ka qënë gjithashtu Kryetar i 
Bordit të Drejtorëve të Bankës Italo Shqiptare, 
nga marsi 1996-Shkurt 2002 dhe Kryetar i 
Bordit të Fondacionit për Shoqëri të Hapur në 
Shqipëri (Fondacioni Soros) nga Janari 2002 
deri në Mars 2005.

Z. Leka ka një eksperiencë të gjatë dhe solide 
në sektorin financiar, në menaxhim si dhe në 
aktivitetet e biznesit. Aktualisht ai është Drejtor 
Ekzekutiv i Unionit Financiar Tiranë (UFT) dhe 
nga viti 2014 në vitin 2017 ka shërbyer si Kryetar 
i Bordit të Drejtorëve të Landeslease. Më parë 
Z. Leka ka punuar si konsulent dhe anëtar i 
disa organizatave të ndryshme financiare dhe 
manaxhuese. Gjatë periudhës 1994-1995 Z. Leka 
ka qënë Drejtor i Departamentit të Kreditit 
Urban (institucion mikrofinance) në Fondin 
Shqiptar të Zhvillimit dhe gjatë periudhës 
1999-2002 ka shërbyer si Anëtar i Bordit 
Ekzekutiv të Fondit Besa. 
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Bordi i Drejtorëve Edmond LEKA
Kryetar

Melis Ekmen TABOJER
Anëtar

Gazmend KADRIU
Anëtar

Varuzhan PIRANJANI
Anëtar

Sokol MARISHTA
Anëtar

Flutura VEIPI
Anëtar

NIko LEKA
Zv. Kryetar
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3.3. BORDI I DREJTORËVE

Edmond LEKA

(Kryetar i Bordit të Drejtorëve)

Niko LEKA

(Zv. Kryetar i Bordit)

Varuzhan PIRANJANI

Melis Ekmen TABOJER 

Z. Varuzhan Piranjani është anëtar i Bordit të 
Union Bank dhe Kryetar i Komitetit të Auditit 
që nga viti 2005. Ai ka një eksperiencë të gjatë 
në fushën e biznesit, në atë financiare, bankare 
si dhe në fushën e sigurimeve. 
Eksperiencat e mëparshme janë pozicione 
drejtuese në sektorin financiar në kompani 
të ndryshme. Nga 1992-2006, Z. Piranjani ka 
punuar në industrinë e sigurimeve në pozicionin 
e Zv. Drejtorit të Përgjithshëm dhe të Drejtorit 
të Përgjithshem te Institutit të Sigurimeve në 
Shqipëri (INSIG). 
Aktualisht Z. Piranjani është dhe anëtar i Bordit 
të Union Grup dhe të Unionit Financiar Tiranë 
(UFT).

Znj. Ekmen Tabojer është anëtare e Bordit të 
Union Bank që nga Dhjetori 2017. Ajo është Senior 
Banker dhe Business Leader për institucionet 
financiare në Bankën Europiane për Rindërtim 
dhe Zhvillim në Londër.  
Znj. Ekmen Tabojer ka mbi 18 vjet eksperiencë 
në fushën bankare, financare dhe të investimeve 
në rajone të ndryshme të botës përfshi Amerikën 
Latine, Europën dhe Lindjen e Mesme.   
Para BERZH-it ajo ka punuar për Morgan Stanley, 
Londër, Standard Chartered Bank, Londër dhe 
Garanti Bank, Stamboll. 
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Sokol MARISHTA 

Z. Sokol Marishta ka qënë anëtar i Bordit të 
Union Group që nga viti 2015. Ai është Senior 
Leader në Amundi Asset 
Management, me zyra mëmë në Paris, me 1.4 
trilion € asete në manaxhim, renditet e 9-ta më 
e madhja në botë dhe më e madhja në Europë 
për menaxhimin e aseteve. 
  
Z. Marishta ka punuar mbi 20 vite në finance 
dhe në industrinë High Tech. Gjatë viteve 
2000-2009 ai ka qënë Zv. President dhe me 
vonë Senior Zv. President në Bank of America 
Merrill Lynch. Gjatë kësaj kohe Sokoli ka jetuar 
në Chicago, USA.  

Nga 2009-2013 ai ka jetuar në New York, USA 
dhe ka qënë Senior Zv. President i Bank of 
America Merrill Lynch, Bankë e Investimeve. 
Sokoli ka punuar me platforma për tregtinë e 
frekuencave të larta që përdoreshin nga shitja 
për të tregtuar larmi instrumentash financiare 
(marrëveshje financiare, pagesa të rregullta, 
aksione, shkëmbime, etj.) dhe që përfundonin 
në Wall Street dhe në Bursën e Londrës.  

Nga 2014 – 2017, Sokoli iu bashkua Pioneer 
Investments si Drejtor i Zhvillimit Ndërkombëtar
e bazuar në Boston, dhe 2014 dhe më pas në 
Dublin.

Që prej vitit 2017 dhe në vazhdim ai drejton 
globalisht platformen qëndrore të integrimit 
të Amundi - Pioneer (pas blerjes së Pioneer 
Investment me 3.5 mld €) dhe është Drejtor i 
Zhvillimit Ndërkombëtar.

Para kësaj Z. Marishta ka punuar në disa start-up 
të suksesshme, të bazuara në Chicago, Boulder 
Colorado, Santa Clara, SHBA.

Z. Marishta ka një diplomë Master në shkenca 
kompjuterike nga Universiteti i Illinoisit Chicago 
dhe një diplomë Bachelor për Gjeodezi nga 
Universiteti i Tiranës. Aktualisht z. Marishta jeton 
në Dublin, Irlandë
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Flutura VEIPI

Gazmend KADRIU 

(CEO)

Znj.Veipi aktualisht është konsulente dhe 
partnere drejtuese në Arché Consulting, kompani 
që fokusohet në ristrukturimin e kompanive, 
hartimin e strategjive, implementimin dhe 
forcimin e Departamentit Financiar, etj. 
Znj.Veipi sjell me vete një eksperiencë të kalibrit 
ekzekutiv me mbi njëzet vjet eksperiencë në 
fushën bankare, financiare, atë të investimeve 
dhe projekteve në menaxhim strategjik dhe 
lidership. Gjatë viteve 2000-2014 ajo ka punuar 
në bankën e Grupit ProCredit Holding ku ka 
mbajtur disa pozicione kyçe drejtuese përfshi atë 
të Zv. Drejtorit të Përgjithshëm si dhe Anëtare e 
Zëdhënëse e Bordit Drejtues. Eksperiencat dhe 
ekspertizat e tjera të znj. Veipi përfshijnë edhe 
pozicione të tjera të rëndësishme e të nderuara 
si Anëtare e Bordit të Dhomës Amerikane të 
Tregtise dhe Kryetare e Komitetit te “Woman 
Active in Business” në periudhën 2012-2014 si 
dhe Anëtare e Këshillit Ekzekutiv të Shoqatës 
Shqiptare të Bankave në periudhën 2011-2013. 
Znj. Veipi është diplomuar në Financë dhe 
Kontabilitet nga Universiteti i Tiranës në vitin 
2000 si dhe ka mbaruar një MBA në Universitetin 
e Roehampton, Londër. 
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Bordi i Drejtorëve të Union Bank 

Bordi i Drejtorëve

• Integritetit të raporteve financiare të Bankës.
• Përputhshmërinë e Bankës me ligjet dhe rregulloret në fuqi.
• Procesit të përzgjedhjes dhe të performancës së auditoreve të jashtëm.
• Performancës së njësisë së brendshme të auditit. 

• Vendosjen dhe rishikimin e politikës së shpërblimeve në UB në fusha si 
benefitet dhe kompensimet e punonjësve; 

• Politikat dhe Proçedurat që lidhen me punësimin rekrutimin/largimin e 
menaxhimit të lartë të Bankës; 

• Shqyrtimin dhe rishikimin e zhvillimeve të rëndësishme në çështje si Kodi i 
Sjelljes dhe Struktura Organizative e Bankës;

• Politika që asistojnë në tërheqjen, mbajtjen, zëvëndesimin, planifikimin dhe 
zhvillimin e punësimit të punonjësve UB.

Bordi i Union Bank normalisht mblidhet 5 herë në vit për të aprovuar: strategjinë e 
përgjithshme dhe drejtimin e Bankës, për vendime të rëndësishmë organizative, për 
vendime për kredi të rëndësishme si dhe për të monitoruar manaxhimin e Bankës. 
Bordi shqyrton dhe aprovon çdo vit të gjitha procedurat kryesore operacionale të 
Bankës.  

1) Funksioni kryesor i Komitetit të Auditit është të asistojë Bordin e Drejtoreve në 
plotësimin e përgjegjësive në procesin e raportimit financiar dhe monitorimin e 
përputhshmërisë me ligjet dhe rregulloret. Detyrat kryesore të Komitetit të Auditit 
janë të asistojë Bordin e Drejtorëve në supervizimin e:

2) Qëllimi i Komitetit të Burimeve Njerëzore është të asistojë dhe mbështetë 
Bordin e Drejtorëve të Union Bank në përgjegjësitë që Bordi ka lidhur me tema të 
menaxhimit të Burimeve Njerëzore siç janë:

                                ka krijuar Komitetin e Auditit dhe Komitetin e Burimeve 
Njerëzore. 
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3.4.MENAXHIMI I LARTË
Z. Gazmend Kadriu, CEO

Tetovë, Republika e Maqedonisë së Veriut

Znj. Suela Bokshi, Drejtore e Divizionit 
të Operacioneve 
Tiranë, 1973

                                ka krijuar Komitetin e Auditit dhe Komitetin e Burimeve 
Njerëzore. 

Z. Kadriu është CEO dhe Anëtar i Bordit të Union 
Bank që nga fillimi i bankës në vitin 2005.
Z. Kadriu ka një eksperiencë të gjerë dhe 
gjithëpërfshirëse si bankier, rregullator i sistemit 
bankar dhe auditor. Ai ka fituar gjithashtu 
eksperiencë të gjërë si bankier dhe financier 
profesionist në tre vende të rajonit: Maqedoni, 
Kosovë dhe Shqipëri. 
Z. Kadriu është diplomuar në degën Ekonomiks 
në Universitetin e St. Ciril dhe Metodius, 
Shkup. Eksperienca e tij përfshin pësë vite 
në Departamentin e Supervizionit të Bankës 
Kombëtare të Maqedonisë në vitet 1993-1998, 
nga të cilat dy vitet e fundit si Drejtor i 
Departamentit, më tej nga viti 2001 në vitin 
2004 ka vazhduar si Menaxher i Auditit në Ernst 
& Young, në Shkup. Z. Kadriu e ka vazhduar 
karrierën e tij si CEO dhe Anëtar Bordi i New 
Bank of Kosovo.
Gjatë periudhës Dhjetor 2000 – Qershor 2006 
z. Kadriu ka qënë Anëtar i Bordit të Drejtorëve 
dhe i Komitetit të Menaxhimit të Riskut në 
Bankën Tutunska në Shkup dhe nga Dhjetori 
1998 në Mars 2006 Anëtar i Bordit të Trustee 
dhe Zv. Kryetar i Fondacionit për Zhvillimin e 
Ndërmarrjeve në Maqedoni, Shkup.  

Znj. Bokshi shërben si Drejtore e Divizionit të 
Operacioneve në Union Bank që nga korriku 
2005. Znj. Bokshi ka një eksperiencë të gjatë në 
banking. Ajo është diplomuar në Financë Bankë, 
në Universitetin e Tiranës dhe ka kryer një Master 
në Banking dhe Financë për vendet e Europës 
Lindore në “Fondacionin Giordano Del’Amore” 
and CARIPLO Bank, në Milano, Italy.
Znj. Bokshi e filloi karrieren e saj në Bankën 
Kombëtare Tregëtare në vitin 1995. Në 1997 ajo 
punoi në Bankën e Shqiperisë në pozicionin e 
Shefit të Departamentit të Pagesave. Në vitin 
2000 ajo iu bashkua Grupit ProCredit Bank në 
pozicionin e Shefit të Pagesave dhe Thesarit dhe 
më vonë në pozicionin e Shefit të Operacioneve.
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Z. Ardian Petollari, Drejtor i Divizionit 
të Biznesit 
Korçë, 1970

Z. Arten Zikaj, Drejtor i Divizionit të 
Financës 
Tiranë, 1975

Z. Petollari është Drejtor i Divizionit të Biznesit 
në Union Bank që nga Gushti 2007, duke sjellë 
me vete një eksperiencë të larmishme që përfshin 
fushën bankare, zhvillimin e biznesit, eksperiencë 
akademike, etj. 
Z. Petollari është diplomuar në Ekonomi pranë 
Universitetit të Tiranës. Ai ka filluar karrierën 
në bankë pas 5 vitesh eksperiencë në fushën 
akademike dhe asaj të biznesit. Në Bankën 
Kombëtare të Greqisë (NBG), ai ka mbajtur 
pozicionin e Zv. Drejtorit dhe të Manaxherit 
të Degës në Korçë, për më tepër së katër vite. 
Më tej Z. Petollari ka mbajtur pozicione të 
rëndësishme në institucione shtetërore si Zv. 
Drejtor dhe Drejtor i Drejtorisë së Përgjithshme 
të Taksave në vitet 2002-2005, dhe Zv. Ministër 
në Ministrinë e Ekonomisë, në vitin 2005.

Z.Zikaj është diplomuar në Menaxhim Biznesi 
në Fakultetin e Ekonomisë pranë Universitetit 
të Tiranës. Për 7 vjet ai ka punuar në auditim si 
Menaxher në KPMG, si përgjegjës për auditin 
dhe shërbimet konsulente financiare për disa 
industri në Shqipëri dhe Kosovë. Në 2004 ai është 
emëruar Zv.Drejtor i Financave në Procredit Bank, 
Shqipëri; dhe nga 2007 në 2010 ka shërbyer në 
pozicionin e Zv. Drejtorit Ekzekutiv në KEP Trust, 
MFI në Kosovë.  

Z. Zikaj është Drejtor i Divizionit të Financës në 
Union Bank që nga marsi 2011. Ai është gjithashtu 
Anëtar i Bordit të Drejtorëve i kompanisë bijë 
leasing të Bankës dhe që nga Dhjetori 2017 është 
Kryetar i Bordit të Landeslease sh.a.
Z. Zikaj ka eksperiencë të gjërë në kontabilitet 
dhe financë, raportim dhe analizë financiare, në 
audit ndërkombëtar dhe vendor, në institucione 
financiare, në kompani sigurimesh dhe kompani 
tregtare, ekspertizë IFRS, menaxhim risku, 
operacione thesari, etj. Për disa vite ka dhënë 
mësim si lektor part-time në Universitetin e 
Tiranës, Fakulteti i Ekonomisë. 
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Znj.Enkeleda Hasho, Drejtore e Divizionit të 
Kredisë
Berat, 1975
Znj. Hasho është Drejtore e Divizionit të Kredisë 
dhe ju bashkua drejtuesve ekzekutive në vitin 
2012. Duke filluar nga muaji dhjetor 2017, 
Znj.Hasho është gjithashtu Anëtare e Bordit të 
Drejtorëve të kompanisë bijë leasing të Bankës.
Eksperienca e znj. Hasho vjen nga një formim 
i gjatë dhe solid në finance dhe bankë. Para se 
të merrte pozicionin e Drejtores së Kredisë në 
Union Bank, znj. Hasho gjatë viteve 2000-2005 
ka punuar si Drejtore e Departmentit të Kredisë 
në Bankën Ndërkombetare Tregtare (ICB). Znj 
Hasho ka gjithashtu eksperiencë të vlefshme në 
procesin e zhvillimit të strategjisë së kreditimit 
tregtar, bazuar në produktet kreditore. 
Znj.Hasho është diplomuar në degën Administrim 
Biznesi nga Fakulteti i Ekonomisë, Universiteti i 
Tiranës dhe gjithashtu ka një diplomë MBA nga 
Universiteti Fabrefacta Optime (UFO) në Tiranë.
Znj.Hasho është Anëtare e Komitetit të Kredisë 
dhe Administratore e Bankës që nga viti 2006.
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4.SISTEMI BANKAR NË SHQIPËRI

      

Aktivet: 

Gjatë vitit 2018, Sistemi Bankar Shqiptar në përgjithësi, ka paraqitur një performancë solide 
dhe të kënaqshme. Ka operuar dhe vepruar në një zonë ku tregjet financiare kanë treguar 
një normalitet relativ dhe një volum mesatar transaksionesh në rritje. Vazhdoi fenomeni i 
mbiçmimit të monedhës kombëtare, pra LEK-u përkundrejt monedhës EUR, ndërkohë që 
pati një nënçmim të lehtë përkundrejt monedhës USD. Pavarësisht nga kjo, përsa i përket 
kurseve të këmbimit të monedhave kryesore, gjatë periudhës së dytë të vitit ritmet ishin 
më të ulëta në krahasim me atë të gjashtë-mujorit të parë. 

Në fund të muajit Dhjetor 2018 pesha e Sistemit Bankar në lidhje me shifrën totale të 
PBB-së së vendit (Produkti i Brendshem Bruto) rezultoi të jetë 96.8% krahasuar me 99.4% 
në fund të vitit 2017. Aktivet totale në fund të vitit 2018 arritën shumën 1,453.3 miliard Lek 
duke reflektuar një normë të ulët rritjeje përafërsisht prej 0.6%, përkundrejt vitit të kaluar 
që ishte 4.0% dhe 6.8% për vitin 2016. Banka e Shqiperisë ka ndërmarrë hapa të mëtejshëm 
për të forcuar monedhën kombëtare dhe në të njëjtën kohë ka krijuar dhe finalizuar një 
sistem indikatoresh për të parandaluar dhe përballuar pasoja të mundshme negative nga 
çdo grup risku sistematik. Të gjithë mekanizmat e tjerë të aplikuara, kanë vërtetuar që 
kanë favorizuar të gjithë sistemin.

Në tërësi, situata e likuiditetit ka qënë në parametra të pranueshëm dhe niveli i kapitalizimit 
ka treguar një rritje të përgjithshme. Përfitueshmëria ose fitimi u rritën, ndërsa aktiviteti 
financiar tregoi qëndrueshmëri. Një rritje e dukshme u pa dhe nga pozicioni kreditor i 
individëve, ndërkohë që një karakteristikë tjetër po e spikatur ishte dhe rritja e kursimeve 
në monedhë të huaj (si për individet ashtu dhe për bizneset).  
Banka e Shqipërisë vendosi të ulë normën bazë të interesit nga 1.25% në 1.00% në Qershor 
2018.

Vlera totale arriti shifrën 1,453 miliard Lekë, nga ku pjesa më e madhe e rritjes erdhi 
nga investimet në Letrat me Vlerë dhe Obligacionet, paralel me uljen apo reduktimin 
e Fondit të Provigjioneve në vlerën 9 mln Lekë gjatë gjysmës së dytë të vitit. Kreditë 
u rritën me 581.8 miliard Lekë (duke përjashtuar interesin), gjë e cila shënoi një ulje 
vjetore prej rreth 3.4% ose 20 mld Lekë. Procesi i “fshirjeve” të aseteve vazhdoi 
për gjithë periudhën. Norma më e larte e rritjes së Kredisë vazhdon të vijë nga 
segmenti “Retail” në monedhën vendase, ndërkohë që Kreditë e Biznesit në 
monedhën vendase dhe atë të huaj janë zvogëluar duke shkaktuar një tkurrje në 
të gjithë portofolin. Vlera e KJP (kredive jo-performuese) e cila reflekton cilësinë 
e portofolit pësoi një ulje apo reduktim të mëtejshëm deri në nivelin 11.1% nga 13.2% 
në vitin 2017, duke ndjekur një ulje të ndjeshme nga 18.3% në 2016, ndërkohë që 
vlera absolute e KJP (kredive jo-performuese) u reduktua në 64 mld Lekë e cila 
erdhi kryesisht nga bankat e mëdhaja. Volumi i Letrave me Vlere në nivelin 385 
miliardë Lekë tregoi një rritje vjetore prej 7.8%, ndërsa vazhdoi të paraqesë disa 
nga normat përftuese më të ulta në nivele historike.
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Pasivet:

1   Të dhenat janë marrë nga Shoqata Shqiptare e Bankave 

Struktura e Pasiveve të Sektorit Bankar 2018

Aktive të
tjera 4%

Transaksione Letra 
me Vlerë dhe 
Obligacione

26%

Operacione me 
Klientët. 
80.30%

Kapitali aksionar 
11.80%

Thesari dhe 
Transaksione 

Ndërkombetare
6.60%

Pasive të Tjera 
1.30%

Kredi të 
Klientëve
neto 37%

Thesari dhe Transaksione 
Ndërbankare

33%

Fondet e klientëve përbëjnë përafërsisht rreth 81% të aktiveve totale, duke arritur një shifër 
prej Lek 1,16.8 miliardë ose një shtesë absolute prej 64.5 milion ose 5.9%, shumë më lart 
se 1.0% e vitit të mëparshëm. Norma më e lartë e rritjes mbështetet kryesisht nga segmenti 
me rritje më të lartë në monedhë të huaj e shoqëruar me një tendencë drejt llogarive 
rrjedhëse dhe ato të kursimit. Kapitali Total i Aksionereve është afër 171.5 miliardë  duke 
treguar një rritje vjetore prej  16.7% kundrejt 7.3% në 2017 të Aktive totale. Koefiçienti i 
Kapitalit adekuat në fund të vitit 2018 është 18.2%.Fitimi i Vitit për tërë Sistemin Bankar 
arriti në Lek 18.4 miliardë, rreth Lek 3.7 miliardë më ulët se ai i vitit të kaluar, por në nivele 
të pranueshme në krahasim me shifrat e dekadës së kaluar. 

Struktura e Aktiveve të Sektorit Bankar 2018



5.ZHVILLIMI I RRJETIT TË UNION BANK

Tiranë

Lushnjë

Fushë-Krujë

Rrogozhinë

Poliçan

Divjakë

Lezhë

Kukës

Fier

Pogradec

Elbasan

Berat

Korçë

Vlorë

Kavajë

Laç

Shkodër

Durrës

Rrjeti i degëve të Union Bank përbëhet nga 30 degë dhe 39 njësi ATM. Union Bank 
gjithashtu ka përdorur edhe kanale të tjera elektronike. 

Rrjeti përfaqëson kanalin kryesor strategjik të bankës. Kjo gjë i lejon klientët të kenë akses 
në shërbimet e bankës nëpërmjet kanaleve bazë siç janë pagesa në sportele, si edhe 
shërbime tradicionale bankare. Degët Union Bank janë të lokalizuara jo vetëm në Tiranë (11 
degë) por edhe në qytete të tjera të vendit me një shtrirje nga veriu, Shqipëri e mesme dhe 
në një pjesën të qyteteve në jug të vendit.
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DEGA QËNDRORE

Bulevardi “Zogu i I”,
Rr. “Sheshi Ferenc Nopçka”, 
Nd. 5, H. 3, Nj. Bashkiake Nr. 9, 
Tiranë
Tel: +355 4 238 9111

DEGA SHALLVARE

Rr. “Reshit Çollaku”
Pallatet Shallvare 2/18,
Tiranë
Tel: +355 4 238 9169

DEGA  GARDA 

Rr. “Dëshmorët e 4
Shkurtit”, Tiranë
Tel: +355 4 227 4170

DEGA BLLOKU 

Rr. “Ismail Qemali”,
Pallati nr. 32, Shk 1,Tiranë
Tel: +355 4 222 2842

DEGA LANA 

Blv. “Bajram Curri”, 
Rr. “Isuf Elezi”, Nr.8/1,Tiranë
Tel: +355 4 223 6080

DEGA RRUGA E DURRËSIT 

Rruga e Durrësit,
P. 7, Njësia Nr. 1, Tiranë
Tel: +355 4 224 7476

DEGA KINOSTUDIO 

Rruga “Aleksandër Moisiu”,
Përballë ish- Kinostudios, Tiranë
Tel: +355 4 237 9672

DEGA MEDRESE 

Rr. e Dibrës, 
Sheshi “Hafiz Ibrahim Dalliu”, 
Tiranë
Tel: +355 4 237 8655

DEGA ALI DEMI 

Rruga “Ali Demi”
Tiranë
Tel: +355 4 237 9981

DEGA LAPRAKË 

Rruga “Dritan Hoxha”
pallatet Hawai, Laprakë,
Tiranë
Tel: +355 4 241 5460

DEGA KRISTAL 

Rr. “Frang Bardhi”
përballë Qendrës Kristal, 
Tiranë
Tel. +355 4 238 9181

DEGA KAMËZ 

Bulevardi “Blu”, rrethrrotullimi 
Kamëz
Tel: +355 4 720 0483

DEGA  DURRËS 1 

Rruga Tregtare, Durrës
Tel: +355 52 220 340

DEGA  DURRËS 2 

Rruga “9 Maji”, Nr. 14
Durrës
Tel: +355 52 239 378

DEGA  ELBASAN 

Bulevardi “Qemal Stafa”,
Elbasan
Tel: +355 54 245 918

DEGA  KAVAJË 

Lgj. 2, Sallbeg
Blv. Kryesor, Kavajë
Tel: +355 55 243 405

DEGA RROGOZHINË

Lgj. Nr. 2, Pallati 82/3,
Shk.1, Ap. 2, Rrogozhinë
Tel: +355 57 723 204

DEGA FUSHË KRUJË 

Sheshi “George W. Bush”, Fushë-
Krujë
Tel: +355 56 322 895

DEGA LAÇ

Lgj. Nr. 1, Laç
Tel: +355 53 22 025

DEGA LEZHË 

Rr. “Besëlidhja”, Lezhë 
Tel: +355 21 524 641     

DEGA SHKODËR

Lgj. “Qemal Stafa”,
Rr. “13 Dhjetori”, Shkodër
Tel: +355 22 251 500

DEGA KUKËS 

Lgj. Nr. 5, Kukës
Tel: +355 24 224 728

DEGA LUSHNJË

Shëtitorja “Kongresi i Lushnjës”, 
Lushnjë
Tel: +355 35 226 366

AGJENCIA DIVJAKË

Qendër Divjakë, Lushnjë
Tel: +355 37 122 563

DEGA FIER

Sheshi “Fitorja”
Rr. “Kastriot Muço”, Fier
Tel: +355 34 230 258

DEGA BERAT

Rr. “Antipatrea”, 
Lgj. “22 Tetori”, Berat 
Tel: +355 32 238 555

AGJENCIA POLIÇAN

Qendër, Poliçan, Skrapar
Tel: +355 36 824 133

DEGA VLORË

Rr. “Sadik Zotaj”, kryqëzimi me Rr. 
“Veledin Kollozi”,
Vlorë
Tel: +355 33 237 500

DEGA POGRADEC

Lgj. Nr 1, Blv. “Rreshit Çollaku”, 
Pogradec
Tel: +355 83 226 803

DEGA KORÇË

Rr. “Ismail Qemali”, 
Sheshi i Teatrit, Korçë 
Tel: +355 82 254 923
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6.STRUKTURA ORGANIZATIVE DHE ZHVILLIMI I BURIMEVE 
NJERËZORE 

6.1.STRUKTURA ORGANIZATIVE

BRANCH NETWORK

BUSINESS DIVISION OPERATION DIVISION

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

CREDIT DIVISION FINANCE DIVISION

LEGAL ADVISORY 
UNIT

INTERNAL AUDIT

HR DEPT. RISK MANAGEMENT 
DEPT.

MARKETING 
DEPT.

RESP. NETWORK
& SALES ANALYSIS

RESP. NETWORK
MONITORING &
SUPPORT

BUSINESS
DEPT.

RETAIL
DEPT.

COMPLIANCE &
OPS DEPT.

SECURITY
 DEPT.

LOAN 
ADMINISTRATION
DEPT.

AML
DEPT.

ADMINISTRATION
DEPT.

RETAIL CREDIT
RISK DEPT.

BUSINESS CREDIT
RISK DEPT.

LOAN RECOVERY
UNIT 

ACCOUNTING
 DEPT.

REPORTING &
FINCON DEPT.

TREASURY
DEPT. 

PROPERTY 
EVALUATION 
UNIT

CREDIT LEGAL
UNIT

IT DEPT.

PAYMENT &
CARD DEPT.

AUDIT COMITTEE HR COMITTEE
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6.2.ZHVILLIMI I BURIMEVE NJERËZORE 

6.3.TRAJNIMI DHE EDUKIMI 

Në lidhje me procesin e selektimit, rektrutimit dhe promovimit, praktikat e Burimeve 
Njerëzore janë në përputhje të plotë me ligjet aktuale të punës, direktivat dhe rregullat 
qeveritare. Të gjitha politikat dhe aplikimet janë të drejta, jo-diskriminuese si dhe të hapura 
për të dhënë mundësi barazie për të gjithë. Të gjithë punonjësit me kohë të plotë gëzojnë 
një paketë të plotë që përfshin të mira sociale, shëndetësore, apo të mira që lidhen me 
paaftësinë apo pensionin, pushimet dhe festat dhe përfitime të tjera. Këto politika 
reflektojnë aktivitetin e përgjithshëm si biznes të bankës lidhur me strategjinë dhe 
deklaratën e misionit. Planifikimi strategjik i stafit është i strukturuar në mënyrë të tillë që 
të inkurajojë anëtarët ekzistues të organizatës  për tu përpjekur dhe për të maksimizuar 
përpjekjet e tyre për të eksploruar hapat e mëtejshëm në rrugën e tyre drejt karrierës, me 
kusht që ata të përmbushin dhe të shkojnë përtej detyrave aktuale të tyre.
Organizimi i Union Bank, në fund të 2018 arriti një numër total prej 374 anëtarësh, me një 
përbërje prej 145 punonjësish në Degën Qendrore dhe 229 punonjës në rrjetin e degëve.
Promovimi nga brenda është një nga prioritetet më të larta të politikave të Burimeve 
Njerëzore. Përafërsisht 40 punonjës janë promovuar në pozicione më të larta në degë apo 
departamente, duke përfshirë zëvendësimet. Shkalla e qarkullimit për vitin 2018 ishte 
13.8 %.

Gjatë vitit 2018, u zhvilluan rreth 50 seanca trajnimi, 16 të brendshme dhe 34 me 
bashkëveprim të jashtëm. Ata mbuluan disa fusha teknike të punonjësve të Degës 
Qendrore, duke përfshirë suksesin dhe efikasitetin e forcës së shitjes, operacionet dhe 
shërbimin e klientit, analiza financiare, menaxhimin dhe lidershipin, sigurinë, pajtueshmërinë 
dhe pastrimin e parave. Në lidhje me trajnimin dhe edukimin e vazhdueshmëm, janë 
udhëzimet dhe trajnimet Para-Përgatitëse dhe Gjatë-Punës për të gjithë punonjësit, nga 
koha që ata nisin, dhe vazhdon me veprimet dhe aktivitetet e përditshme duke përfituar 
kështu nga procedurat e përcaktuara dhe ekspertizat ekzistuese. 

Kultura organizative e Bankës përfshin një qasje transparente dhe proaktive në lidhje me 
standartet e etikës dhe ato profesionale, duke i prezantuar ato gjatë gjithë mjedisit të 
punës. Në termat e zhvillimit të punësimit dhe trajnimit, Banka mbështet një sjellje efikase 
dhe të përshtatshme duke mbajtur me prioritet objektivat e biznesit, por në të njëjtën 
kohë duke marrë në kosideratë vështirësitë dhe barrierat që vazhdojnë me procesin. Qëllimi 
kryesor fokusohet në aftësitë e shitjeve për stafin e degëve: komunikimin dhe reagimin, 
aftësinë për të kryer shumë detyra në të njëjten kohë, zgjidhjen e problemeve dhe rritjen 
e kapacitetit manaxherial dhe lidershipit në të gjithë Degën Qëndrore.
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6.4.POLITIKAT E SHPERBLIMIT

6.5.RISKU DHE SIGURIA

Komiteti i Burimeve Njerëzore  (HRC) miratohet nga Bordi dhe funksionimi i tij rregullohet 
nga kapitulli per Komitetin e Burimeve Njerezore, ai gjithashtu miraton planin e kompesimit 
si pjese e politikave te Burimeve Njerëzore.

Banka e konsideron këtë aspekt shumë të rëndësishëm e cila ka një ndikim domethënës 
në angazhimin, zotimin dhe sjelljen e punonjësve. Banka zbaton rishikimet e pagës, duke 
përfshirë rishikimin fillestar, rishikimin e promovimit, rishikimin e performancës vjetore, 
me fokus kryesor në rishikimin e performancës me qëllim për të shpërblyer më të mirët. 
Të gjitha veprimet e kompensimit të performancës vijnë nga performanca e përgjithshme 
e Union Bank, performanca e njësisë individuale të biznesit e matur me nivelin e arritjeve 
të objektivave të biznesit si dhe atyre individuale të stafit,e matur me procesin e vlerësimit 
të standarteve.

Perveç një pakete totale shpërblimi dhe mirënjohje që përfshin pagën bazë nga ana tjetër 
bonuset, përfitimet si dhe konpesimet shërbejnë si faktor kyç për punonjësit. Përveç pagës 
bazë si një përbërës i pandryshuar, Banka aplikon bonuse në raste të ndryshme, më 
kryesorja ka te bëjë me arritjen e targetit dhe performancën në shitje. Bonusi vendoset 
sipas situatës së përgjithëshme financjare të bankës, performancës së departamentit të 
biznesit por gjithashtu edhe sipas performancës individuale. Bonusi kryesor është ai i 
fundvitit sipas performancës, shitjet e tremujorit, kategorizimi mujor i bonusit dhe bonusi 
i Vitit të Ri. 

Anëtarët e Bordit Drejtues janë të paguar me një shumë fikse nga pjesëmarrjet në takime. 
Shpërblimi për Menaxhimin Ekzekutiv është i përbërë nga komponentë fiksë dhe të 
ndryshueshëm, bazuar në situatën financiare të Bankës, si dhe përformancës individuale 
të çdo divizioni. 

Union Bank vlerëson dhe çmon sigurinë e punonjësve dhe e bën atë prioritet për të 
garantuar që banka është një vend i sigurt për të punuar dhe për të bashkëvepruar me 
klientët. Ka një përpjekje të vazhdueshme dhe një shfaqje përgjegjësie për ta bërë mjedisin 
e bankës akoma më të sigurt duke rritur kontrollet që mbrojnë informacionet e klientëve.

Një nga qëllimet kryesore të bankës është të sigurojë shëndetin, mirëqenien dhe sigurinë 
e punonjësve të saj në bankë dhe jo vetem kaq. Përsa i përket përfitimeve, Sigurimi i 
Shëndetit i mundësuar nga Sigma Interalbanian VIG është i rinovueshëm çdo vit për 
pothuajse të gjithë stafin duke ofruar disa nga skemat më të mira që mbulojnë trajtimet 
mjekësore në klinika dhe spitale të mirënjohura.
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7.MENAXHIMI I RISKUT

Gjatë aktivitetit të biznesit të saj, Banka përpiqet të sigurojë një balancë optimale dhe të 
kujdesshme midis riskut dhe fitimit të realizuar. Për mundësimin e saj, Bankës i është dashur 
të krijojë një strukturë të përshtatshme për menaxhimin efektiv të të gjithë risqeve duke 
identifikuar, matur, kontrolluar, monitoruar dhe zbutur ngjarjet që mbartin risqe potenciale 
të cilat mund të rezultojnë në humbje ose të pengojnë aftesinë e Bankës për të gjeneruar 
rezultate financiare të qëndrueshme. Banka kryen çdo vit rishikimin e profilit të saj të riskut 
si dhe të politikave dhe të proçedurave përkatëse. 
Mbrojtja e parë e Bankës përkundrejt humbjeve nga çdo lloj risku bëhet e mundur në sajë 
të struktures së saj të kontrollit të brëndshëm si dhe të modelit të saj operacional.
Banka ka përpiluar politika dhe proçedura të përshtatshme për menaxhimin e të gjithë 
risqeve që kanë të bëjnë me çdo linjë biznesi në të cilën ajo operon. 
Në këtë kontekst të gjithë proçeset e bizneseve janë planifikuar që të ulin impaktin negativ 
nga çdo lloj risku duke respektuar në të njëjtën kohë nivelin e tolerancës së riskut. Çdo 
punonjës i Bankës sidomos çdo drejtues pronësi në bankë ka përgjegjësinë parësore për 
menaxhimin e risqeve, kontrollin dhe vigjilencën sipas niveleve. Megjithatë, në vazhdim si 
më siper, Banka ka në funksion dhe departamentin e Riskut i cili shërben si një qendër 
ekselence për promovimin e kulturës së riskut përgjatë gjithë linjave të biznesit.
Departamenti i Riskut raporton në mënyrë të pavarur pranë Komitetit të Auditit si dhe 
Bordit të drejtorëve të Bankës, paralelisht me raportet e tjera menaxheriale. 
Ky departament gjithashtu është pjesëmarrës edhe në disa komitete të tjera të bankës si 
Komiteti i ALCO-s dhe Komiteti i Riskut Operacional duke siguruar kështu një opinion të 
pavarur në fushat respektive. 
Gjithashtu ky department kordinon dhe përditëson politikat e përshtatshme të riskut, 
parametrat e riskut si dhe metodologjitë në përputhje me rregullat e bankës kuadrin ligjor 
si dhe praktikat më të mira ndërkombetare. Departamenti mban marrëdhenie të ngushta 
bashkëpunimi me të gjitha njesitë e biznesit dhe drejtuesit. Ai zhvillon proçese dhe 
mekanizma kontrollues efektiv, praktik dhe inovator për proçesin e menaxhimit të riskut 
si dhe përgatit raportet përkatëse.
Duke marrë në konsideratë profilin dhe karakteristikat e saj të biznesit, fushat kryesore të 
riskut të Bankës janë risku i kredisë, risku i likuiditetit, risku nga normat e Interesit, risku 
me palët e tjera, risku i shkëmbimit Valutor si dhe risku operacional. Ndërkohë që 
performanca e çdo tipi risku është shpjeguar tek Pasqyrat Financiare tek Pasqyrave 
Financiare Raportin e Auditit, në seksionin e mëposhtëm në pasqyrat financiare gjëndet 
një paraqitje e politikave, ku theksi kryesor është vendosur tek kontrolli dhe shmangia e 
riskut. 
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Politika e Menaxhimit të Riskut 
Kjo politikë përshkruan risqet kryesore në të cilat Banka është ekspozuar si dhe  parimet 
kryesore të proçeseve të menaxhimi të riskut si dhe të skemës organizative. 

Politika e Kreditimit
Politika e Kreditimit është dokumenti bazë që përcakton parimet e menaxhimit të riskut të 
kredisë. Risku i Kredisë reduktohet nëpërmjet kredidhënies, kolateralit të mjaftueshëm si 
nivel i dytë mbrojtjeje, interesi i përshtashëm bazuar në risk, strukturim dhe diversifikim 
efektiv të portofolit të kredive, kontroll i mjaftueshëm i bankeës në tërësi etj. 
  
Një pjesë e rëndësishme e proçesit është monitorimi i vazhdueshem si dhe përcaktimi i 
niveleve të përshtatshme të rezervave të caktuara për humbjet nga kreditë. 

Politika e Menaxhimit te Aktiv – Pasiveve
Politika e Menaxhimit të Aktiv-Pasiveve është dokumenti kryesor që drejton menaxhimin e 
aktiviteteve të aktiveve dhe pasiveve të bankës, perfshirë të gjithë transaksionet me fondet, 
investimin e burimeve likuide dhe menaxhimin e riskut në bilanç. Fushat kryesore që mbulon 
ky dokument janë menaxhimi i likuiditetit, menaxhimi i normave të interest, menaxhimi i 
riskut të shkëmbimit me monedhat e huaja etj. 
Komiteti ALCO-s së Bankës ka zhvilluar rregulla, proçedura, instrumenta dhe mekanizma 
kontrolli për të menaxhuar në menyrë të përshtatshme të gjithë rreziqet. Limitet e 
brëndshme dhe rregullatore janë të mirëpercaktuar dhe monitorohen rregullisht. 

Politika e Investimeve 
Politika e Investimeve përcakton kriteret kryesore për menaxhim të përgjegjshëm të 
investimeve financiare të bankës në përputhje me strategjinë e saj të biznesit. Politika 
përcakton investimet e lejuara duke konsideruar riskun potencial që ato mbartin. Banka ka 
zhvilluar gjithashtu politika të tjera referuar investimeve dhe limiteve te riskut. 

Politika e riskut të ekspozimit me palët e tjera
Risku i ekspozimit me palët e tjera është trajtuar njësoj si risku i kredisë dhe specifikisht 
trajtohet si rasti i bankave dhe institucioneve financiare. Në këtë rast, përshtatshmeria e 
palëve të tjera si dhe limiteve përkatëse janë vleresuar individualisht duke u bazuar në 
kritere të caktuara dhe në metodologjinë përkatëse. 

Politika e Riskut Operacional 
Risku Operacional ndodh për gjithë produktet dhe shërbimet bankare dhe ndeshet mbi 
baza ditore kur proçesohen transaksionet. Ky lloj risku ndodh gjithashtu si rezultat i 
sistemeve të informacionit jo të përshtatshme, dështimin teknologjik, thyerjen e kontrolleve 
të brëndshme, mashtrimeve ose ngjarjeve të paparashikuara etj. 

Kuadri ligjor i Riskut Operacional në Bankë (politikat dhe proçedurat) përmbledh një 
përshkrim të qartë të riskut operacional përgjatë gjithë organizatës dhe një filozofi të 
vet-vleresimit të proçeseve të biznesit. 
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Kjo politikë përfshin raportimin aktiv dhe monitorimin e indikatorëve kyç të riskut, analizat 
e shkakut të ngjarjeve të riskut operacional, përgjigjet e shpejta të incidenteve të ndodhura, 
vet-vlerësime të rregullta dhe frekuente, si dhe mirëmbajtje të kujdesshme dhe të 
përditesuar të programeve të vijueshmërisë së biznesit. 

Komiteti i Riskut Operacional (KRO) periodikisht monitoron ngjarjen e humbjeve 
operacionale dhe ka përcaktuarë e duhura për të minimizuar humbjet dhe siguron zgjidhjet 
dhe mbulimet e riskut për aktivitetet që janë subjekt i riskut operacional. 
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8.TREGUESIT KRYESORË FINANCIARË

Rezultatet kryesore financiare të vitit
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Aktivet e Union Bank në fund të vitit 2018 arritën vlerën prej 51.3 Bilion lekësh duke 
reflektuar një rritje prej më shumë se 4.8 Bilion lek, që është 10.2% më e lartë se viti 2017. 
Struktura e aktiveve të bankës vazhdon të mbështesë dhe të mirëmbajë raporte të 
shëndetshme për indikatorë të rëndësishëm si Kredi ndaj Aktiveve, dhe Investime ndaj 
Aktiveve.

- Kreditë dhe paradhëniet ndaj Klientëve dhe institucioneve financiare, - 43.2% , (41.2% në 
vitin 2017)
- Investimet në letra me vlerë – 35.9%, (36.1% në 2017). Në investimet në letrat me vlerë    
janë të përfshira Bonot e Thesarit, Bonot e Qeverisë Shqiptare, si dhe disa Bono të 
koorporatave/qeverive të huaja.
- Paraja për shkak të bankave 18.1% (në 2017 19.9%)
- Aktivet fikse dhe të tjera zënë rreth 3% të aktiveve totale.

Pasivet e Union Bank në fund të vitit 2018 janë raportuar të jenë 46.7 Bilion Lek (42.5 Bilion 
në vitin 2017), duke treguar një rritje vjetore prej 9.9% ose 4.2 Bilion Lek. Rritja e detyrimeve 
ka shkuar sipas planit: struktura e detyrimeve ka mbetur afërsisht e njëjtë me vitin e 
mëparshëm me një rritje të vogël në Fondet e Klientëve; 80.5% në fund të 2018 përkundrejt 
82.2% të vitit 2017 e kompensuar kjo me një rritje të ulët të detyrimeve ndaj bankave dhe 
institucioneve të tjera financiare nga 8.5% në 9.5%.

Kapitali aksionar u rrit nga 557 Milion Lek në 4.6 Bilion Lek ose 13.8% më e lartë se viti i 
mëparshëm. Kjo formon 9.0% të aktiveve totale të Bankës kundrejt 8.7% që ishte në vitin 
2017.

Struktura Aseteve 2018
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Fitimi i Union Bank në 2018 arriti shumën prej 537.4 Milion Lek si një kombinim i të ardhurave 
operative prej 2.1 Bilion Lek dhe shpenzimeve totale prej 1.5 Bilion Lek. Të ardhurat neto nga 
interesat në vitin 2018 ishin afërsisht 2 bilion lek. Kjo është 170 milion lek më shumë ose 9.4% 
më e lartë krahasuar me atë të vitit 2017. Gjatë 2018 të ardhurat neto nga pagesat gjithashtu 
u rritën me 29.2 Milion Lek ose 14.1%. Krahasuar me 2017, Të ardhurat totale operative u 
rritën me 84.5 Milion Lek ose me 4.2% ndërsa shpenzimet operative u ulën me 101 Milion Lek 
ose 6.4% (LLP e përfshirë).

Total comprehensive income for the year
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9.PRODUKTET DHE SHËRBIME

9.1PRODUKTET PËR KLIENTET INDIVIDË DHE BIZNES

9.2.FONDET E KLIENTËVE

Union Bank ofron në dispozicion të klientëve Individë dhe Biznes një paketë të plotë 
produktesh dhe shërbimesh me qëllim plotësimin e çdo kërkese të lidhur me bankën.
Fokusi kryesor i Bankës mbetet mbajtja e një shërbimit cilësor dhe përmirësimi i 
vazhdueshëm i tij shoqëruar kjo me një nivel të lartë transparence.

Bazuar në politikat e saj Union Bank synon të vazhdojë rritjen duke ndërmarrë masat e 
duhura per një rritje të qëndrueshme.
Banka ofron për klientë një larmi produktesh dhe shërbimesh: lloje të ndryshme kredish, linja 
kredie, karta krediti dhe debiti, transferta kombëtare dhe ndërkombëtare, pagesa të 
ndryshme, garanci bankare, pagesa utilitare, pagesa të sigurimeve shoqërore dhe 
shëndetsore, tarifa shkollimi, pagesa të taksave dhe një sërë produktesh të tjera.
Platforma online i ofron klientëve mundësi për të aksesuar llogaritë e tyre 24 orë të ditës në 
7 ditë të javës. Pagesat dhe transaksionet e kryera nëpërmjet kanaleve online mundësojnë 
përfitimin nga komisione të reduktuara bankare.

Fondet e klientëve gjatë vitit 2018 arritën shumën prej 41.3 Bilion Lekësh. Kjo ishte një rritje 
prej 3.1 Bilion Lekësh ose 8%. Në fondet e klientëve Banka arriti të mirëmbante 3.5% të 
tregut të aksioneve si dhe arriti të ishte e 9-ta e pozicionuar nga Bankat Shqiptare. Siç edhe 
do të jetë më poshtë e analizuar, rritja në fondet e klientëve ishte e realizuar në të gjitha 
produktet, duke përfshirë depozitat me afat dhe llogaritë e kursimit që përfaqësojnë 77% të 
Fondeve të Klientëve.
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9.64%
 27.229.261 

 29.941.272 
 31.618.267 

 34.093.972 

  38.236.823 

  41.298.692 

6.54%

9.04%

11.83%

10.24%

Fondet e Klientëve përbëjnë 90% të detyrimeve. Të gjithë elementët kryesorë të Fondeve të 
Klientëve janë rritur në vitin 2018 në përputhje me strategjinë e Bankës, duke marrë në 
konsideratë çdo tendencë kombëtare dhe ndërkombëtare mbi normën e ulët të interesit. 
Strategjia e ndjekur arriti të balanconte rritjen e tyre për shkak të zhvillimit të biznesit  nga rritja 
e kreditimit dhe duke përdorur investime alternative për të trajtuar nivelet e larta të likuiditetit 
të krijuara gjatë vitit 2018. Në fund Banka arriti të ruante të njëjtin nivel të marzhit të saj të 
përgjithshëm të interesit. Fondet afatgjata janë rritur më shpejt në Euro (Në vëllim dhe shifra) 
se sa në Lek. Për t’i dhënë përgjigje kësaj tendence Banka rregulloi normën e interesit duke 
kombinuar nevojat e klientëve me optimizimin e targetit të investimeve. Llogaritë rrjedhëse u 
rritën me 11.1%. Depozitat e kursimit vazhduan të tregonin një trend rritës të reflektuar nga një 
rritje e përvitshme prej 14.1%. Këto ndryshuan strukturën e fondeve (Depozitat me afat, 
Llogaritë e kursimit, Llogaritë rrjedhëse), në favor të Llogarive të kursimit që krahasuar me 
2017, u rritën me 2% duke shkuar nga 15% në 17%. Depozitat me afat vazhduan të ishin burimi 
kyç i fondeve të Bankës. Pavarësisht trendit rënës të përgjithshëm të Sistemit Bankar Shqiptar, 
Depozitat me Afat vazhduan të rriten në Union Bank, si ato në valutën vendase ashtu dhe në 
atë të huaj. Gjithsesi, krahasuar me vitin 2017, depozitat me afat treguan një ulje në pjesën e 
tyre të fondeve totale nga 65% në 63%. Gjatë vitit 2018 Depozitat me afat u rritën me 5.2%, në 
ndërthurje me një rritje prej 7.9% me numrin e klientëve që kanë TD.



33

9.3 AKTIVITETI KREDITOR 

Ecuria e depozitave me afat

Struktura e kredive Individë kundrejt Biznes

Time Deposits (vol) Time Deposits, Numbers
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Portofoli i kredive të Union Bank arriti një vlerë prej 23.7 Bilion Lek, duke reflektuar një rritje 
vjetore prej 3.1 Bilion Lek ose 13.4%. Me një rritje të përvitshme prej 15% të portofolit të 
kredive, Union Bank realizoi një normë rritje shumë herë më të mirë se sa ajo e Sistemit 
Bankar Shqiptar që ishte e pandryshuar gjatë vitit 2018.

Gjatë vitit sistemi i kredive në Shqipëri përjetoi një sërë shqetësimesh dhe një nivel të 
konsiderueshëm të dobësisë, si në riskun e drjetpërdrejtë ashtu dhe në atë jo të 
drejtpërdrejtë. Qëllimi i Union Bank ishte të rriste potofolin e saj të kredisë pavarësisht 
ndryshimeve të tregut. Kështu Banka ia doli të kishte rritje të vazhdueshme pa ndryshime në 
NPL që mbeti e pandryshuar nga vlera mesatare.
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Cilësia e Portofolit

Numri i përgjithshëm i kredive (kreditë e biznesit dhe ato individuale duke përfshirë edhe 
kartat e kreditit) u rritën me 13.2% gjatë 2018.

Kreditë për shtëpi zotëruan me shumë sukses kreditë individuale gjatë vitit 2018. Normat 
konkurruese të interesit të kombinuara me proçesin e përshpejtuar dhe të thjeshtë u ofruan 
për klientët. Përveç kredive hipotekore klientët përfituan gjithashtu kredi konsumatore dhe 
kredi për nevojat e tyre financiare.

Kreditë për biznesin në rrjetin e degëve u rritën me 1.9 Bilion Lek, ose me 15.8%. rritja ishte më 
së shumti e realizuar në bizneset SME, që tregon edhe fokusin kryesor të bankës për kreditë 
e bizneseve. Ndërkohë që rritja e portofolit në tërësi qëndroi si një qëllim final, Banka theksoi 
nevojën për rritje të mëtejshme të huadhënies individuale dhe kredive të bizneseve. Në fund 
të vitit 2018, pjesa e kredive konsumatore zinte 41% e totalit të portofolit.Struktura e 
Portofolit të Kredive të Union Bank mbështet shumë sektorë të ekonomisë dhe industrisë në 
të gjithë vendin dhe nuk eshte e fokusuar vetëm në një prej sektorëve të industrisë. Gjatë 
2018, nuk kishte ndryshime të rëndësishme në një sektor të caktuar te portofolit.

Menaxhimi i portofolit në termat e cilësisë 
mbetet një nga prioritetet më të mëdha për 
bankën. Ajo është konsideruar si një nga 
çështjet kryesore në proçesin e huadhënies. 
Një monitorim nga afër i proçesit është 
aplikuar si te kredia për biznes ashtu dhe 
për atë konsumatore.
Gjatë vitit 2018 Banka arriti të mbante një 
nivel mesatar të NPL më të ulët se 10% (në 
fund të 2017 ishte 10.6%) me një nivel prej 
8.5% të në fund të vitit. Kjo përqindje ishte 
më e ulët se NPL e të gjithë sistemit bankar 
që kishte një NPL 11% në fund të vitit 2018.
Provigjionet e humbjes nga kreditë u ulën 
nga 8.7% në 7.7% të portofolit total. Në të 
njëjtën kohë NPL për kontratat e pagesave 
me këste në fund të vitit 2018 vazhdoi të 
mbetej më e ulët se 5%.
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9.4.PRODUKTET DHE SHËRBIMET E KARTAVE DHE E-BANKING

9.5 TRANSFERTAT DHE PAGESAT

Sektori i pagesave, produktet dhe shërbimet bankare po bëhen gjithmonë e më shumë 
digjitale këto ditë. Bankat po u ofrojnë klientëve alternative të shumëllojshme pagesash. Ky 
trajtim ishte në fokus të Union Bank për vitin 2018.

Për kartat, viti 2018 ishte një vit shumë dinamik me fushata të ndryshme:
•Informacioni rreth kartave të Union Bank është shpërndarë në një audiencë më të gjerë se 
sa klientela e bankës.
•Përdorimi i kartave përtej tërheqjeve themelore të parave ishte fokusi i një fushate tjetër.
•Ndërtimi i bashkëpunimeve me shitësat komercialë në mënyrë që mbajtësit e kartave të 
përfitojnë ulje, ishte fushata e tretë.

POS- et, Union Bank është një pjesëmarrës i ri në biznesin e POS-eve. Akoma po përpiqet të 
rrisë prezencën e saj në treg si një mundësi për rritje të mëtejshme të transaksioneve dhe 
veprimeve me karta.
Internet Banking, dhe shërbimet e tjera që mundësojnë hyrjen në bankë pa qenë nevoja për 
të vizituar një nga degët, ishte gjithashtu në fokus:
U përgatitën përgjigjet e pyetjeve të bera më shpesh dhe udhëzimet. U sigurua suporti në 
kohë reale për të kryer një pagesë apo transaksion. Pagesat e bankës dhe komisionet u ulën 
ose u zeruan për ato që kryheshin online. Në vazhim të kësaj, gjatë 2018, stafi i degëve u 
trajnua per teknikat më të mira të shitjeve dhe të komunikimit. Motoja e vitit 2018 ishte 
“Shpejt dhe Thjesht”.
Rezultatet ishin shumë positive: kishte një rritje prej 36% të numrit të kartave dhe vëllimeve 
të transaksioneve të tyre dhe një rritje prej 66% në vëllimet e transaksioneve të kryera 
online.

Numri total i transfertave dhe pagesave (brënda dhe jashtë) arriti të ishte afërsisht 48,800 
duke treguar një normë rritje vjetore prej 28.4%. Për më shumë, duke e parë në afate 
sezonale dhe duke u bazuar në shifrat mesatare tremujore dhe vjetore, linja e zhvillimit e 
këtyre produkteve gjithashtu qëndron në nivel më të lartë duke treguar rritje pozitive për të 
gjithë elementët krahasuar me një vit më parë.
Ne jemi gjithashtu krenarë të përmendim që në lidhje me këto shërbime të pagesave, banka 
jonë ofron disa nga çmimet më konkurruese në treg me kushtet më të lehta. Rritja e 
vazhdueshme e numrit të klientëve bazohet dhe përshkallëzohet në shitjet me dy palë dhe 
ndikon në numrin e këtyre transfertave dhe në të ardhurat nga pagesat e lidhura me to duke 
rritur akoma më tej shkallën e depërtimit për këto produkte. 
Të ardhurat nga ky segment tejkaluan të ardhurat nga viti i mëparshëm me të paktën 24%.
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9.6.ZHVILLIMI I OPERACIONEVE TË BRËNDSHME DHE SHËRBIMI I KLIENTIT

Banka është e vendosur të përçojë shërbim klienti efektiv dhe efikas dhe janë marrë një sërë 
masash dhe proçedurash të standartizuara vijuese për të përmirësuar më tej veprimtarinë e 
përgjithshme. Kuptohet që zhvillimet dhe kërkesat në kohëve të fundit në mjedisin e biznesit 
i  kanë rritur shumë standartet për industrinë bankare.
Banka ka zbatuar një sërë kontrollesh të brëndshme në mënyë që të sigurohet që i gjithë 
rrjeti i degëve punon në të njëjtën mënyrë me rregullat e brëndshme dhe të jashtme.
Duke patur kryesore etikën e punës, Banka mundëson që të gjithë anëtarët e organizatës 
mund të zotërojnë një sërë aftësish të caktuara, që janë të nevojshme për t’u përballur me 
klientët apo të tretët. Ajo gjithmonë përpiqet të arrijë dhe shërbejë nevojat e klientëve dhe 
gjithashtu t’u përgjigjet opinioneve, sugjerimeve dhe kërkesave të tyre por mbi të gjitha të 
jenë të duruar dhe të mirëinformuar rreth produkteve dhe të shprehin dëshirë dhe vullnet 
për të dëgjuar dhe mësuar. Duke patur parasysh që tregu është një lidhje shoqërore, 
pavarësisht bashkëveprimeve të përditshme me klientët, ka gjithashtu fletëpalosje dhe 
forma sondazhi të vendosura brenda degëve ku klientët janë të inkurajuar për ti plotësuar 
rreth shërbimit apo produkteve bankare. 

10.EVENTET DHE PËRGJEGJËSIA SOCIALE
Union Bank mori 6 milion EUR financim për një linjë kredie 
për nisjen  e investimeve ne energjine e gjelber. 

Union Bank është një kliente e EBRD që nga viti 2008 dhe suksesshëm ka bashkëpunuar në 
disa projekte me EBRD. Nëpërmjet kësaj kredie nga GEFF, Union Bank do të jetë në gjendje 
të suportojë investimet në projektet e energjisë së rinovueshme për shtëpi. Zgjerimi i 
kredidhënies në fushën e energjisë së rinovueshme për shtëpi do të ndihmojë gjithashtu 
Union Bank të promovoje më tej objektivat e saj sociale dhe mbrojtjen ndaj mjedisit. 
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Sponsorizimet, sporti dhe evente të tjera

Union Bank sponsor zyrtar i Ekipit Kombëtar të Futbollit

Programi i dhurimeve dhe sponsorizimeve

 

Union Bank vazhdoi të jetë sponsor i Ekipit Kombëtar të Futbollit edhe për një vit tjetër. 
Banka është krenare për mbështetjen e ofruar ndaj përfaqësueses shqiptare në të gjitha 
sfidat dhe ndeshjet e saj. 

Gjithashtu, Union Bank mbështet jetën e shëndetshme dhe suporton punonjësit e Bankës të 
cilët angazhohen në ekipet e saj amatore të volejbollit dhe futbollit.

Krahas sponsorizimeve afatgjata të aktiviteteve sportive, banka është shumë aktive dhe merr 
pjesë në evente donacionesh, bamiresie, programe përfitimi dhe evente për mbledhje 
fondesh, për të ndihmuar komunitetin dhe për të rritur përgjegjshmërinë e stafit të saj në 
jetën sociale.
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Dhurime të 40 kompjuterave ne Kukës

Mbështetja e spitalit të Kukësit

“Sow your tree” in Elbasan city

Panairi dhe Forumi i Energjisë 2018 

Union Bank mirëpret bankierët e vegjël

AKTIVITETET KRYESORE TE PERGJEGJESISE SOCIALE

Union Bank mirëpriti fëmijët e punonjësve në moshë shkollore, në Degën dhe Zyrat 
Qendrore të bankës, si pjesë e eventit “Bankierët e vegjël në Union Bank”. 
Eventi u organizua në dt 13 Mars 2028 gjatë “Javës së Parasë”. Aktiviteti u përmbyll me 
shpërndarjen e dhuratave simbolike të Bankës, ndër to edhe shtëpiza e kursimit Union Bank 
duke përcjellë mesazhin e rëndësishëm se kursimi dhe menaxhimi i parave është një 
përgjegjësi e të gjithëve.

Me rastin e 7 Marsit Union Bank mbësheti iniciativen e Degës Kukës dhe dhuroi 40 
kompjutera në Zyrën e Edukimit në Kukës për tu shpërndarë në të gjithë shkollat e bashkisë.  
Me rastin e festës së 7 Marsit Union Bank me iniciativën e Degës Kukës dhuroi për Drejtorinë 
Arsimore Kukës 40 kompjutera, për tu shpërndarë në të gjitha shkollat e qarkut.

Union Bank mbështeti spitalin e qytetit të Kukësit duke financuar blerjen e disa aparaturave 
për pediatrinë e spitalit dhe të stolave të pritjes për ambientet e përbashkëta të kompleksit 
spitalor.

Union Bank mbështeti aksionin “Mbill Pemën Tënde” në qytetin e Elbasanit i cili u lançua në 
muajin Prill në bulevardin kryesor. 
Në bulevardin kryesor “Qemal Stafa”, stafi i degës Elbasan dhe ai i marketingut në Union 
Bank, së bashku me përfaqësues të Bashkisë së qytetit mbollën pemët e reja “Magnolia”. 
Bashkëpunimi me fondacionin “Fondacioni spitalor i Nënës dhe Fëmijës” Në muajin Dhjetor 
Union Bank zgjodhi të urojë klientët dhe bashkëpuntorët e saj nëpërmjet kartolinave të 
urimit të përgatitura nga Fondacioni Spitalor Nëna dhe Fëmija.

Në datat 5-6 tetor u zhvillua në Tiranë edicioni i dyte i panairit “Energy Expo & Forum 2018”, 
organizimi i të cilit pati në fokus energjinë e rinovueshme dhe efiçencën e energjisë. Union 
Bank ishte banka e vetme pjesëmarrëse në këtë panair, duke prezantuar veçanerisht 
produktin e kredise se dedikuar për financimin e paneleve fotovoltaike.



39



RAPORTI VJETOR 2018

40



41

11.PLANET PËR 2019

Pas më shumë se një dekade të suksesshme në biznesin bankar, Union Bank është aktualisht 
i pozicionuar në vendin e tetë në sektorin e bankave në Shqipëri. Viti 2019 do të shënojë më 
shumë arritje në të gjitha aspektet e biznesit të bankës, duke patur parasysh që Banka arriti 
me sukses blerjen e Bankes Ndërkombëtare Tregtare (ICB). Ndërkohë që qëllimi kryesor 
është arritja e shkrirjes së dy bankave, parashikohet gjithashtu një rritje e koordinuar, me 
projekte të qarta financiare dhe të biznesit. Union Bank nuk do të rrezikojë cilësinë e 
filozofisë të punës dhe do të jetë e matur në çdo hap. Me blerjen e ICB synohet rritja e numrit 
të klientëve, rritja në tregun e aksioneve, rritja e përfitimeve, konsolidimi dhe zgjerimi i 
aktiveve te krijuara duke kontrolluar të gjithë faktorët e riskut. Menaxhimi i bankës do të 
ndjekë plane strategjike dhe teknike në mënyrë që të arrijë objektivat e vendosura në 
mjedisin ekonomik që është vazhdimisht në ndryshim.
Banka do të vlerësojë gjithashtu mundësitë e tregut të krijuara nga vendi për shkak të 
ristrukturimit të vazhdueshëm të sektorit bankar që pritet të përfundojë me 12 banka, për 
shkak të blerjeve, nga 16 që ishte ky numër në vitin 2017.

Rritja e aktiveve

Duke konsideruar shkrirjen me ICB, aktivet totale të bankës pritet të rriten përafërsisht me 
30% gjatë vitit 2019. Qëllimet kryesore janë nga njëa anë të rregullojë strukturën e bilancit 
drejt aktiveve që mbartin interes, huatë ndaj normave të interesit të depozitave, dhe nga 
ana tjetër të mbajnë nivelin e likuiditetit, duke mbështetur rritje e huadhënies dhe Letrave 
me Vlerë. Nga ana tjetër gjatë vitit 2019 do të ketë shumë projekte thelbësore që synojnë 
të rritin aktivet e prekshëm dhe të paprekshëm të Bankës, duke përfshirë përmirësimin e 
sistemit bankar. Projektet e IT do t’u shërbejnë dhe do të suportojnë planet e biznesit dhe 
do të ndihmojnë në automatizimin dhe modernizimin e një pjese të madhe të operacioneve 
të bankës në Degën Qendrore dhe rrjetin e degëve. Fokusi kryesor do të jetë përfundimi i 
Eksperiencës Digjitale që synon të prezantohet me klientët brenda vitit 
2019. 
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Kredidhënia

Për vitin 2019 Union Bank ka parashikuar një rritje vjetore prej më shumë se 30% në 
Portofolin e Kredive, si një kombinim i portofolit të shtuar të ICB dhe rreth 9% të rritjes të 
koordinuar të rrjetit të Bankës. Shifra e synuar ka si qëllim të ngurtësojë portofolin ekzistues 
ndërkohë që mban parametra të shëndetshëm të tij dhe vazhdon duke shtuar vlera me 
fokus special në pjesën e individëve dhe atë të bizneseve SME. Në të njëjtën kohë, Banka do 
të rishikojë rregullisht dhe do të monitorojë të gjitha ekspozimet dhe risqet duke u përpjekur 
të mbajë cilësinë e mirë për portofolin e kredisë. Përqëndrimi më i ulët, rreziku dhe 
mirëmbajtja e produkteve janë gjithashtu duke u balancuar me politikën e Bankës së 
Shqipërisë dhe de-eurozimin gradual të tregut. Vetëm për rrjetin e degëve të Bankës, 
kredidhënia në 2019 është planifikuar të rritet me më shumë se 9%. Fushatat e marketingut 
do të fokusohen për të mbështetur këto qëllime veçanërisht për pjesën e kredive 
hipotekore. Kreditë konsumatore parashikohen të kenë një rritje vjetore prej 16%. Kreditë e 
bizneseve në 2019 janë buxhetuar të rriten me më shumë se 9%. Pjesa që është planifikuar 
të ketë rritjen më të larët është ajo e biznesve 
SME. 
Kreditë e bizneseve në 2019 janë buxhetuar të rriten me më shumë se 9%. Pjesa që është 
planifikuar të ketë rritjen më të larët është ajo e biznesve SME. Procesi i kredidhënies këtu 
do të vazhdojë të mbështesë të gjithë sektorët e ekonomisë, do të lehtësojë bizneset 
kryesisht të mesme e të vogla, duke rritur shitjet në klientët ekzistues. Në të njëjtën kohë, do 
të përmbushë kërkesat e nevojshme për rritjen e kredisë së kombinuar me parametrat për 
monitorim më të mirë të kredisë dhe cilësi më të përmirësuar në këtë segment.
Ne presim të rrisim tregun e aksioneve të bankës me përafërsisht 5% në fund të vitit.

Financimet 

Për 2019, rrjeti i Union Bank planifikon të rrisë fondet e klientëve me më shumë se 12%. 
Gjithsesi, duke konsideruar dhe faktorin ICB, rritja vjetore e llogarive të klientëve pritet të 
jetë në nivelin 30%. Pjesa që do të përjetojë rritjen më të lartë është ajo e Depozitave me 
Afat, me përafërsisht gjysmën e rritjes totale Struktura aktuale e fondeve do të jetë 
gjithashtu e vëzhguar me shumë kujdes pas ndikimit të kursit të këmbimit dhe luhatjes të 
valutave të huaja,veçanërisht monedhës Euro e cila mund të ketë një ndikim të 
drejtpërdrejtë në depozitat shqiptare.
Gjithsesi, pjesa më e madhe e rritjes pritet nga valuta e huaj. Strategjia e çmimeve të 
produkteve është e lidhur ngushtë me qëllimet kryesore të Bankës për rritjen në tregun e 
aksioneve dhe bazës të klientelës. Çmimet e produkteve janë të monitoruara rreptësisht në 
mënyrë që të arrihet norma më fitimprurëse e interesit. Fushatat dhe përpjekjet që do të 
mbahen gjatë 2019 për vendosjen në fuqi të këtyre strategjive që fillimisht konsistojnë në 
mbështetjen e gamës kryesore të produkteve dhe më pas në përmirësimin dhe gjetjen e 
mënyrave për krijimin e karakteristikave të reja ose hibride për produktet.
Ne presim të rritemi në tregun e aksioneve të bankës përafërsisht me 4.5% deri në fund të 
vitit.



43

Projektet kryesore për marketingun dhe rrjetin e degëve për vitin 
2019

Për vitin 2019 Banka do ketë projekte të rëndësishme marketing që do ta ndihmojnë në 
rritjen e numrit të klientëve dhe tregun e aksioneve. Kjo do të realizohet nëpërmjet 
promovimit të produkteve inteligjente dhe emrit të Bankës. Do të promovohet aksesi i lehtë 
dhe i thjeshtë për klientët nëpërmjet degëve apo kanaleve të tjera.
Bazuar në eksperiencën e viteve të mëparshme dhe në mbështetje të realizimeve të 
qëllimeve të biznesit të Bankës, Departamenti i Marketingut ka buxhetuar disa fushata. Disa 
nga ato janë listuar më poshtë:

•Paketa e Biznesit është një paketë e projektuar për bizneset e vogla dhe SME. Fushata 
planifikon të jetë e zbatuar në pranverë dhe do të jetë një fushatë me shumë kanale që do 
të komunikojë me njerëzit e biznesit nëpërmjet kanaleve klasike dhe digjitale si TV, radio, 
shërbimit në degë, dhe në rrjetet sociale.

•Kursim+ është një produkt kredie nga Union Bank në kuadër të Programit GEFF nga EBRD 
(Lehtësia e Financimit të Kredisë të Gjelbër në Ballkanin Perëndimor). Produkti do të 
zbatohet zyrtarisht gjatë periudhës të pranverës dhe do të mbështesë investimet për 
efiçencën e energjisë në shtëpitë private.

•Verë 2019 fushata e depozitave, që do të bazohet në rinovimin sezonal të TD dhe fondeve 
të reja që vijnë në Shqipëri përmes shqiptarëve që vizitojnë vendin gjatë kohës të verës.

Gjatë vitit 2019 Union Bank do vazhdojë të mbështesë sportet në Shqipëri. Ne jemi 
krenarë për mbështetjen e qëndrueshme që i japim Kombëtares Shqiptare që në 
themelimin e Bankës. Më shumë se mbështetjen e Kombëtares Shqiptare, Banka 
është e vendosur të promovojë sportin dhe aktivitetet shoqërore në komunitet, 
brënda dhe jashtë bankës.Me qëllim për të plotësuar përgjegjësitë e saj sociale 
Union Bank planifikon të vazhdojë të jetë aktive dhe të inkurajojë stafin e saj të 
bëjë punë vullnetare si dhe dhurim i gjakut, të mbledhë dhe të dhurojë ushqim apo 
veshmbathje për personat apo familjet në vështirësi.

Rrjeti i Degëve

Gjatë 2019 menaxhimi i Union Bank do vazhdojë të implementojë projekte për përmirësimet 
e degëve ekzistuese. Janë disa projekte në Tiranë që përfshijnë zhvendosjen e njërës prej 
degëve dhe zëvendësime të disa aseteve të brendshme dhe të jashtme në disa degë të 
tjera. Në vijimësi, 3 degë të tjera do shtohen nga shkrirja me ICB dhe një degë e re është 
planifikuar të hapet në Tiranë, për të mbuluar më mirë nevojat e klientëve në kryeqytet.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND  

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME  

in LEK ‘000 
 

 

 Notes 

For the year ended  

December 31, 2018 

 For the year ended  

December 31, 2017 

     

Interest income 21 2,358,284  2,155,638 

Interest expense 22 (377,964)  (345,222) 

Net interest income  1,980,320  1,810,416 

     

Fee and commission income 23 290,021  254,229 

Fee and commission expenses 24 (53,507)  (46,915) 

Net fee and commission income  236,514  207,314 

     

Net impairment loss on financial assets 25 (104,279)  (277,098) 

Net gain/(loss) from de-recognition of financial 

assets measured at amortized cost 26 23,734  - 

Net foreign exchange result 27 (144,277)  14,008 

Change in fair value of investment property 14 (32,593)  (22,095) 

Income from leased investment property 14 9,176  5,213 

Other income, net  11,867  (4,077) 

Write-down on net realizable value of 

repossessed collaterals 15 

 

(5,364)  (54,178) 

Other charges for provisions  -  (1,308) 

Amortization of intangible assets 12 (30,914)  (24,488) 

Depreciation of property and equipment 13 (44,295)  (41,598) 

Personnel costs 28 (502,832)  (479,205) 

Other operating expenses 29 (760,528)  (682,154) 
     

Profit before tax  636,529  450,750 
     

Income tax expense 30 (99,172)  (73,584) 

 

Profit of the year  

 

537,357  377,166 
     

Other comprehensive income, net of tax  -  - 

Total comprehensive income for the year  537,357  377,166 

 

 

 

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income is to be read in conjunction with 

the notes set out on pages 5 to 76 integral part of the consolidated financial statements. 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY  

in LEK ‘000 
 

 Notes 

Share 

capital 

Share 

premium 

Legal 

Reserve 

Retained 

Earnings Total 

       

Balance at 1 January 2017  
2,717,813 175,600 280,405 519,515 3,693,333 

Transactions with owners recorded directly in equity       

Increase in share capital   - - - - - 

Dividends distributed   20 - - - (25,088) (25,088) 

Total contributions by and distributions to owners  - - - (25,088) (25,088) 

       

Total comprehensive income for the year       

Profit for the year  - - - 377,166 377,166 

Other comprehensive income, net of income tax   - - - - - 

Total comprehensive income for the year  - - - 377,166 377,166 

Balance at 31 December 2017  
2,717,813 175,600 280,405 871,593 4,045,411 

       

Impact of adopting IFRS9 7 - - - 20,083 20,083 

Restated opening balance under IFRS9  2,717,813 175,600 280,405 891,676 4,065,494 

       

Transactions with owners recorded directly in equity       

Increase in share capital  - - - - - 

Total contributions by and distributions to owners  - - - - - 

       

Total comprehensive income for the year       

Profit for the year  - -  537,357 537,357 

Other comprehensive income, net of income tax   - -  - - 

Total comprehensive income for the year  - - - 537,357 537,357 

Balance at 31 December 2018 
 

2,717,813 175,600 280,405 1,429,033 4,602,851 

 

The consolidated statement of changes in equity is to be read in conjunction with the notes set out on pages 5 to 76 integral part of the consolidated financial 

statements. 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS  

in LEK ‘000 
 

 Notes 

For the year ended 

December 31, 2018  

For the year ended 

December 31, 2017 

Cash flows from operating activities 
 

 
 

 

Profit before tax  636,529  450,750 

Adjustments for non-cash items:     

Interest income 21 (2,358,284)  (2,155,638) 

Interest expense 22 377,964  345,222 

Depreciation of property and equipment 13 44,295  41,598 

Amortization of intangible assets 12 30,914  24,488 

Impairment loss on financial assets 25 104,279  277,098 

Write-down on NRV of repossessed collaterals 15 2,940  52,497 

Change in fair value of investment property 14 32,593  22,095 
Impairment of assets held for sale  2,424  1,681 

Other charges for provisions  -  9,839 

Revaluation effect of cash and cash equivalents  405,812  121,053 

Other revaluation effects  (82,829)  28,163 

Written off property and equipment   1,564  59 

Net gain from sale of property and equipment  (265)  (5) 

Net gain from sale of repossessed collaterals  (5,963)  (42,724) 

  (808,027)  (823,824) 

Changes in:     

Due with banks  (749,529)  (327,138) 

Loans and advances to customers  (2,932,634)  (2,661,117) 

Other assets  (61,291)  272,009 

Due to banks and financial institutions  871,128  169,420 

Due to customers  3,065,846  4,242,189 

Due to Central Bank  81,749  205,114 

Other liabilities  163,394  31,181 

Interest received   2,335,988  2,125,159 

Interest paid  (373,651)  (444,248) 

Income tax paid  (98,123)  (53,175) 

Net cash generated from operating activities  1,494,850  2,735,570 

     
Cash flows from investing activities     

Purchases of intangible assets 12 (60,108)  (18,037) 

Purchases of property and equipment 13 (82,776)  (59,102) 

Proceeds from sale of property and equipment  1,823  1,589 

Proceeds from sale of non-current assets held for sale  17,990  56,881 

(Purchases)/Proceeds of treasury bills   (206,427)  487,712 

Purchases of bonds   (1,460,297)  (1,676,992) 

Net cash used in investing activities  (1,789,795)  (1,207,949) 

     
Cash flows from financing activities     
Dividends distributed  -  (25,088) 

Net cash generated from financing activities  -  (25,088) 

     

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents during the year  (294,945)  1,502,533 

Revaluation effect of cash and cash equivalents  (405,812)  (121,053) 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  6,628,914  5,272,744 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 32 5,953,467  6,654,224 

The consolidated statement of cash flows is to be read in conjunction with the notes set out on pages 5 to 76 

integral part of the consolidated financial statements. 
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1. INTRODUCTION 

Union Bank Sh.a. (the “Bank”) is a financial institution registered as a commercial bank on 9 January 2006 

based on Decision no. 101, dated 28 December 2005, of the Supervisory Board of the Bank of Albania 

(“BoA”). The Bank’s activity is subject to Law no. 8269 “On the Bank of Albania” dated 23 December 1997, 

Law No. 9662 “On Banks in the Republic of Albania” dated 18 December 2006 and all rules and regulations 

approved by the Supervisory Board of the BoA. 

The Bank is a commercial bank, which provides banking services to individuals and enterprises in the Republic 

of Albania. The Bank is registered as a joint stock company, with the registration number 33563, dated 26 

May 2005, on which date the Bank started its commercial activities. The Bank obtained its license for banking 

activities on 9 January 2006. 

Based on the Sale and Purchase Agreement signed in September 2014, on 22 December 2014, the Bank 

acquired 100% of the shares in Landeslease Sh.a (the “Subsidiary” or “Landeslease”), and is the only 

shareholder of this financial institution. The Subsidiary is an Albanian leasing company that was registered as 

a joint stock company and started to operate on 5 April 2005. 

The immediate parent of the Group is Union Financiar Tirane sh.a. and the ultimate controlling parents are 

Mr. Edmond Leka and Mr. Niko Leka 

These consolidated financial statements comprise the Bank and its Subsidiary (collectively the ‘Group’).  

The Headquarters of the Bank are located in Tirana, Albania.  

 

Directors as at 31 December 2018 

Board of Directors (Supervisory Board) 

Edmond Leka  Chairman 

Niko Leka  Vice-Chairman 

Varuzhan Piranjani Member 

Melis Ekmen Tabojer Member 

Gazmend Kadriu Member 

Sokol Marishta  Member 

Flutura Veipi  Member 

 

Board of Directors of the Subsidiary 

Arten Zikaj  Chairman 

Enkeleda Hasho  Member 

Rezart Ferzaj  Member 

 

 

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION  

2.1 Statement of compliance 

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial 

Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB). 

Group consolidated financial statements are prepared by the parent Company. 

2.2 Basis of measurement 

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for investment 

property, which is measured at fair value. 

2.3 Functional and presentation currency 

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Albanian Lek (“LEK”), which is the Group’s 

functional currency. All financial information presented in LEK has been rounded to the nearest thousands, 

except when otherwise indicated. 
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2.   BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED) 

2.4  Use of estimates and judgments  

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires management to make 

judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported 

amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. 

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates 

are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected. Management 

believes that the underlying assumptions are appropriate and that the consolidated financial statements 

therefore present the financial position and results fairly. In particular, information about significant areas of 

estimation uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant 

effect on the amount recognized in the consolidated financial statements are described in note 5.  

2.5 Comparative  

Certain reclassification is made in order to obtain better presentation and disclosure in the consolidated 

financial statements as at December 31, 2017 and as at December 31, 2018. More specifically: 

- “Loans and advances to Financial Institutions” of LEK 1,119,584 thousand was presented on a 

consolidated line in the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017, and for 

both periods ending on 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017. These are grouped together and 

presented under “Loans and advances to customers”.  The respective disclosures in the notes to the 

consolidated financial statements have been made with respect to this reclassification.  

 

3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES  

3.1 New and amended standards and interpretations 

In these financial statements, the Group has applied IFRS 9, IFRS 15 and IFRS 7R, effective for annual periods 

beginning on or after 1 January 2018, for the first time. The Group has not adopted early any other standard, 

interpretation or amendment that has been issued but is not yet effective. 

3.1.1 IFRS 9 Financial Instruments 

IFRS 9 replaces IAS 39 for annual periods on or after 1 January 2018.  

The Group has not restated comparative information for 2017 for financial instruments in the scope of IFRS 

9. Therefore, the comparative information for 2017 is reported under IAS 39 and is not comparable to the 

information presented for 2018. Differences arising from the adoption of IFRS 9 have been recognized directly 

in retained earnings as of 1 January 2018 and are disclosed in Note 7. 

 

3.1.1.1 Changes to classification and measurement 

To determine their classification and measurement category, IFRS 9 requires all financial assets, except equity 

instruments and derivatives, to be assessed based on a combination of the entity’s business model for managing 

the assets and the instruments’ contractual cash flow characteristics. 

The IAS 39 measurement categories of financial assets (fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), available for 

sale (AFS), held-to-maturity and amortized cost) have been replaced by: 

 Debt instruments at amortized cost 

 Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI), with gains or losses 

recycled   to profit or loss on derecognition 

 Equity instruments at FVOCI, with no recycling of gains or losses to profit or loss on derecognition 

 Financial assets FVPL. 

The accounting for financial liabilities remains largely the same as it was under IAS 39, except for the 

treatment of gains or losses arising from an entity’s own credit risk relating to liabilities designated at FVPL, 

which should be presented in OCI with no subsequent reclassification to profit or loss. 

The Group’s classification of its financial assets and liabilities is explained in Notes 4.8.4, 4.9, 4.10, 4.11 and 

4.17. The quantitative impact of applying IFRS 9 as at 1 January 2018 is disclosed in Note 7. 
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3.  CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED) 

3.1.1.2 Changes to the impairment calculation 

The adoption of IFRS 9 has fundamentally changed the Group’s accounting for loan loss impairments by 

replacing IAS 39’s incurred loss approach with a forward-looking expected credit loss (ECL) approach. IFRS 

9 requires the Group to record an allowance for ECLs for all loans and other debt financial assets not held at 

FVPL, together with loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts. The allowance is based on the ECLs 

associated with the probability of default in the next twelve months unless there has been a significant increase 

in credit risk since origination. If the financial asset meets the definition of purchased or originated credit 

impaired (POCI), the allowance is based on the change in the ECLs over the life of the asset. 

Details of the Group’s impairment method are disclosed in Note 4.8.7. The quantitative impact of applying 

IFRS as at 1 January 2018 is disclosed in Note 7. 

3.1.2 IFRS 7R 

To reflect the differences between IFRS 9 and IAS 39, IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures was updated 

and the Group has adopted it, together with IFRS 9, for the year beginning 1 January 2018. Changes include: 

- transition disclosures as shown in Note 7,  

- detailed qualitative and quantitative information about the ECL calculations such as the assumptions 

and inputs used are set out in Note 35.1.2. 

Reconciliations from opening to closing ECL allowances are presented in Notes 8, 9, 10 and 11. 

3.1.3 IFRS 15 Revenues from contracts with customers  

The adoption of IFRS 15 did not impact the timing or amount of fee, commission and other income from 

contracts with customers and the related assets and liabilities recognised by the Group. Accordingly, the 

impact on the comparative information is limited to new disclosure requirements, as detailed in note 23. If the 

Group had prepared the financial statements for 2018 under previous revenue standard IAS 18, the figures in 

the financial statements as at 31 December 2018 would have been the same as prepared under IFRS 15. 

 

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  

The Group has consistently applied the following accounting policies to all periods presented in these financial 

statements, apart from the new standard, IFRS 9 Financial Instruments which has been implemented from 1 

January 2018 using the modified retrospective approach through which the opening balances on 1 January 

2018 are restated.  

4.1. Basis of consolidation 

4.1.1. Business combination 

The Group accounts for business combinations using the acquisition method when control is transferred to the 

Group. The consideration transferred in the acquisition is generally measured at fair value, as are the 

identifiable net assets acquired. Any gain on a bargain purchase is recognized in profit or loss immediately. 

Transaction costs are expensed as incurred, except if related to the issue of debt or equity securities.  

The consideration transferred does not include amounts related to the settlement of pre-existing relationships. 

Such amounts are generally recognized in profit or loss. 

4.1.2. Subsidiary  

‘Subsidiaries’ are entities controlled by the Bank. Control is achieved when the Bank 

 has the power over the investee;  

 is exposed, or has rights, to variable return from its involvement with the investee; and  

 has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.  

The Bank reassesses weather it has control if there are changes to one or more elements of control. This 

includes circumstances in which protective rights held (e.g. those resulting from a lending relationship) 

become substantive and lead to the Bank having power over the investee. The financial statements of the 

Subsidiary are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date on which control commences 

until the date in which control ceases.   
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4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

4.1 Basis of consolidation (continued) 

4.1.3. Loss of control 

When the Bank loses control over its subsidiary, it derecognises the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, and 

any related non-controlling interest and other components of equity. Any resulting gain or loss is recognised 

in profit or loss. Any interest retained in the former subsidiary is measured at fair value when the control is 

lost. 

4.1.4. Transactions eliminated on consolidation 

Intra – group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expense (except for foreign currency 

transactions gains or losses) arising from intra – group transactions, are eliminated in preparing the 

consolidated financial statements. Unrealized losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but 

only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.  

4.2. Foreign currency transactions 

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the respective functional currency entities at the spot 

exchange rates at the date of the transactions. Monetary assets denominated in foreign currencies at the 

reporting date are retranslated to the functional at the spot exchange rate at that date. The foreign currency 

gain or loss on monetary items is the difference between amortised cost in the functional currency at the 

beginning of the year, adjusted for effective interest and payments during the year, and the amortised cost in 

foreign currency translated at the spot exchange rate at the end of the year.  

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated to the 

functional currency at the spot exchange rate at the date that the fair value determined. Non-monetary items 

that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the spot exchange rate at 

the date of the transaction.  

Foreign currency differences arising on retranslation are generally recognised in profit or loss. Net foreign 

exchange gains or losses include all foreign exchange differences related to spot transactions with settlement 

dates two business days after the trade date, although such transactions are recognised on the settlement date. 

4.3. Interest  

Under both IFRS 9 and IAS 39, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR) method for 

all financial instruments measured at amortized cost, financial instruments designated at FVPL. Interest 

income on interest bearing financial assets measured at FVOCI under IFRS 9, similarly to interest bearing 

financial assets classified as available-for-sale or held to maturity under IAS 39 are also recorded by using the 

EIR method. The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life 

of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount of the financial 

asset. 

The EIR (and therefore, the amortized cost of the asset) is calculated by taking into account any discount or 

premium on acquisition, fees and costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The Group recognizes interest 

income using a rate of return that represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected 

life of the loan. Hence, it recognizes the effect of potentially different interest rates charged at various stages, 

and other characteristics of the product life cycle (including prepayments, penalty interest and charges). 

If expectations regarding the cash flows on the financial asset are revised for reasons other than credit risk, 

the adjustment is booked as a positive or negative adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset in the 

consolidated statement of financial position with an increase or reduction in interest income. The adjustment 

is subsequently amortized through Income from banking operations in the consolidated statement of 

comprehensive income.  

Interest and similar income 

Policy from 1 January 2018 (IFRS 9): The Group calculates interest income by applying the EIR to the gross 

carrying amount of financial assets other than credit-impaired assets. When a financial asset becomes credit-

impaired (as set out in Note 35.1.2.1) and is, therefore, regarded as ‘Stage 3’, the Group calculates interest 

income by applying the effective interest rate to the net amortised cost of the financial asset.  
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4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

4.3 Interest (continued) 

If the financial assets cures (as outlined in Note 35.1.2.1) and is no longer credit-impaired, the Group reverts 

to calculating interest income on a gross basis. 

For purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) financial assets (as set out in Note 4.8.7.1), the Group 

calculates interest income by calculating the credit-adjusted EIR and applying that rate to the amortised cost 

of the asset. 

The credit-adjusted EIR is the interest rate that, at original recognition, discounts the estimated future cash 

flows (including credit losses) to the amortised cost of the POCI assets. The Group does not hold any POCI 

financial assets as at 31 December 2018 and 2017.  

Policy before 1 January 2018 (IAS 39): When the recorded value of a financial asset or group of similar 

financial assets has been reduced by an impairment loss, interest income continues to be recognised on gross 

amount using the rate of interest used to discount future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the 

impairment loss. 

4.4. Fees and commissions 

The Group earns fee and commission income from a diverse range of services it provides to its customers. 

Fees and commission income and expense that are integral to the effective interest rate on a financial asset or 

liability are included in the measurement of the effective interest rate.  

Fee income can be divided into the following three categories: 

 Fee income earned from services that are provided over a certain period of time 

Fees earned for the provision of services over a period of time are accrued over that period. These fees include 

commission account servicing fees, card and E-banking maintenance fees. 

 Fee income from providing financial services and earned on the execution of a transaction 

These fees and commission include fees from payment and transfer orders of the customers, and other banking 

services offered.  These fees or components of fees that are linked to a certain performance are recognised as 

the related services are performed. 

 Lending fees 

The fees included here include among other things fees charged for servicing a loan, a letter of credit or bank 

guarantee. 

Other fees and commission expense relate mainly to transaction and service fees, which are expensed as the 

services are received. 

4.5. Dividend income 

 Dividend income is recognised when the right to received payment is established. 

4.6. Leases  

4.6.1.  Lease payments 

Payments made under operating leases are recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of 

the lease. Lease incentives received are recognised as an integral part of the total lease expense, over the term 

of the lease. 

4.6.2.  Leased assets – lessor 

If the Group is the lessor in a lease agreement that transfers substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental 

to ownership of the asset to the lessee, than the arrangement is classified as finance lease. At the 

commencement of the lease term the Group records the financial lease as a receivable at an amount equal to 

the net investment in the lease and is presented within loans and advances (Note 4.10). Net investment in the 

lease equals to gross investment in the lease discounted by the interest rate implicit in the lease. The Group 

recognises finance income based on a pattern reflecting a constant periodic rate of return on the lessor's net 

investment outstanding in respect of the finance lease. 
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4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

4.7. Tax expense  

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss 

except to the extent that they relate to items recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.  

4.7.1. Current tax  

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using tax rates 

enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous 

years. 

4.7.2. Deferred tax  

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and 

liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not 

recognised for temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is 

not a business combination and that affects neither accounting, nor taxable profit or loss. 

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow the manner in which the 

Bank expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and 

liabilities. 

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when they 

reverse, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities 

and assets, and they relate to taxes levied by the same tax authority.  

Additional taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends by the Group are recognised at the same time as 

the liability to pay the related dividend is recognised. 

A deferred tax asset is recognised for unused tax losses, tax credits and deductible temporary differences to 

the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which it can be utilised. 

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer 

probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.  

4.7.3. Tax exposures  

In determining the amount of current and deferred tax, the Group takes into account the impact of uncertain 

tax positions and whether additional taxes and interest may be due. This assessment relies on estimates and 

assumptions and may involve a series of judgements about future events. New information may become 

available that causes the Group to change its judgement regarding the adequacy of existing tax liabilities; such 

changes to tax liabilities will impact tax expense in the period that such a determination is made. 

 

4.8. Financial instruments  

4.8.1. Date of recognition  

Financial assets and liabilities, with the exception of loans and advances to customers and balances due to 

customers, are initially recognised on trade date, i.e., the date the Group becomes a party to the contractual 

provisions of the instrument. This includes regular way trades: purchases or sales of financial assets that 

require delivery of assets within the time frame generally established by regulation or convention in the market 

place. Loans and advances to customers are recognised when funds are transferred to the customers’ accounts. 

The Group recognises balances due to customers when funds are transferred to the Group. 

4.8.2. Initial measurement of financial instruments  

 The classification of financial instruments at initial recognition depends on their contractual terms and the 

business model for managing the instruments, as described in Notes 4.8.4. Financial instruments are initially 

measured at fair value, except in the case of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at FVPL, 

transaction costs are added to, or subtracted from, this amount. Trade receivables are measured at the 

transaction price. When the fair value of financial instruments at initial recognition differs from the transaction 

price, the Group accounts for the Day 1 profit or loss, as described below. 
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4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

4.8 Financial instruments (continued) 

4.8.3. Day 1 profit or loss  

When the fair value of the instrument differs from the fair value at origination and the fair value is based on a 

valuation technique using only inputs observable in market transactions, the Group recognises the difference 

between the transaction price and the fair value in net trading income. In those cases where fair value is based 

on models for which some of the inputs are not observable, the difference between the transaction price and 

the fair value is deferred and is only recognised in profit or loss when the inputs become observable, or when 

the instrument is derecognised. 

4.8.4. Measurement categories of financial assets and liabilities  

Form 1 January 2018, the Group classifies all of its financial assets based on the business model for managing 

the assets and the asset’s contractual terms, measured at amortised cost (see Notes 4.9, 4.10 and 4.11). 

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated 

as at FVPL.   

 The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash 

flows; and  

 The contractual terms of financial asset give rise on the specified dates to cash flows that are solely 

payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding 

The Group may designate financial instruments at FVPL, if so doing eliminates or significantly reduces 

measurement or recognition inconsistencies.  

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, other than loan commitments and financial guaranties, as 

measured at amortised cost explained in Notes 4.17. 

4.8.4.1. Business model assessment  

The Group determines its business model at the level that best reflects how it manages groups of 

financial assets to achieve its business objective.  

The Group's business model is not assessed on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but at a higher level 

of aggregated portfolios and is based on observable factors such as: 

 How the performance of the business model and the financial assets held within that business model 

are evaluated and reported to the entity's key management personnel 

 The risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that 

business model) and, in particular, the way those risks are managed 

 How managers of the business are compensated (for example, whether the compensation is based on 

the fair value of the assets managed or on the contractual cash flows collected) 

 The expected frequency, value and timing of sales are also important aspects of the Group’s 

assessment 

The business model assessment is based on reasonably expected scenarios without taking 'worst case' or 

'stress case’ scenarios into account. If cash flows after initial recognition are realised in a way that is 

different from the Group's original expectations, the Group does not change the classification of the 

remaining financial assets held in that business model, but incorporates such information when assessing 

newly originated or newly purchased financial assets going forward. 
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4.          SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

4.8 Financial instruments (continued) 

4.8.4.    Measurement categories of financial assets and liabilities (continued) 

 

4.8.4.2. The SPPI test 

As a second step of its classification process the Group assesses the contractual terms of financial assets 

to identify whether they meet the SPPI test. 

‘Principal’ for the purpose of this test is defined as the fair value of the financial asset at initial recognition 

and may change over the life of the financial asset (for example, if there are repayments of principal or 

amortization of the premium/discount). 

The most significant elements of interest within a lending arrangement are typically the consideration for 

the time value of money and credit risk. To make the SPPI assessment, the Group applies judgment and 

considers relevant factors such as the currency in which the financial asset is denominated, and the period 

for which the interest rate is set. 

In contrast, contractual terms that introduce a more than de-minimis exposure to risks or volatility in the 

contractual cash flows that are unrelated to a basic lending arrangement do not give rise to contractual 

cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the amount outstanding. In such cases, the 

financial asset is required to be measured at FVPL. 

Before 1 January 2018, the Group classified its financial assets as loans and receivables (amortised cost), 

and held-to-maturity (amortised cost), see Notes 4.9, 4.10 and 4.11.  

Financial liabilities, other than loan commitments and financial guaranties, are measured at amortised 

cost, see Note 4.17. 

4.8.5. Reclassification 

If the business model under which the Group holds its financial assets changes, the financial assets affected 

are reclassified. The classification and measurement requirements related to the new category apply 

prospectively from the first day of the first reporting period following the change in the business model that 

result in reclassifying the Group’s financial assets. During the current financial year and previous accounting 

period there was no change in business model under which the Group holds its financial assets and therefore 

no reclassifications were made.  

4.8.6. Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities 

Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (IFRS 9) 

4.8.6.1. Derecognition due to substantial modification of terms and conditions 

The Group derecognises a financial asset, such as a loan to a customer, when the terms and conditions 

have been renegotiated to the extent that, substantially, it becomes a new loan, with the difference 

recognised as a derecognition gain or loss, to the extent that an impairment loss has not already been 

recorded. The newly recognised loans are classified as Stage 1 for ECL measurement purposes, unless the 

new loan is deemed to be POCI. 

When assessing whether or not to derecognise a loan to a customer, amongst others, the Group considers 

the following factors: 

• Change in currency of the loan 

• Introduction of an equity feature 

• Change in counterparty 

• If the modification is such that the instrument would no longer meet the SPPI criterion 

If the modification does not result in cash flows that are substantially different, the modification does not 

result in derecognition. Based on the change in cash flows discounted at the original EIR, the Group 

records a modification gain or loss, to the extent that an impairment loss has not already been recorded. 
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4.          SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

4.8 Financial instruments (continued) 

4.8.6 Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities (continued) 

4.8.6.2. Derecognition other than for substantial modification 

4.8.6.2.1. Financial assets 

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial 

assets) is derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset have expired. The 

Group also derecognises the financial asset if it has both transferred the financial asset and the transfer 

qualifies for derecognition. 

 

The Group has transferred the financial asset if, and only if, either: 

 The Group has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset; or 

 It retains the rights to the cash flows, but has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in 

full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass–through’ arrangement 

 

Pass-through arrangements are transactions whereby the Group retains the contractual rights to receive 

the cash flows of a financial asset (the 'original asset'), but assumes a contractual obligation to pay those 

cash flows to one or more entities (the 'eventual recipients'), when all of the following three conditions are 

met: 

 The Group has no obligation to pay amounts to the eventual recipients unless it has collected 

equivalent amounts from the original asset, excluding short-term advances with the right to full recovery 

of the amount lent plus accrued interest at market rates 

 The Group cannot sell or pledge the original asset other than as security to the eventual recipients 

 The Group has to remit any cash flows it collects on behalf of the eventual recipients without material 

delay. 

In addition, the Group is not entitled to reinvest such cash flows, except for investments in cash or cash 

equivalents including interest earned, during the period between the collection date and the date of 

required remittance to the eventual recipients. 

A transfer only qualifies for derecognition if either: 

 The Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset; or 

 The Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but 

has transferred control of the asset 

The Group considers control to be transferred if and only if, the transferee has the practical ability to sell 

the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party and is able to exercise that ability unilaterally and without 

imposing additional restrictions on the transfer. 

When the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards and has retained 

control of the asset, the asset continues to be recognised only to the extent of the Group’s continuing 

involvement, in which case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and 

the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has 

retained. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured 

at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration the 

Group could be required to pay. 

If continuing involvement takes the form of a written or purchased option (or both) on the transferred 

asset, the continuing involvement is measured at the value the Group would be required to pay upon 

repurchase.  
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4.          SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

4.8 Financial instruments (continued) 

4.8.6 Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities (continued) 

4.8.6.2.      Derecognition other than for substantial modification (continued) 

4.8.6.2.2. Financial liabilities 

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or 

expires. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially 

different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or 

modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. 

The difference between the carrying value of the original financial liability and the consideration paid is 

recognised in profit or loss. 

4.8.6.3. Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities (Policy applicable before 1 January 

2018 – IAS 39) 

4.8.6.3.1. Financial assets 

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial 

asset expire, or it transfers the financial asset. Transfer takes place when rights to contractual cash flows 

are transferred, or rights to contractual cash flows are retained but an entity enters into “pass through” 

arrangement. Any interest in such transferred financial assets that qualify for derecognition that is created 

or retained by the Group is recognised as a separate asset or liability. On derecognition of a financial asset, 

the difference between the carrying amount of the asset (or the carrying amount allocated to the portion 

of the asset transferred), and the sum of (i) the consideration received (including any new asset obtained 

less any new liability assumed) and (ii) any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other 

comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss.  

The Group enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its statement of financial 

position, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets or a 

portion of them. If all or substantially all risks and rewards are retained, then the transferred assets are not 

derecognised. Transfers of assets with retention of all or substantially all risks and rewards include, for 

example, repurchase transactions. 

4.8.6.3.2. Financial liabilities 

The Group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged, cancelled or 

expire. . Where there has been an exchange between an existing borrower and the lender of debt 

instruments with substantially different term, or has been a substantial modification of the terms of an 

existing financial liability, this transaction is accounted for an extinguishment of the original financial 

liability and the recognition of a new financial liability.  Terms are substantially different if the present 

value of the net cash flows under the new terms discounted using the original effective interest rate is at 

least 10 per cent different from the present value of the remaining cash flows under the original financial 

liability. A gain or loss from extinguishment of the original financial liability is recognised in profit or 

loss.    

4.8.7. Impairment of financial assets  

4.8.7.1. Overview of the ECL principles 

As described in Note 3.1.1.2, the adoption of IFRS 9 has fundamentally changed the Group’s loan loss 

impairment method by replacing IAS 39’s incurred loss approach with a forward-looking ECL approach. 

From 1 January 2018, the Group has been recording the allowance for expected credit losses for all loans 

and other debt financial assets not held at FVPL, together with loan commitments and financial guarantee 

contracts, in this section all referred to as ‘financial instruments’. Equity instruments are not subject to 

impairment under IFRS 9. 

The ECL allowance is based on the credit losses expected to arise over the life of the asset (the lifetime 

expected credit loss or LTECL), unless there has been no significant increase in credit risk since 

origination, in which case, the allowance is based on the 12 months’ expected credit loss (12mECL) as 

outlined in Note 4.8.7.2. The Group’s policies for determining if there has been a significant increase in 

credit risk are set out in Note 35.1.2.2. 
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4.          SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

4.8 Financial instruments (continued) 

4.8.7 Impairment of financial assets (continued) 

4.8.7.1 Overview of the ECL principles (continued) 

 

With the exception of POCI financial assets (which are considered below), ECLs are required to be 

measured through a loss allowance at an amount equal to:  

 12- month ECL, i.e. lifetime ECL that result from those default events on the financial instruments 

that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date; or  

 LTECL, i.e. lifetime ECL that result from all possible default events over the life of the financial 

instrument.  

The Group measures loss allowances at an amount equal to LTECL, except for the following, for which 

they are measured as 12- month ECL: 

 Investment securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and 

 Other financial instruments on which credit risk has not significantly increased since their initial 

recognition. 

Both LTECLs and 12mECLs are calculated on either an individual basis or a collective basis, depending 

on the nature of the underlying portfolio of financial instruments. The Group’s policy for grouping 

financial assets measured on a collective basis is explained in Note 35.1.3.1. 

 

The Group has established a policy to perform an assessment, at the end of each reporting period, of 

whether a financial instrument’s credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition, by 

considering the change in the risk of default occurring over the remaining life of the financial instrument. 

This is further explained in Note 35.1.3. 

Based on the above process, the Group groups its loans into Stage 1, Stage 2, Stage 3 and POCI, as 

described below: 

 Stage 1: When loans are first recognised, the Group recognises an allowance based on 12mECLs. 

Stage 1 loans also include facilities where the credit risk has improved and the loan has been reclassified 

from Stage 2. 

 Stage 2: When a loan has shown a significant increase in credit risk since origination, the Group 

records an allowance for the LTECLs. Stage 2 loans also include facilities, where the credit risk has 

improved and the loan has been reclassified from Stage 3. 

 Stage 3: Loans considered credit-impaired (as outlined in Note 35.1.2.1).The Group records an 

allowance for the LTECLs. 

 POCI: Purchased or originated credit impaired (POCI) assets are financial assets that are credit 

impaired on initial recognition. POCI assets are recorded at fair value at original recognition and interest 

income is subsequently recognised based on a credit-adjusted EIR. ECLs are only recognised or released 

to the extent that there is a subsequent change in the expected credit losses. 

For financial assets for which the Group has no reasonable expectations of recovering either the entire 

outstanding amount, or a proportion thereof, the gross carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced. 

This is considered a (partial) de-recognition of the financial asset. 

4.8.7.2. The calculation of ECLs 

The Group calculates ECLs based on probability-weighted scenarios to measure the expected cash 

shortfalls, discounted at an approximation to the EIR. A cash shortfall is the difference between the cash 

flows that are due to an entity in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the entity expects to 

receive. 

The mechanics of the ECL calculations are outlined below and the key elements are, as follows: 

 PD - The Probability of Default is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon. 

A default may only happen at a certain time over the assessed period, if the facility has not been previously 

derecognised and is still in the portfolio. The concept of PDs is further explained in Note 35.1.3.2. 
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4.          SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

4.8 Financial instruments (continued) 

4.8.7 Impairment of financial assets (continued) 

4.8.7.2 The calculation of ECLs (continued) 

 EAD - The Exposure at Default is an estimate of the exposure at a future default date, taking into 

account expected changes in the exposure after the reporting date, including repayments of principal and 

interest, whether scheduled by contract or otherwise, expected drawdowns on committed facilities, and 

accrued interest from missed payments. The EAD is further explained in Note 35.1.3.2. 

 LGD - The Loss Given Default is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where a default occurs at 

a given time. It is based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due and those that the lender 

would expect to receive, including from the realisation of any collateral. It is usually expressed as a 

percentage of the EAD. The LGD is further explained in Note 35.1.3.2. 

 

These parameters are derived from internally developed statistical models and other historical data. They 

are adjusted to reflect forward looking information as described in Note 35.1.3.2. 

Impairment losses and releases are accounted for and disclosed separately from modification losses or 

gains that are accounted for as an adjustment of the financial asset’s gross carrying value. 

The mechanics of the ECL method are summarised below: 

 Stage 1: The 12mECL is calculated as the portion of LTECLs that represent the ECLs that result from 

default events on a financial instrument that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date. 

The Group calculates the 12mECL allowance based on the expectation of a default occurring in the 12 

months following the reporting date. These expected 12-month default probability is applied to a forecast 

EAD and multiplied by the expected LGD.  

 Stage 2: When a loan has shown a significant increase in credit risk since origination, the Group 

records an allowance for the LTECLs. The mechanics are similar to those explained above, but PDs and 

LGDs are estimated over the lifetime of the instrument. The expected cash shortfalls are discounted by an 

approximation to the original EIR. 

 Stage 3: For loans considered credit-impaired (as defined in Note 35.1.2.1), the Group recognises the 

lifetime expected credit losses for these loans. The method is similar to that for Stage 2 assets, with the 

PD set at 100%. This calculation is made for three scenarios (a base case, an upside and a downside). 

 POCI:  POCI assets are financial assets that are credit impaired on initial recognition. The Group only 

recognises the cumulative changes in lifetime ECLs since initial recognition, discounted by the credit 

adjusted EIR. 

 Loan commitments and letters of credit: When estimating LTECLs for undrawn loan commitments, 

the Group estimates the expected portion of the loan commitment that will be drawn down over its 

expected life. The ECL is then based on the present value of the expected shortfalls in cash flows if the 

loan is drawn down. The expected cash shortfalls are discounted at an approximation to the expected EIR 

on the loan. 

For credit cards and revolving facilities that include both a loan and an undrawn commitment, ECLs are 

calculated and presented together with the loan. For loan commitments and letters of credit, the ECL is 

recognised within Provisions. 

 Financial guarantee contracts: The Group’s liability under each guarantee is measured at the higher 

of the amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation recognised in the income statement, and 

the ECL provision. For this purpose, the Group estimates ECLs based on the present value of the expected 

payments to reimburse the holder for a credit loss that it incurs. The shortfalls are discounted by an 

approximation to the risk-adjusted interest rate relevant to the exposure. The ECLs related to financial 

guarantee contracts are recognised within Provisions. 
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4.          SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

4.8 Financial instruments (continued) 

4.8.7 Impairment of financial assets (continued) 

4.8.7.3. Forward looking information 

In its ECL models, the Group relies on a broad range of forward looking information as economic inputs, 

such as: 

 GDP growth 

 Unemployment rates 

 Inflation 

The inputs and models used for calculating ECLs may not always capture all characteristics of the market 

at the date of the financial statements. To reflect this, qualitative adjustments or overlays are occasionally 

made as temporary adjustments when such differences are significantly material. Detailed information 

about these inputs and sensitivity analysis are provided in Note 35.1.3.1.3. 

4.8.7.4. Presentation of allowance for ECL in the statement of financial position 

Loss allowances for ECL are presented in the statement of financial position of the Group as follows: 

 Financial assets measured at amortised cost: as a deduction from the gross carrying amount of the 

asset; 

 Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: generally as a provision; 

 Where a financial instrument includes both a drawn down and an undrawn component, and the Group 

cannot identify the ECL on the loan commitment component separately from those on the drawn 

component: the Group presents a combined loss allowance for both components. The combined 

amount is presented as a deduction from teh gross carrying amount of the drawn down component. 

4.8.7.5. Identification and measurement of impairment (Policy before 1 January 2018) 

At each reporting date the Group assesses whether there is objective evidence that financial assets not 

carried at fair value through profit or loss are impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is 

impaired when objective evidence demonstrates that a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition 

of the asset(s), and that the loss event has an impact on the future cash flows of the asset(s) that can be 

estimated reliably.  

Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired can include significant financial difficulty of the 

borrower or issuer, default or delinquency by a borrower, restructuring of a loan by the Group on terms 

that the Group would not otherwise consider, indications that a borrower or issuer will enter bankruptcy, 

the disappearance of an active market for a security, or other observable data relating to a group of assets 

such as adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers or issuers in the group, or economic 

conditions that correlate with defaults in the group.   

The Group considers evidence of impairment for loans and advances and held-to-maturity investment 

securities at both a specific asset and collective level. All individually significant loans and advances and 

held-to-maturity investment securities are assessed for specific impairment. Those found not to be 

specifically impaired are then collectively assessed for any impairment that has been incurred but not yet 

reported. Loans and advances and held-to-maturity investment securities that are not individually 

significant are collectively assessed for impairment by grouping together loans and advances and held-

to-maturity investment securities with similar risk characteristics. 

For the purpose of a collective evaluation of impairment, financial assets are grouped on the basis of 

similar credit risk characteristics (type and amount of the loan). Based on historical data for each of these 

groups a loss factor is calculated. These expected loss factors are adjusted for management’s judgment 

as to whether current economic and credit conditions are such that the actual losses are likely to be greater 

or less than suggested by historical trends, and then they are applied to estimate impairment loss on each 

group. Default rates, loss rates and the expected timing of future recoveries are regularly benchmarked 

against actual outcomes to ensure that they remain appropriate.  
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4.          SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

4.8 Financial instruments (continued) 

4.8.7 Impairment of financial assets (continued) 

4.8.7.5 Identification and measurement of impairment (Policy before 1 January 2018) (continued) 

 

Impairment losses on assets measured at amortised cost are calculated as the difference between the 

carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original 

effective interest rate. 

If the terms of a financial asset are renegotiated or modified or an existing financial asset is replaced with 

a new one due to financial difficulties of the borrower then an assessment is made whether the financial 

asset should be derecognised. If the cash flows of the renegotiated asset are substantially different, then 

the contractual rights to cash flows from the original financial asset are deemed to have expired. In this 

case the original financial asset is derecognised and the new financial asset is recognised at fair value. 

The impairment loss is measured as follows:  

 If the expected restructuring does not result in derecognition of the existing asset, the estimated cash 

flows arising from the modified financial asset are included in the measurement of the existing asset 

based on their expected timing and amounts discounted at the original effective interest rate of the 

existing financial asset.  

 If the expected restructuring results in derecognition of the existing asset, then the expected fair value 

of the new asset is treated as the final cash flow from the existing financial asset at the time of its 

derecognition. This amount is discounted from the expected date of derecognition to the reporting date 

using the original effective interest rate of the existing financial asset.  

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss and reflected in an allowance account against loans 

and advances or held-to-maturity investment securities. Interest on the impaired assets continues to be 

recognised through the unwinding of the discount. When an event occurring after the impairment was 

recognised causes the amount of impairment loss to decrease, the decrease in impairment loss is reversed 

through profit or loss. 

4.8.8. Offsetting  

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial position 

when, and only when, the Group has a legal right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on 

a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.  

Income and expenses are presented on a net basis only when permitted under IFRS, or for gains and losses 

arising from a group of similar transactions such as in the Group’s trading activity. 

4.8.9. Write offs 

The Group’s accounting policy under IFRS 9 remains the same as it was under IAS 39. Financial assets are 

written off either partially or in their entirety only when the Group has stopped pursuing the recovery. If the 

amount to be written off is greater than the accumulated loss allowance, the difference is first treated as an 

addition to the allowance that is then applied against the gross carrying amount.  

4.8.10. Amortised cost measurement  

The amortised cost of a financial asset or liability is the amount at which the financial asset or liability is 

measured at initial recognition, minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using 

the effective interest method of any difference between the initial amount recognised and the maturity amount, 

minus any reduction for impairment. 

4.8.11. Fair value measurement  

“Fair value” is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 

transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its absence, the most 

advantageous market to which the Group has access at that date.  

In order to show how fair value have been derived, financial instruments are reclassified based on a hierarchy 

of valuation techniques, as summarised below: 
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4.          SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

4.8 Financial instruments (continued) 

4.8.11 Fair value measurement (continued) 

 Level 1: Those where the inputs used in the valuation are unadjusted quoted prices from active markets 

for identical assets or liabilities that the Group has access to at the measurement date.  

 Level 2: This category includes instruments valued using: quoted market prices in active markets for 

similar instruments; quoted prices for similar instruments in markets that are considered less than active; or 

other valuation techniques where all significant inputs are directly or indirectly observable from market data. 

 Level 3: This category includes all instruments where the valuation technique includes inputs not based 

on observable data and the unobservable inputs could have a significant effect on the instrument’s valuation. 

This category includes instruments that are valued based on quoted prices for similar instruments where 

significant unobservable adjustments or assumptions are required to reflect differences between the 

instruments. 
When available, the Group measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price in an active market 

for that instrument. A market is regarded as active if transactions for the asset or liability take place with 

sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis. If there is no quoted price 

in an active market, then the Group uses valuation techniques that maximise the use of relevant observable 

inputs and minimise the use of unobservable inputs. The chosen valuation technique incorporates all of the 

factors that market participants would take into account in pricing a transaction.  

The estimation of the fair value is disclosed in Note 36.  

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument at initial recognition is normally the transaction 

price – i.e. the fair value of the consideration given or received. If the Group determines that the fair value at 

initial recognition differs from the transaction price and the fair value is evidenced neither by a quoted price 

in an active market for an identical asset or liability nor based on a valuation technique that uses only data 

from observable markets, then the financial instrument is initially measured at fair value, adjusted to defer the 

difference between the fair value at initial recognition and the transaction price. Subsequently, that difference 

is recognised in profit or loss on an appropriate basis over the life of the instrument but no later than when the 

valuation is wholly supported by observable market data or the transaction is closed out.  

If an asset or a liability measured at fair value has a bid price and an ask price, then the Group measures assets 

and long positions at the bid price and liabilities and short positions at the ask price.  The fair value of a 

demand deposit is not less than the amount payable on demand, discounted from the first date on which the 

amount could be required to be paid. The Group recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy 

as of the end of the reporting period during which the change has occurred.  

4.9. Cash and cash equivalents  

Cash and cash equivalents include notes and coins on hand, unrestricted balances held with Central Bank of 

Albania and highly liquid financial assets with original maturities of three months or less from the acquisition 

date that are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in their fair value, and are used by the Group in the 

management of its short-term commitments.  

Cash and cash equivalents are carried at amortised cost in the statement of financial position. 

4.10. Due from banks and Loans and advances to customers 

From 1 January 2018, “Due from banks” and “Loans and advances to customers” in the statement of financial 

position, include  

 loans and advances measured at amortised cost (Note 4.8.4). They are initially measured at 

fair value plus incremental direct transaction costs, and subsequently at their amortised cost 

using the effective interest method. 

 lease receivables in which the Group is the lessor (Note 4.6.2) 
When the Group purchases a financial asset and simultaneously enters into an agreement to resell the asset 

(or a substantially similar asset) at a fixed price on a future date (reverse repo or stock borrowing), the 

arrangement is accounted for as a loan or advance, and the underlying asset is not recognised in the Group’s 

financial statements.   
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4.          SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

4.10 Due from banks and Loans and advances to customers (continued) 

Before 1 January 2018, “Due from banks” and “Loans and advances to customers” were non-derivative 

financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that were not quoted in an active market and that the 

Group did not intend to sell immediately or in the near term. “Due from banks” and “Loans and advances” 

were classified as loans and receivables. Loans and advances to customers included: 

 those classified as loans and receivable; and 

 finance lease receivable 

Loans and advances were initially measured at fair value plus incremental direct transaction costs, and 

subsequently measured at their amortised cost using the effective interest method. Loans and advances also 

included finance lease receivable in which the Group was the lessor (see Note 3.5.2). When the Group 

purchased a financial asset and simultaneously entered into an agreement to resell the asset (or a substantially 

similar asset) at a fixed price on a future date (reverse repo), the arrangement was accounted for as a loan or 

advance, and the underlying asset was not recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial statements. 

4.11. Investment securities  

From 1 January 2018, Investment securities includes debt investment securities measured at amortised cost 

(see Note 4.8.4). Investment securities are initially measured at fair value plus incremental direct transaction 

costs, and subsequently at their amortised cost using the effective interest method. 

Before 1 January 2018, Investment securities were initially measured at fair value plus incremental direct 

transaction costs, and subsequently accounted as held to maturity. 

Held-to-maturity investments were non-derivative assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed 

maturity that the Group had the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity.  

Held-to-maturity investments were carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any 

impairment losses (see Note 4.8.7.4). A sale or reclassification of a more than insignificant amount of held-

to-maturity investments would result in the reclassification of all held-to-maturity investments to AFS 

category and would prevent the Group from classifying investment securities as held to maturity for the current 

and the following two financial years. However, sales and reclassifications in any of the following 

circumstances would not trigger a reclassification:  

 sales or reclassifications that are so close to maturity that changes in the market rate of interest would not 

have a significant effect on the financial asset’s fair value;  

 sales or reclassifications after the Group has collected substantially all of the asset’s original principal; and  

 sales or reclassifications attributable to non-recurring isolated events beyond the Group’s control that 

could not have been reasonably anticipated. 

4.12. Property and equipment  

4.12.1 Recognition and measurement  

Items of property and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated 

impairment losses.  

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-

constructed assets includes the cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to 

bringing the assets to a working condition for their intended use, and when the Group has an obligation to 

remove the asset or restore the site, an estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the items and 

restoring the site on which they are located. Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the 

related equipment is capitalised as part of that equipment.  

When parts of an item of property or equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as 

separate items (major components) of property and equipment.  

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property and equipment (calculated as the difference between the 

net proceeds from disposal and the carrying amount of the item) is recognised within other income/loss in 

profit or loss of the period.. 
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4.          SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

4.12 Property and equipment (continued) 

4.12.2 Subsequent costs  

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it is probable that the future economic benefits of the 

expenditure will flow to the Group. Ongoing repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred.  

4.12.3 Depreciation  

Items of property and equipment are depreciated from the date they are available for use or, in respect of self-

constructed assets, from the date that the assets are completed and ready for use. Depreciation is calculated to 

write off the cost of items of property and equipment less their estimated residual values over their estimated 

useful lives. Depreciation is recognised in profit or loss. 

Depreciation is calculated using the reducing balance method at the following annual rates: 

 Rate per annum 

Computers 25% 

Office furniture 20% 

Electronic equipment 20% 

Fixtures and fittings 20% 

 

Leasehold improvements are depreciated using the straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and 

their useful lives. The estimated useful lives of the leasehold improvements range from 3 to 15 years. Work 

in progress is not depreciated. Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each 

reporting date and adjusted if appropriate. 

4.13. Intangible assets  

Software acquired by the Group is measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated 

impairment losses. Subsequent expenditure on software assets is capitalised only when it increases the future 

economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is expensed as 

incurred.  

Amortisation is recognised in profit or loss over the estimated useful life of the asset, from the date that it is 

available for use. Work in progress is not amortised. 

Software is amortised using the reducing balance method with an annual amortization rate of 25%, while other 

intangible assets, including licenses and fees paid for access to electronic systems and services used by the 

Group, are amortized using the straight line method with an annual rate of 15%. 

Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if 

appropriate. 

4.14. Investment property 

Investment property is property held either to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or for both, but 

not for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes. The Group holds 

investment property as a consequence of acquisition through the enforcement of security over loans and 

advances. Investment property is initially measured at cost and subsequently at fair value, with any change 

therein recognised in profit or loss within other income.  

Any gain or loss on disposal of an investment property (calculated as the difference between the net proceeds 

from disposal and the carrying amount of the item) is recognised in profit or loss. When the use of a property 

changes such that it is reclassified as property and equipment or non-current assets held for sale, its fair value 

at the date of reclassification becomes its cost or carrying amount for subsequent accounting.  

4.15. Inventories 

Inventories are initially measured at cost, and subsequently at the lower of cost and net realisable value (NRV). 

Cost comprises all cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to 

their present location. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less 

the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. 

Any write-down to NRV is recognised as an expense in the period in which write-down occurs. Any reversal 

is recognised in profit and loss statement in the period in which reversal occurs.  
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

4.15 Inventories (continued) 

The Group holds inventories in the form of consumption inventories and as repossessed collaterals. 

Consumption inventories are materials bought in order to be consumed in the rendering of services 

Repossessed collaterals are properties acquired through enforcement of security over loans and advances to 

customers. For a transfer from investment property carried at fair value to inventories, the property’s deemed 

cost for subsequent accounting shall be its fair value at the date of change in use. 

4.16. Impairment of non-financial assets  

The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financial assets, other than deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each 

reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then 

the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an 

asset exceeds its recoverable amount.  

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In 

assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax 

discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the 

asset.  

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the 

asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of 

depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised. 

4.17. Deposits, repurchase agreements, and subordinated liabilities  

Deposits, repurchase agreements and subordinated liabilities are the Group’s sources of debt funding.  

When the Group sells a financial asset and simultaneously enters into an agreement to repurchase the asset (or 

a similar asset) at a fixed price on a future date (repo), the arrangement is accounted for as a financial liability, 

and the underlying asset continues to be recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial statements. 

4.18. Provisions  

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation 

that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle 

the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that 

reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to 

the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost. 

4.19. Financial Guarantees 

In the ordinary course of the business, the Group issues financial guarantees, consisting of letters of credit, 

guarantees and acceptances.  

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the financial statements (within Provisions) at fair value, being 

the premium received. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group’s liability under each guarantee is 

measured at the higher of the amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation recognised in the 

income statement, and – under IAS 39 – the best estimate of expenditure required to settle any financial 

obligation arising as a result of the guarantee, or – under IFRS 9 – an ECL provision as set out in Note 33. 

The premium received is recognised in the income statement in Fees and commission income on a straight 

line basis over the life of the guarantee. 

Undrawn loan commitments and letters of credits are commitments under which, over the duration of the 

commitment, the Group is required to provide a loan with pre-specified terms to the customer. Similar to 

financial guarantee contracts, under IAS 39, a provision was made if they were an onerous contract but, from 

1 January 2018, these contracts are in the scope of the ECL requirements. 

The nominal contractual value of financial guarantees, letters of credit and undrawn loan commitments, where 

the loan agreed to be provided is on market terms, are not recorded on in the statement of financial position. 

The nominal values of these instruments together with the corresponding ECLs are disclosed in Note 33. 
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

4.20. Employee benefits 

Defined contribution plans 

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution pension plans are recognised as an expense in profit or 

loss when they are due. The Group makes compulsory social security contributions that provide pension 

benefits for employees upon retirement. The local authorities are responsible for providing the legally set 

minimum threshold for pensions in Albania under a defined contribution pension plan. 

Short-term benefits 

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the 

related service is provided. A provision is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under short-term 

cash bonus or profit-sharing plans if the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount 

as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably. 

4.21. Adoption of new or revised standards and interpretations 

The following new amendments to the existing standards issued by the International Accounting Standards 

Board (IASB) are effective for the current reporting period, but their adoption has not led to any changes in 

the Group’s accounting policies: 

 Amendments to IFRS 2 “Share-based Payment” - Classification and Measurement of Share-based 

Payment Transactions (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018), 

 Amendments to IFRS 4 “Insurance Contracts” - Applying IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” with IFRS 

4 “Insurance Contracts” (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 or when IFRS 

9 “Financial Instruments” is applied first time), 

 Amendments to IAS 40 “Investment Property” - Transfers of Investment Property (effective for annual 

periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018), 

 IFRIC 22 “Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration” (effective for annual periods 

beginning on or after 1 January 2018), 

 Amendments to IFRS 1 and IAS 28 due to “Improvements to IFRSs (cycle 2014-2016)” resulting from 

the annual improvement project of IFRS (IFRS 1, IFRS 12 and IAS 28) primarily with a view to removing 

inconsistencies and clarifying wording (amendments to IFRS 1 and IAS 28 are applied for annual periods 

beginning on or after 1 January 2018). 

4.22. Impact of standards issued but not yet effective 

The new and amended standards and interpretations that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of 

issuance of the Group’s financial statements are disclosed below. The Group intends to adopt these new and 

amended standards and interpretations, if applicable, when they become effective. 

IFRS 16 Leases 

IFRS 16 was issued in January 2016 and it replaces IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining whether an 

Arrangement contains a Lease, SIC-15 Operating Leases-Incentives and SIC-27 Evaluating the Substance of 

Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease.  

IFRS 16 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and 

requires lessees to account for all leases under a single on-balance sheet model similar to the accounting for 

finance leases under IAS 17.  

The standard includes two recognition exemptions for lessees – leases of ’low-value’ assets (e.g., personal 

computers) and short-term leases (i.e., leases with a lease term of 12 months or less). At the commencement 

date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to make lease payments (i.e., the lease liability) and an asset 

representing the right to use the underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). Lessees 

will be required to separately recognise the interest expense on the lease liability and the depreciation expense 

on the right-of-use asset. 

Lessees will be also required to re-measure the lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events (e.g., a 

change in the lease term, a change in future lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used 

to determine those payments). The lessee will generally recognise the amount of the re-measurement of the 

lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset. 
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

4.22 Impact of standards issued but not yet effective (continued) 

Lessor accounting under IFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from today’s accounting under IAS 17. Lessors 

will continue to classify all leases using the same classification principle as in IAS 17 and distinguish between 

two types of leases: operating and finance leases. 

IFRS 16, which is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019, requires lessees and 

lessors to make more extensive disclosures than under IAS 17. 

Transition to IFRS 16 

The Group plans to adopt IFRS 16 using the modified retrospective approach for all leases previously 

classified as operating leases. As per this approach, the Group will measure the lease liability at the present 

value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the rates at the leasing sector for similar assets and 

the right to use asset will be recognised at an amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of 

any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to that lease recognised in the statement of financial position 

immediately before the date of initial application.  

The Group will elect to use the exemptions proposed by the standard on lease contracts for which the lease 

terms ends within 12 months as of the date of initial application, and lease contracts for which the underlying 

asset is of low value. The Group has leases of cars and some of its branches with lease terms that end within 

12 months as of the date of initial application and certain office equipment (i.e. printing and photocopying 

machines) that are considered of low value. 

To the date these financial statements are issued, the Group has arrived to an approximate amount of the 

impact of IFRS 16. The actual impact of adopting the standard on 1 January 2019 may change because the 

new accounting policies are subject to change until the Group presents its first financial statements that include 

the date of initial application. 

As at 1 January 2019, the Group has made an initial assessment to the potential impact of implementing IFRS 

16, and estimated that the liability and the right-to-use asset will fall into the range of LEK 750,000-800,000 

thousand, dependant on the fact that the Group is still to clear minor estimates and assumptions.  

For the following new standards and interpretations, the Group anticipates that their adoption will have no 

material impact on the financial statements of the Group in the period of initial application and are not expected 

to have an impact over the financial statements of the Group:  

 IFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts” (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021), 

 IFRIC 23 “Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments” (effective for annual periods beginning on or 

after 1 January 2019). 

 Amendments to IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” - Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation 

(effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019), 

 Amendments to IFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial Statements” and IAS 28 “Investments in 

Associates and Joint Ventures” - Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate 

or Joint Venture and further amendments (effective date deferred indefinitely until the research project on 

the equity method has been concluded), 

 Amendments to IAS 19: Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement - accounting when a plan 

amendment, curtailment or settlement occurs during a reporting period (effective for annual periods 

beginning on or after 1 January 2019), 

 Amendments to IAS 28 “Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures” - Long-term Interests in 

Associates and Joint Ventures (effective for annual periods beginning on or after  

1 January 2019), 

 Conceptual Framework in IFRS standards - For preparers who develop accounting policies based on 

the Conceptual Framework (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020), 
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

4.22 Impact of standards issued but not yet effective (continued) 

 IFRS 3: Business Combinations (Amendments) - amendments in Definition of a Business (effective 

for business combinations for which the acquisition date is in the first annual reporting period beginning 

on or after 1 January 2020 and to asset acquisitions that occur on or after the beginning of that period, 

with earlier application permitted), 

 IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting 

Estimates and Errors: Definition of ‘material’ (Amendments) – clarify the definition of material and 

how it should be applied  (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020 with earlier 

application permitted) 

 Amendments to various standards due to “Improvements to IFRSs (cycle 2015-2017)” resulting from 

the annual improvement project of IFRS, which become effective for annual periods beginning on or after 

1 January 2019, and including:  

 

o IFRS 3 Business Combinations  

o IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements 

o IAS 12 Income Taxes  

o IAS 23 Borrowing costs. 

 

5. USE OF ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS 

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to 

make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported 

amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses and the accompanying disclosures, as well as the 

disclosure of contingent liabilities. Actual results may differ from these estimates.  

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Existing circumstances and 

assumptions about future developments may change due to circumstances beyond the Group’s control and are 

reflected in the assumptions if and when they occur. 

Management discusses with the Audit Committee the development, selection and disclosure of the Group’s 

critical accounting policies and their application, and assumptions made relating to major estimation 

uncertainties. Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of 

resulting in a material adjustment within the next financial year and about critical judgements in applying 

accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated 

financial statements is disclosed below.  

These disclosures supplement the commentary on financial risk management (see Note 35).  

5.1. Business model assessment 

 Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the SPPI and the business model 

test. The Group determines the business model at a level that reflects how groups of financial assets are 

managed together to achieve a particular business objective. This assessment includes judgement reflecting 

all relevant evidence including how the performance of the asset is evaluated and their performance measured, 

the risk that affect the performance of the assets and how these are managed and how the managers of the 

asset are compensated. The Group monitors financial assets measured at amortised cost that are derecognised 

prior to their maturity to understand the reason of their disposal and whether the reasons are consistent with 

the objective of the business for which the asset is held. Monitoring is part of the Group's continuous 

assessment of whether the business model for which the remaining financial assets are held, continues to be 

appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether there has been a change in business model and so prospectively 

change to the classification of those assets. 
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5. USE OF ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

5.2. Impairment  

The measurement of impairment losses both under IFRS 9 and IAS 39 across all categories of financial assets 

requires judgement, in particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows and collateral 

values when determining impairment losses and the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk. These 

estimates are driven by a number of factors, changes in which can result in different levels of allowances.  

The Group’s ECL calculations are outputs of complex models with a number of underlying assumptions 

regarding the choice of variable inputs and their interdependencies. Elements of the ECL models that are 

considered accounting judgements and estimates include: 

 The Group’s criteria for assessing if there has been a significant increase in credit risk and so allowances 

for financial assets should be measured on a LTECL basis and the qualitative assessment 

 The segmentation of financial assets when their ECL is assessed on a collective basis 

 Development of ECL models, including the various formulas and the choice of inputs 

 Determination of associations between macroeconomic scenarios and, economic inputs, such as GDP 

levels and collateral values, and the effect on PDs, EADs and LGDs 

 Selection of forward-looking macroeconomic scenarios to derive the economic inputs into the ECL 

models 

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions related to impairment losses on financial assets 

before 1 January 2018, are disclosed below. 

Each impaired asset is assessed on its merits, and the workout strategy and estimate of cash flows considered 

recoverable are independently approved by the Credit Committee function.  

A collective component of the total allowance is established for groups of homogeneous loans that are not 

individually impaired.  

Each impaired asset is assessed on its merits, and the workout strategy and estimate of cash flows considered 

recoverable are independently approved by the Credit Committee function.  

A collective component of the total allowance is established for groups of homogeneous loans that are not 

individually impaired.  

Collective allowance for groups of assets that are not considered individually significant and those that are 

individually significant but that were not found to be individually impaired cover credit losses inherent in 

portfolios of loans and advances, and held-to-maturity investment securities with similar credit risk 

characteristics when there is objective evidence to suggest that they contain impaired loans and advances, and 

held-to-maturity investment securities, but the individual impaired items cannot yet be identified. In assessing 

the need for collective loss allowances, management considers factors such as credit quality, portfolio size, 

concentrations and economic factors. In order to estimate the required allowance, assumptions are made to 

define the way inherent losses are modelled and to determine the required input parameters, based on historical 

experience and current economic conditions. The accuracy of the allowances depends on the estimates of 

future cash flows for specific counterparty allowances and the model assumptions and parameters used in 

determining collective allowances. 

An assessment as to whether an investment in sovereign debt is impaired may be complex. In making such an 

assessment, the Group considers the market’s assessment of creditworthiness as reflected in the bond yields, 

the rating agencies’ assessments of the creditworthiness, the ability of the country to access the capital markets 

for new debt issuance, the probability of debt being restructured resulting in holders suffering losses through 

voluntary or mandatory debt forgiveness and the  international support mechanisms in place to provide the 

necessary support as ‘lender of last resort’ to that country as well as the intention, reflected in public 

statements, about governments’ and agencies’ willingness to use those mechanisms. This includes an 

assessment as to the depth of those mechanisms and, irrespective of the political intent, whether there is the 

capacity to fulfil the required criteria. 
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5. USE OF ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

5.3.    Fair value 

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a 

liability in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement date 

under the current market conditions (i.e. an exit price) regardless of whether that price is directly observable  

or estimated using another valuation technique. When the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities 

recorded in the statement of financial position cannot be derived from active markets, they are determined 

using a variety of valuation techniques that include the use of valuation models as described in Note 4.8.11. 

The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, 

estimation is required in establishing fair values. For financial instruments that trade infrequently and have 

little price transparency, fair value is less objective, and requires varying degrees of judgement depending on 

liquidity, concentration, uncertainty of market factors, pricing assumptions and other risks affecting the 

specific instrument.  

5.4. Going concern 

Management prepared these consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis. In making this 

judgement management considered the Group’s financial position, current intentions, profitability of 

operations and access to financial resources, and analysed the impact of the recent financial crisis on future 

operations of the Group.  

6. CONSOLIDATION 

The table below shows Bank's and Subsidiary's main figures before consolidation: 

 

 

As at 

31 December 2018 

 As at 

31 December 2017 

 Bank Subsidiary  Bank Subsidiary 

Total assets 51,374,187 1,669,500  46,487,052 1,214,189 

Total liabilities 46,924,441 1,357,593  42,612,723 882,105 

Shareholder's equity  4,449,746 311,907  3,874,329 332,084 

Total banking income 2,090,772 79,073  1,939,828 93,046 

Profit before tax 650,505 38,651  406,752 43,998 

 

7. TRANSITION DISCLOSURES  

The following pages set out the impact of adopting IFRS 9 on the statement of financial position, and retained 

earnings including the effect of replacing IAS 39’s incurred credit loss calculations with IFRS 9’s ECLs. 

The table below reconciles the aggregate opening loan loss provision allowances under IAS 39 or IAS 37 as 

at 31 December 2017 to the ECL allowances under IFRS 9 as at 01 January 2018.  

 

  31 December 2017 

 Impact from First 

Time Adoption 

 

1 January 2018 

Impairment allowance for:  

 Under 

IAS39/IAS37  

 

 Re-measurement  

  Under  

IFRS 9  

Balances with Central Bank                -                   3,156                3,156  

Due from banks                -                   10,743        10,743  

Investment securities                 -                   45,716      45,716  

Loans and advances to customers        1,674,643               (88,906)    1,585,737  

Other assets – Sundry debtors            53,020   -     53,020  

Financial Guarantees              8,500                   1,588                10,088  

Letters of credit for customers                -                   1,570                1,570  

Total   1,736,163              (26,133)    1,710,030 
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7. TRANSITION DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED) 

A reconciliation between the carrying amounts under IAS 39 to the balances reported under IFRS9 as of 1 January 2018 is as follows: 

 

 31 December 2017 

Impact from First Time Adoption 

IFRS 9 1 January 2018 

  IAS 39 measurement   Re- 

classification  

 Re-measurement   IFRS 9 measurement  

Financial assets  Category   Amount   ECL   Amount  Category 

      
 

Cash  and balances with Central Bank L&R 5,300,462 - (3,156) 5,297,306 AC 

Due from banks L&R 3,960,261 - (10,743) 3,949,518 AC 

Investment securities at amortised cost  N/A 16,784,123 (45,716) 16,738,407 AC 

  From: Treasury Bills held-to-maturity   1,051,668   
 

  From: Bonds held-to-maturity   15,732,455   
 

Bonds held-to-maturity L&R 15,732,455 (15,732,455) - N/A  

  To: Investment securities at amortised cost   (15,732,455)   
 

Treasury Bills held-to-maturity L&R 1,051,668 (1,051,668) - N/A  

  To: Investment securities at amortised cost   (1,051,668)   
 

Loans and advances to customers, net  19,195,903 - 88,906 19,284,809  

    Loans and advances to customers, net L&R 18,227,540 - 85,967 18,313,507 AC 

    Financial lease receivables, net  968,363 n/a 2,939 971,302  

Non-financial assets      
 

Deferred tax asset  19,794  6,844 26,638  

Total Assets  45,260,543 - 36,135 45,296,678  

       

Financial liabilities      
 

Due to Central Bank AC 2,374,465 - - 2,374,465 AC 

Due to banks and FI AC 1,559,210 - - 1,559,210 AC 

Due to customers AC 38,236,823 - - 38,236,823 AC 

      
 

Non-financial liabilities      
 

Other liabilities (Provision for off balance sheet items)  308,653 - 3,158 311,811  

Deferred tax liability  - - 12,894 12,894  

Total Liabilities  42,479,151 - 16,052 42,495,203  

       

Retained Earnings           871,593 -             20,083     891,676  

As of 1 January 2018, the Group did not have any debt instruments that did not meet the SPPI criterion within its held-to-maturity portfolio. Therefore, it elected 

to classify all of these instruments as debt instruments measured at amortised cost.
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8. CASH AND BALANCES WITH CENTRAL BANK  

Cash and balances with the Central Bank are detailed as following: 

 
As at  

December 31, 2018 

 As at  

December 31, 2017 

Cash on hand      1,295,036               1,102,623  

Central Bank:    

Current account                953,209               1,614,870  

Compulsory reserves             3,247,864               2,582,817  

Accrued interest                       163   152 

Allowance for impairment losses                  (4,118)                            - 

Total             5,492,154               5,300,462  

 

Compulsory reserve represents a minimum reserve deposit held in accordance with the Bank of Albania’s 

requirement. This reserve is not available for use in the Bank’s day to day operations, however according to 

the applicable regulations, the Bank can make use of up to 70% (2017: 40%) of the compulsory reserve in 

LEK, provided that the average of the reserve balance on the last day of the maintenance period does not fall 

below the required reserve level. This reserve is calculated as a percentage over the customer deposits. The 

reserve ratio is different depending on maturity of the liability and the currency (previously was as 10% of its 

customer deposits with an initial maturity up to 24 months). Since 24 July 2018, the reserve ratio is: 

 7.5% for customer deposits in LEK with an initial maturity term up to 12 months 

 5.0% for customer deposits in LEK with an initial maturity over 12 months and up to 2 years 

 12.5% for customer deposits in foreign currencies, when the ratio of “customer deposits denominated 

in foreign currencies over the total customer deposits” is up to 50% 
 20% for customer deposits in foreign currencies, when the ratio of “customer deposits denominated 

in foreign currencies over the total customer deposits” is higher than 50%. 

An analysis of changes in gross carrying amount and the corresponding ECL allowances is as follows: 

 
Stage 1  Stage 2  Stage 3  Total 

Gross carrying amount as at 1 January 

2018 5,300,462  -  -  5,300,462 

New assets originated or purchased 571,156  -  -  571,156 

Assets de-recognised or  repaid (116,241)  -  -  (116,241) 

Transfers to Stage 1 -  -  -  - 

Transfers to Stage 2 -  -  -  - 

Transfers to Stage 3 -  -  -  - 

Amounts written off -  -  -  - 

Foreign exchange adjustments (259,105)  -  -  (259,105) 

Total 5,496,272  -  -  5,496,272 

 

 
Stage 1  Stage 2  Stage 3  Total 

ECL allowance as at 1 January 2018 

under IFRS 9 3,156  -  -  3,156 

New assets originated or purchased 962  -  -  962 

Assets de-recognised or  repaid -  -  -  - 

Transfers to Stage 1 -  -  -  - 

Transfers to Stage 2 -  -  -  - 

Transfers to Stage 3 -  -  -  - 

Net re-measurement of ECL -  -  -  - 

Amounts written off -  -  -  - 

Foreign exchange adjustments -  -  -  - 

Total 4,118  -  -  4,118 
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9. DUE FROM BANKS  

Due from banks are detailed as follows: 

 

As at  

December 31, 2018 

 As at  

December 31, 2017 

Current accounts:    

Resident                    36,638                      25,310  

Non-resident                3,298,324                  3,391,996  

                3,334,962                  3,417,306  

Deposits:    

Resident                  370,260                    519,425  

                  370,260                    519,425  

Other accounts                  107,931  23,449 

Accrued interest                          43   81 

Allowance for impairment losses                    (8,361)  - 

Total              3,804,835               3,960,261 

Deposits with resident banks mature in the range of 3 to 78 days (2017: 3 to 80 days) and bear interest in the 

range of 0.1%p.a. to 0.2%p.a. (2017: 0.2%p.a. to 1.28%p.a.). 

An analysis of changes in gross carrying amount and the corresponding ECL allowances is as follows: 

 
Stage 1  Stage 2  Stage 3  Total 

Gross carrying amount as at 1 January 

2018 3,960,261  -  -  3,960,261 

New assets originated or purchased 960,883  -  -  960,883 

Assets de-recognised or  repaid (856,595)  -  -  (856,595) 

Transfers to Stage 1 -  -  -  - 

Transfers to Stage 2 -  -  -  - 

Transfers to Stage 3 -  -  -  - 

Amounts written off -  -  -  - 

Foreign exchange adjustments (251,353)  -  -  (251,353) 

Total 3,813,196  -  -  3,813,196 

 

 
Stage 1  Stage 2  Stage 3  Total 

ECL allowance as at 1 January 2018 

under IFRS 9    10,743  
 

                -    
 

               -    
 

   10,743  

New assets originated or purchased      2,708                   -                     -          2,708  

Assets de-recognised or  repaid   (4,637)                  -                     -       (4,637) 

Transfers to Stage 1                        -                     -                     -                      -    

Transfers to Stage 2                         -                     -                     -                      -    

Transfers to Stage 3                         -                     -                     -                      -    

Net re-measurement of ECL                         -                     -                     -                      -    

Amounts written off                  -                     -                     -                      -    

Foreign exchange adjustments     (453)                  -                     -         (453) 

Total       8,361                  -                     -           8,361  
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10. INVESTMENT SECURITIES  

Below is an analysis of the Bank’s financial investment. 

 

As at  

December 31, 2018 

 As at  

December 31, 2017 

Debt instruments at amortised cost:    

    

Albanian Treasury Bills                1,258,095                             - 

Albanian Government Bonds              16,578,464                             - 

Foreign Governments Bonds                   328,841                             - 

Corporate Bonds                   312,844                             - 

Allowance for impairment losses                   (54,962)                            - 

Total Debt instruments at amortised cost            18,423,282                             - 

    

Financial investments held-to maturity:    

    

Albanian Treasury Bills                           -                   1,051,668  

Albanian Government Bonds                           -                 15,018,284  

Foreign Governments Bonds                           -                     346,822  

Corporate Bonds                           -                     367,349  

Total financial investments held-to maturity                           -               16,784,123  

Total investment securities            18,423,282                16,784,123  

The Bank has pledged some of its Albanian Treasury bonds as collateral for repurchase agreements with 

Central Bank amounting at LEK 2,560,000 thousand (2017: LEK 2,300,000 thousand). 

T-Bills are issued by the Albanian Government and by original maturity are presented as follows:  

 31 December 2018 31 December 2017 

 

Nominal 

value 

Unamortized 

discount 

Book 

Value 

Nominal 

value 

Unamortized 

discount 

Book 

Value 

12 months 1,269,690 (11,595) 1,258,095 1,059,880 (8,212) 1,051,668 

Total 1,269,690 (11,595) 1,258,095 1,059,880 (8,212) 1,051,668 

Bonds at amortised cost are shown below according to their issuing bodies. The interest is paid semi-annually.  
 

 31 December 2018 

 Nominal value 

Remaining  

(premium ) /discount 

Accrued 

interest Book Value 

Albanian Government 16,331,135 13,785 233,544 16,578,464 

Foreign Governments 323,460 1,847 3,535 328,842 

Corporate Bonds  305,223 2,427 5,193 312,843 

Total 16,959,818 18,059 242,272 17,220,149 
 

 
 

 31 December 2017 

 Nominal value 

Remaining  

(premium ) /discount 

Accrued 

interest Book Value 

Albanian Government 14,827,718 (16,032) 206,598 15,018,284 

Foreign Governments 333,300 10,130 3,392 346,822 

Corporate Bonds 354,965 7,499 4,885 367,349 

Total 15,515,983 1,597 214,875 15,732, 455 
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10. INVESTMENT SECURITIES (CONTINUED) 

Bonds at amortised cost (2017: held-to maturity) are rated as follows: 

Moody’s Ratings or equivalents 
As at  

December 31, 2018 

 As at  

December 31, 2017 

Albanian Government     

Rated B+                 1,332,332                     888,223  

Not rated               15,246,132                 14,130,061  

    

Foreign Governments    

Rated Aaa                    108,691                     112,988  

Rated Aa2                      55,509                       60,094  

Rated Aa3                      55,397                       59,641  

Rated A1                      54,319                       56,198  

Rated A3                      54,925                             -    

Rated Baa1                           -                      57,901  

    

Corporate Bonds    

Rated Aa2                     76,534                       77,998  

Rated A1                     63,329                       67,483  

Rated A2                     62,927                     138,548  

Rated A3                     79,142                       83,320  

Not rated                     30,912                             - 

Total            17,220,149          15,732,455 

 

An analysis of changes in gross carrying amount and the corresponding ECL allowances is as follows: 

 
Stage 1  Stage 2  Stage 3  Total 

Gross carrying amount as at 1 January 2018 16,784,123  -  -  16,784,123 

New assets originated or purchased 2,377,326  -  -  2,377,326 

Assets de-recognised or  repaid (570,694)  -  -  (570,694) 

Transfers to Stage 1 -  -  -  - 

Transfers to Stage 2 -  -  -  - 

Transfers to Stage 3 -  -  -  - 

Amounts written off -  -  -  - 

Foreign exchange adjustments (112,511)  -  -  (112,511) 

Total 18,478,244  -  -  18,478,244 

 

 
Stage 1  Stage 2  Stage 3  Total 

ECL allowance as at 1 January 2018 

under IFRS 9 45,716  -  -  45,716 

New assets originated or purchased 11,753  -  -  11,753 

Assets de-recognised or  repaid (2,141)  -  -  (2,141) 

Transfers to Stage 1 -  -  -  - 

Transfers to Stage 2 -  -  -  - 

Transfers to Stage 3 -  -  -  - 

Net re-measurement of ECL -  -  -  - 

Amounts written off -  -  -  - 

Foreign exchange adjustments (366)  -  -  (366) 

Total 54,962  -  -  54,962 

 

  



Union Bank Sh.a 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the year ended December 31, 2018 

(Amounts in LEK ‘000 unless otherwise stated) 

33 

11. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS  

Loans and advances to customers are detailed as follows: 

 

As at  

December 31, 2018 

 As at  

December 31, 2017 

Loans and advances at amortised cost       22,606,845         19,859,846  

Finance Lease         1,095,654           1,010,700  

Allowance for Impairment       (1,549,601)        (1,674,643) 

Total     22,152,898       19,195,903 

Loans and advances at amortised cost by type of customer and product wise are presented as follows: 

   As at December 31,2018 

 Gross carrying amount  ECL amount  Carrying amount 

Retail customers      

Mortgage Lending 6,115,908  (75,169)  6,040,739 

Personal loans 3,191,343  (216,920)  2,974,423 

Overdrafts and credit cards 318,574  (49,151)  269,423 

Retail lending 9,625,825  (341,240)  9,284,585 

Lending to businesses     12,981,020       (1,170,379)      11,810,641  

Finance Lease       1,095,654            (37,982)        1,057,672  

Total     23,702,499       (1,549,601)      22,152,898  

 

   As at December 31,2017 

 
Gross carrying amount 

 Impairment 

allowance 

 Carrying 

amount 

Retail customers      

Mortgage Lending 5,148,853  (110,127)  5,038,726 

Personal loans 2,922,233  (147,287)  2,774,946 

Overdrafts and credit cards 321,799  (24,134)  297,665 

Retail lending 8,392,885  (281,548)  8,111,337 

Lending to businesses    11,466,961        (1,350,758)      10,116,203  

Finance Lease      1,010,700             (42,337)           968,363  

Total    20,870,546        (1,674,643)      19,195,903  

Loans and advances to customers earn interest as follows:  

Currency As at  

December 31, 2018 

 As at  

December 31, 2017 

LEK 2.10% - 20.0% p.a.  2.10% - 20.0% p.a. 

EUR 1.20% - 15.0% p.a.  1.16% - 15.0% p.a. 

USD 2.35% - 9.01% p.a.  1.70% - 15.0% p.a. 

    

The Group has granted loans with interest rates at the minimum limit shown above, which are lower than the 

rates that are generally offered by the Group, and are covered by cash collaterals. 

The outstanding amount of Loans and advances given to Group's personnel as at 31 December 2018 is LEK 

355,593 thousand (2017: LEK 333,475 thousand) and bear interest rates that are 1% p.a. to 1.8% below the 

rates given to usual customers. 

 

 

 

 

  



Union Bank Sh.a 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the year ended December 31, 2018 

(Amounts in LEK ‘000 unless otherwise stated) 

34 

11. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (CONTINUED) 

Expected cash flows to be reimbursed for finance lease receivables for leases of equipment where the Group 

is the lessor are as follows: 

Interest rates of the finance lease portfolio vary from 7.5% p.a. to 8.2% p.a.(2017: 7.68% p.a. to 9% p.a.) 

11.1. Impairment allowance for loans and advances to customers 

The tables below show an analysis of changes in gross carrying amount and the corresponding ECL allowances 

for each of the above categories is as follows: 

Mortgage lending 

 
Stage 1  Stage 2  Stage 3  Total 

Gross carrying amount as at 1 January 2018       4,583,164       376,554       189,135     5,148,853  

New assets originated or purchased 2,177,593       -          -   2,177,593  

Assets de-recognised or  repaid     (753,473)   (108,261)     (56,846)    (918,580) 

Transfers to Stage 1          95,171      (90,572)       (4,599)                   -    

Transfers to Stage 2  (227,840)    229,737     (1,897)                   -    

Transfers to Stage 3   (80,676)   (29,714)   110,390                    -    

Amounts written off                  -                     -          (2,784)      (2,784) 

Foreign exchange adjustments   (255,807)   (21,896)   (11,471)     (289,174) 

Total      5,538,132       355,848       221,928     6,115,908  

Mortgage lending 

 
Stage 1  Stage 2  Stage 3  Total 

ECL allowance as at 1 January 2018 

under IFRS 9                43,971  
 

        4,498  
 

      41,027  
 

      89,496  

New assets originated or purchased 24,647  -  -         24,647  

Assets de-recognised or  repaid                (3,650)        (3,229)       (5,113)       (11,992) 

Transfers to Stage 1                    266           (266)                 -                      -    

Transfers to Stage 2    (1,752)  1,752  -                   -    

Transfers to Stage 3    (7,427)  -     7,427                  -    

Net re-measurement of ECL              (7,458)       (701)       (10,848)       (19,007) 

Amounts written off                  -                     -          (2,784)         (2,784) 

Foreign exchange adjustments                (2,579)        (243)     (2,369)        (5,191) 

Total                46,018           1,811         27,340          75,169  

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

As at  

December 31, 2018 

 As at  

December 31, 2017 

Less than one year             86,586             143,915  

Between one and five years         1,145,951           1,012,265  

Unearned future finance income          (136,883)           (145,480) 

Net investment in finance lease       1,095,654         1,010,700  

Less impairment allowance            (37,982)             (42,337) 

Total       1,057,672            968,363  
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11. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (CONTINUED)  

11.1 Impairment allowance for loans and advances to customers (continued) 

Consumer loans 

 
Stage 1  Stage 2  Stage 3  Total 

Gross carrying amount as at 1 January 2018       2,549,469       145,207       227,557     2,922,233  

New assets originated or purchased 1,588,700  -  -    1,588,700  

Assets de-recognised or  repaid  (1,096,480)  (63,720)  (58,861)  (1,219,061) 

Transfers to Stage 1      16,073   (15,480)     (593)                   -    

Transfers to Stage 2  (119,541)  143,742   (24,201)                   -    

Transfers to Stage 3   (93,938)  (33,757)    127,695                    -    

Amounts written off                  -                    -      (13,135)     (13,135) 

Foreign exchange adjustments   (76,676)    (5,453)   (5,265)    (87,394) 

Total    2,767,607     170,539       253,197     3,191,343  

Consumer loans 

 
Stage 1  Stage 2  Stage 3  Total 

ECL allowance as at 1 January 2018 

under IFRS 9                43,727  
 

      16,872  
 

    140,135  
 

   200,734  

New assets originated or purchased 49,631  -  -      49,631  

Assets de-recognised or  repaid              (10,885)  (2,232)  (18,808)   (31,925) 

Transfers to Stage 1                 3,025       (2,718)    (307)                  -    

Transfers to Stage 2    (8,321)  11,612     (3,291)                  -    

Transfers to Stage 3     (18,451)     (3,564)     22,015                   -    

Net re-measurement of ECL              (12,230)    (1,762)    29,290     15,298  

Amounts written off                  -             -      (13,135)  (13,135) 

Foreign exchange adjustments                (1,168)     (333)    (2,182)      (3,683) 

Total                45,328         17,875  153,717        216,920  

Overdrafts and credit cards 

 
Stage 1  Stage 2  Stage 3  Total 

Gross carrying amount as at 1 January 2018         244,022         29,754       48,023   321,799  

New assets originated or purchased    88,140          -             -        88,140  

Assets de-recognised or  repaid   (64,011)      (8,233)    (9,386)     (81,630) 

Transfers to Stage 1       12,174     (10,055)       (2,119)                   -    

Transfers to Stage 2    (21,364)      22,342      (978)                   -    

Transfers to Stage 3    (17,413)      (4,653)   22,066                    -    

Amounts written off                  -                     -          (433)     (433) 

Foreign exchange adjustments        (7,445)     (1,086)       (771)     (9,302) 

Total       234,103      28,069       56,402       318,574  

Overdrafts and credit cards 

 
Stage 1  Stage 2  Stage 3  Total 

ECL allowance as at 1 January 2018 

under IFRS 9                 2,687  
 

        6,442  
 

   30,694  
 

  39,823  

New assets originated or purchased      4,023         -             -          4,023  

Assets de-recognised or  repaid                  (350)  (1,185)     (4,737)    (6,272) 

Transfers to Stage 1                 3,641    (2,903)      (738)                   -    

Transfers to Stage 2        (1,475)    1,736        (261)                   -    

Transfers to Stage 3      (1,484)      (804)   2,288                   -    

Net re-measurement of ECL                (2,115)   3,283     11,749   12,917 

Amounts written off                  -                     -      (433)       (433) 

Foreign exchange adjustments                  (136)  (224)         (547)     (907) 

Total                 4,791           6,345         38,015        49,151  
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11. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (CONTINUED)  

11.1 Impairment allowance for loans and advances to customers (continued) 

Business lending 

 
Stage 1  Stage 2  Stage 3  Total 

Gross carrying amount as at 1 January 2018    8,365,829      757,649   2,343,483   11,466,961  

New assets originated or purchased 5,993,234          -                   -      5,993,234  

Assets de-recognised or  repaid  (3,062,255)  (135,482)  (554,188)  (3,751,925) 

Transfers to Stage 1  202,144   (197,558)    (4,586)                   -    

Transfers to Stage 2            (651,000)   711,906   (60,906)                   -    

Transfers to Stage 3            (254,531)   (70,873)    325,404                   -    

Amounts written off                  -                -      (4,814)    (4,814) 

Foreign exchange adjustments  (538,447)   (49,566)  (134,423)   (722,436) 

Total  10,054,974   1,016,076   1,909,970   12,981,020  

Business lending 

 
Stage 1  Stage 2  Stage 3  Total 

ECL allowance as at 1 January 2018 under 

IFRS 9 141,197  46,289  1,028,800  1,216,286 

New assets originated or purchased 134,207  -  -  134,207 

Assets de-recognised or  repaid (23,774)  (57)  (116,845)  (140,676) 

Transfers to Stage 1 13,064  (13,064)  -  - 

Transfers to Stage 2 (10,634)  14,040  (3,406)  - 

Transfers to Stage 3 (56,430)  (613)  57,043  - 

Net re-measurement of ECL (40,004)  (21,873)  92,989  31,112 

Amounts written off -  -  (4,814)  (4,814) 

Foreign exchange adjustments (8,210)  (2,386)  (55,140)  (65,736) 

Total 149,416  22,336  998,627  1,170,379 

 

Financial Lease 

 
Stage 1  Stage 2  Stage 3  Total 

Gross carrying amount as at 1 January 2018 568,720  333,439  108,541  1,010,700 

New assets originated or purchased 585,894  -  -  585,894 

Assets de-recognised or  repaid (211,187)  (172,363)  (44,943)  (428,492) 

Transfers to Stage 1 15,420  (15,420)  -  - 

Transfers to Stage 2 (208,013)  208,013  -  - 

Transfers to Stage 3 (11,054)  (7,607)  18,661  - 

Amounts written off -  -  -  - 

Foreign exchange adjustments (40,766)  (23,901)  (7,780)  (72,448) 

Total       699,014       322,161      74,479  1,095,654 

Financial Lease 

 
Stage 1  Stage 2  Stage 3  Total 

ECL allowance as at 1 January 2018 

under IFRS 9 1,088  1,300  37,011  39,399 

New assets originated or purchased 5,131  -  -  5,131 

Assets de-recognised or  repaid (165)  (236)  (2,768)  (3,169) 

Transfers to Stage 1 56  (56)  -  - 

Transfers to Stage 2 (828)  828  -  - 

Transfers to Stage 3 (3,440)  (27)  3,467  - 

Net re-measurement of ECL (171)  (238)  (145)  (554) 

Amounts written off -  -  -  - 

Foreign exchange adjustments (78)  (94)  (2,653)  (2,825) 

Total 1,593  1,477  34,912  37,982 
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11. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (CONTINUED)  

11.1 Impairment allowance for loans and advances to customers (continued) 

Movements on the allowance for impairment losses under IAS 39 for loans and advances for the year to 31 

December 2017 is, as follows: 

 

As at  

December 31, 2017 

As at 1 January         1,585,113  

Net impairment charge for the year           277,098  

Loans written-off during the period          (157,948) 

Translation differences            (29,620) 

Balance at the end of the year         1,674,643  

 

12. INTANGIBLE ASSETS  

 

  Software  

  

 Other 

intangible 

assets    

 Intangible 

assets in 

progress    
 Total  

Cost  
       

At 1 January 2017     257,576     62,719   10,193    330,488  

Additions    10,235      4,365   3,437    18,037  

Transfer         (264)  -  264  - 

At 31 December 2017   267,547  67,084  13,894    348,525 

Additions  40,964  9,549  9,594  60,108 

Transfer s  -  -  -  - 

At 31 December 2018  308,511  76,633  23,488   408,632 
  

       
Accumulated amortization  

       
At 1 January 2017   (190,461)  (35,158)  -  (225,619) 

Amortization charge   (18,400)  (6,088)  -    (24,488) 

At 31 December 2017    (208,861)  (41,246)  -  (250,107) 

Amortization charge     (23,870)  (7,044)  -   (30,914) 

At 31 December 2018     (232,731)  (48,290)  -  (281,021) 
  

       
Net book amount  

       
At 1 January 2017      67,115   27,561  10,193    104,869  

At 31 December 2017     58,686   25,838  13,894    98,418  

At 31 December 2018     75,780   28,343  23,489   127,611  

 

Other intangible assets include payments for developing the ATM network supporting systems and the 

installation, customization, certification and on-line links between Bank’s ATM host system and the Bank’s 

system, as well as payments made for SWIFT interface and access fees.  
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13. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT  

   Computers    
 Electronic 

equipment  
  

 Office 

Furniture  
   Other    

 Fixed assets 

in progress  
  

 Leasehold 

improvements  
   Total  

  
             

Cost  
             

At 1 January 2017        179,272          132,430      63,011      3,331            8,753           213,509     600,306  

Additions         13,659              8,266        5,486      1,112           18,411            12,168      59,102  

Disposals     (18,773)             (473)      (278)       -                   -                     -         (19,524) 

At 31 December 2017    174,158          140,223    68,219       4,443           27,164           225,677       639,884  

Additions     34,919            10,114     6,482     17,137           (5,800)           19,926        82,778  

Disposals   (9,128)    (7,902)    (2,259)           -                   -                     -     (19,289) 

At 31 December 2018     199,949          142,435      72,442      21,580           21,364           245,603     703,373  
  

             
Accumulated depreciation  

             
At 1 January 2017     (132,739)     (85,106)   (40,389)  (2,030)  -        (125,624)   (385,888) 

Depreciation charge    (12,841)      (9,994)    (5,055)       (248)  -          (13,460)     (41,598) 

Disposals      17,373                262      246             -     -                  -         17,881  

Year ended December 2017      (128,207)      (94,838)     (45,198)     (2,278)  -        (139,084)  (409,605) 

Depreciation charge       (15,846)       (9,618)       (5,348)       (217)  -          (13,266)     (44,295) 

Disposals       8,780              5,387       2,000               -     -                  -           16,167  

Year ended December 2018  (135,273)   (99,069)    (48,546)    (2,495)  -        (152,350)    (437,733) 
  

             
Net book amount  

             
At 1 January 2017    46,533            47,324     22,622      1,301            8,753            87,885     214,418  

Year ended December 2017     45,951            45,385      23,021       2,165           27,164            86,593    230,279  

Year ended December 2018     64,676            43,366     23,896     19,085           21,364            93,253      265,640  

 

 

 

Leasehold improvements relate to expenditures made by the Group for the reconstruction of leased premises used for the branches and Head Office. There are 

no assets pledged as collateral as at 31 December 2018 (2017: none).  
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTY 

The Group holds investment property as a consequence of the acquisitions through enforcement of security 

over loans and advances. These assets bear no restrictions or other obligations related to their use, transfer, or 

maintenance.  

Total income from leased investment property in 2018 was LEK 9,176 thousand (2017: LEK 5,213 thousand). 

There were no expenses incurred during the years with respect to investment properties 

Measurement of fair value - Fair value hierarchy  

The fair value of investment property was determined by property valuers, having professional qualifications 

and recent experience in the location and category of the property being valued. The valuers provide the fair 

value of the Bank’s investment property portfolio every year.  

The fair values of the Bank’s investment property are categorized into Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.  

Level 3 fair value  

The following table shows a reconciliation from the beginning balances to the closing balances for the fair 

value measurements of the Bank’s investment property.  

 2018  2017 

Balance at 1 January               358,977                372,790  
Transferred from repossessed collaterals  (Note 15)                 7,738                 51,464  

Acquired during the year               65,906                   2,863  

Transferred to repossessed collaterals (Note 15)                (3,570)               (46,045) 

Net changes in fair value              (32,593)               (22,095) 

Balance at 31 December               396,458                358,977  

Valuation techniques and significant unobservable inputs  

The following table shows the valuation technique used in measuring the fair value of investment properties, 

as well as the significant unobservable inputs used.  

Valuation technique  Significant unobservable inputs 

Reference to the current market:  

The valuation model uses prices and other 

relevant information generated by market 

transactions involving identical or comparable 

(similar) assets, liabilities, or a group of assets and 

liabilities (e.g. a business) 

Market prices were modified to reflect the following: 

• The level of market transactions when the market 

activity is low or the price for an identical property is 

difficult to obtain 

• Specific condition of each property (construction, 

position etc.) 

  

15. OTHER ASSETS  

Other assets are detailed as follows: 

 

As at  

December 31, 2018 

 As at  

December 31, 2017 

 Repossessed collaterals         289,486   303,319 

 Monetary values in transit                  -     96,460 

 Vat receivable           89,620   64,084 

 Accrued income           10,724   13,000 

 Prepayments           24,304   21,511 

 Assets repossessed from finance lease receivables            4,248   648 

 Consumption Inventory         124,938   5,395 

 Payment in transit            6,937   14,233 

Clients’ receivables          16,408   14430 

 Other             2,330   782 

 Sundry debtors, net          41,173   56,549 

Total 610,168  590,411 
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15.   OTHER ASSETS (CONTINUED) 

Repossessed collaterals are properties acquired through enforcement of security over loans and advances to 

customers. The Bank intends and is taking steps to sell them for the best offer.  Whenever there is a change in 

use of repossessed collateral at every assessment date, there is a transfer to or from repossessed collaterals 

from or to investment property. 

The following table shows a reconciliation from the beginning balances to the closing balances for the Bank’s 

repossessed collaterals.  

 2018  2017 

Balance at 1 January  303,319  354,020 
Transferred from investment property (Note 14) 3,570  (51,464) 

Acquired during the year 5,302  17,018 

Transferred to investment property (Note 14) (7,738)  46,045 

Assets sold during the year (12,027)  (9,803) 

Net write-down of NRV for the year (2,940)  (52,497) 

Balance at 31 December  289,486  303,319 
 

Assets held for sale are properties acquired through enforcement of security over leased assets of the 

Subsidiary. 

The following table shows a reconciliation from the beginning balances to the closing balances for the assets 

held for sale.  

 2018  2017 

Balance at 1 January                     648                   5,164  

Repossessed during the year                 3,205                  1,519  

Assets sold during the year                (4,354)                 (4,354) 

Impairment of assets held for sale                (2,424)                 (1,681) 

Translation differences                 2,819                       -    

Balance at 31 December                       4,248                     648  

Monetary values in transit represent cash sold with correspondent banks with agreed settlement date in the 

first days of the subsequent year. 

 

Sundry debtors and impairment losses recognized as per IFRS 9 (31 December 2018) and IAS 39 (31 

December 2017) are disclosed below: 

 

 

As at  

December 31, 2018 

 As at  

December 31, 2017 

Sundry debtors, gross               124,814                109,569  

ECL/Impairment                (83,641)                (53,020) 

Sundry debtors, net                 41,173                  56,549  

 

 

 2018 

Impairment allowance as at 31 December 2017                  53,020  

Impairment charge for the year (ECL) (Note 25 )                 31,969  

Amounts written off                      (73) 

Foreign exchange adjustments                 (1,275) 

Total impairment losses as at 31 December 2018                 83,641  
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16. DUE TO CENTRAL BANK 

 

As at  

December 31, 2018 

 As at  

December 31, 2017 

Treasury bills sold under repurchase  agreements           2,453,930             2,372,181  

Accrued interest                 2,311                   2,284  

Total           2,456,241             2,374,465  

 

Treasury bills sold under repurchase agreements “Repos” are short term liquidity management instruments 

issued by the Central Bank to inject liquidity in the banking system. Repos at the end of 2018 bear interest at 

market rates ranging from 1.17% p.a. to 1.22% p.a. (2017: 1.34% p.a. to 1.40% p.a.) and are denominated in 

LEK.  

 

17. DUE TO BANKS AND FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS  

Amounts due to banks and financial institutions are detailed as follows: 

 

 
As at  

December 31, 2018 

 As at  

December 31, 2017 

Current accounts    

Resident              1,082,498                   849,518  

Non-resident                 367,611                   313,367  

            1,450,109              1,162,885  

Term deposits    

Resident                 928,007                   345,931  

Non-resident                  40,034                    43,015  

               968,041                 388,946  

Other accounts    

Resident                  10,992                      6,183  

                  10,992                      6,183  

Accrued interest                    9,460                     1,196  

Total            2,438,602              1,559,210  

 

Current accounts from resident financial institutions include LEK 581 million (2017: LEK 455 million) 

deposited by Unioni Financiar Tirane (‘UFT’), out of which LEK 92.6 million (2017: LEK 99.7 million) 

represent collateral for loans issued by the Bank to related parties.  

Current accounts from non-resident financial institutions include balances deposited from ’Union of Financial 

Corners’ and ‘Unioni Financiar Prishtine’, both related parties, of LEK 336.7 million (2017: LEK 243 million). 

Term deposits from non-resident financial institutions include annual deposits from ’Union of Financial 

Corners’, a related party, of LEK 40,033 thousand (2017: LEK 43,015 thousand), which are held as collateral 

for loans issued by the Bank, and bear interest at rates 0.3% p.a. (2017: 0.3% p.a.). 

  



Union Bank Sh.a 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the year ended December 31, 2018 

(Amounts in LEK ‘000 unless otherwise stated) 

42 

18. DUE TO CUSTOMERS  

Customer accounts for enterprises, private entrepreneurs and individuals consisted of current and deposit 

accounts as follows: 

 

As at  

December 31, 2018 

 As at  

December 31, 2017 

Government and public administration:     

Local currency              652,048                407,927  

Foreign currency              282,947                125,814  

              934,995                533,741  

Current accounts:    

Local currency            3,326,030              3,073,541  

Foreign currency            4,784,893              4,229,753  

            8,110,923              7,303,294  

Saving accounts:    

Local currency            1,661,220              1,437,361  

Foreign currency            4,937,621              4,348,297  

            6,598,841              5,785,658  

Term deposits:    

Local currency          13,974,208            13,153,953  

Foreign currency          11,135,837            10,722,718  

          25,110,045            23,876,671  

Other customer accounts:    

Local currency                74,126                  97,621  

Foreign currency              248,994                415,239  

              323,120                512,860  

Subtotal         41,077,924          38,012,224 

    

Prepaid interest on customer deposits (3)  (150) 

Accrued interest               220,771                224,749  

Total       41,298,692         38,236,823  
 

Current and saving accounts bear interest in the range of 0.1% p.a. to 0.5% p.a. (2017: 0.1% p.a. to 0.5% p.a.) 

and term deposits bear interest as follows: 

Currency 2018 2017 

LEK 0.60% p.a. to 4.90% p.a. 0.60% p.a. to 4.60% p.a. 

EUR 0.05% p.a. to 2.50% p.a. 0.05% p.a. to 1.50% p.a. 

USD 0.20% p.a. to 1.10% p.a. 0.20% p.a. to 1.10% p.a. 

GBP 0.10% p.a. to 0.45% p.a. 0.10% p.a. to 0.45% p.a. 

Other customer accounts represent blocked accounts for tender or contract guarantees, other bank guarantees 

and initial capital blocked by customers in the process of registration of their businesses. 
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18.  DUE TO CUSTOMERS (CONTINUED) 

Customer accounts and deposits could be further analyzed by products as follows:  

 As at December 31, 2018 As at December 31, 2017 

 LEK 

Foreign 

currency Total LEK 

Foreign 

currency Total 
Government and admin accounts       

On demand 633,048 282,947 915,995 388,927 125,814 514,741 

Three months 19,000 - 19,000 - - - 

Twelve months - - - 19,000 - 19,000 
Total government and admin accounts 652,048 282,947 934,995 407,927 125,814 533,741 

       

Current accounts  3,326,030 4,784,893 8,110,923 3,073,541 4,229,753 7,303,294 

       

Saving accounts 1,661,220 4,937,621 6,598,841 1,437,361 4,348,297 5,785,658 

Term deposits:       

Three months 218,485 496,812 715,297 280,615 599,521 880,136 

Six months 467,026 522,485 989,511 512,255 550,843 1,063,098 

Twelve months 4,116,296 4,984,078 9,100,374 4,185,201 4,930,426 9,115,627 

Fourteen months 1,336,863 1,123,079 2,459,942 977,722 833,772 1,811,494 

Twenty-five months 1,024,270 754,165 1,778,435 1,133,084 688,225 1,821,309 

Thirty-five months 3,121,876 1,660,550 4,782,426 2,400,854 1,404,023 3,804,877 

Sixty months 3,598,896 1,583,784 5,182,680 3,544,741 1,653,972 5,198,713 

Other deposits 90,496 10,884 101,380 119,481 61,936 181,417 

Total deposits 13,974,208 11,135,837 25,110,045 13,153,953 10,722,718 23,876,671 

       

Other customer accounts:       

On demand 9,191 13,404 22,595 7,706 5,318 13,024 

Twelve months 27,021 76,540 103,561 12,021 41,632 53,653 

Other 37,914 159,050 196,964 77,894 368,289 446,183 

Total other customer accounts 74,126 248,994 323,120 97,621 415,239 512,860 

Total 19,687,632 21,390,292 41,077,924 18,170,403 19,841,821 38,012,224 

“Other deposits” includes deposits with initial maturities of 10 months, 11 months and 24 months.  

"Other" includes accounts of notary offices that are used to perform transactions with Mortgage Office.
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19. OTHER LIABILITIES  

Other liabilities are comprised of the following: 

 

As at  

December 31, 2018 

 As at  

December 31, 2017 

Payments in transit    267,325         173,133  

Other payables      47,377           29,132  

Invoices to be received      40,647           49,779  

Deferred income and accrued expenses      14,981           10,644  

Advances from clients      71,523            2,404  

Other provisions for risk and expenses      12,703            9,461  

Loans from government      20,733           34,100  

Total    475,289       308,653  

Payments in transit represent outbound international money transfers with agreed settlement dates in the first 

days of the subsequent year. 

The Bank, as part of the “Programme for Development of the Albanian Private Sector” received funds as a 

loan from Ministry of Economy for the purpose of financing projects of SME’s in Albania. The amount under 

“Loans from government” represents the outstanding balance of such loans. This loan has an initial maturity 

of 5 years and bears interest of 0.5% p.a. 

Provisions are held in respect of: 

 

As at  

December 31, 2018 

 As at  

December 31, 2017 

Financial guarantee contract issued 10,471  8,500 

Letters of credit 1,271  - 

Provisions for risk and expenses 961  961 

Total 12,703           9,461 

The amount in respect of financial guarantee contract issued represent: 

 As at 31 December 2018 the sum of : ECL provision of LEK 1,971 thousand and of LEK 8,500 

thousand as a provision raised for a customer related to collateral of the guarantee issued. 

 As at 31 December 2017 LEK 8,500 thousand as a provision raised for a customer related to collateral 

of the guarantee issued. 

The amount in respect of letters of credit issued represents ECL provisions raised for these instruments. 

Provisions for risk and expenses are recognized under IAS 37 for possible losses arising from a legal process. 

 

20. SHARE CAPITAL  

At 31 December 2017, the subscribed capital was divided into 2,097,143 shares (2017: 2,097,143 shares) with 

a nominal value of EUR 10 each, while the movements in the paid up share capital in 2018 and 2017 were as 

follows: 

 31 December 2018 31 December 2017 

 

No. of 

shares 

Value of 

shares 

No. of 

shares 

Value of 

shares 

     

Balance at the beginning of the year 2,097,143 2,717,813 2,097,143 2,717,813 

Capital increase - - - - 

Paid-up share capital 2,097,143 2,717,813 2,097,143 2,717,813 
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20.  SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED) 

The structure of subscribed capital is as follows: 

 2018 2017 

Unioni Financiar Tirane (UFT) Sh.p.k 86.34% 86.34% 

European Bank for Reconstruction and Development (EBRD) 10.12% 10.12% 

Edmond Leka 1.77% 1.77% 

Niko Leka 1.77% 1.77% 

Paid-up share capital represents ordinary share capital and has no preferences or restrictions attached thereto.  

Based on Shareholders' Decision dated 28 June 2018, the profit of the year 2017 was decided to be retained 

to be used for investment purposes. 

Based on Shareholders' Decision dated 21 June 2017, the amount of LEK 25,088 thousand from the profit of 

2016 was distributed as dividends proportionately to their existed shareholding. The remaining amount of 

this profit was decided to be retained for investments. 

 

21. LEGAL RESERVE  

The Legal reserve of LEK 280,405 thousand is created based on the Albanian law “On entrepreneurs and 

companies”, and was calculated as at least 5% of the Group’s earnings until the level of 10% of the basic 

capital was reached. The decisions to create these reserves were taken by the respective Shareholders of the 

Bank and the Subsidiary when allocating the profits of years 2014 and 2015. 

 

22. INTEREST INCOME  

Interest income  calculated using EIR was earned on the following assets: 

 
For the year ended 

December 31, 2018  
For the year ended 

December 31, 2017 

Loans and advances to customers    1,474,487      1,359,147  

Investment securities       871,336         784,497  

Due from banks          12,461           11,994  

Total    2,358,284      2,155,638  

 

23. INTEREST EXPENSE  

Interest expense calculated using EIR was incurred on the following liabilities: 

 
For the year ended 

December 31, 2018  
For the year ended 

December 31, 2017 

Due to customers                328,914  
 

               308,443  

Due to banks and financial institutions                  17,103                      6,080  

Repurchase agreements                  31,901                    30,605  

Other                        46                          94  

Total               377,964                345,222  
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24. FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME  

Fees and commissions received were comprised as follows: 

 
For the year ended 

December 31, 2018  
For the year ended 

December 31, 2017 

Fee income earned from services that are provided over 

a certain period of time    

     Account maintenance fees              56,660                48,235  

     Cards and E-banking  maintenance fees              10,701                  8,882  

    

Fee income from providing financial services and 

earned on the execution of a transaction    

    Transfer and payment orders            136,082              114,591  

    Other banking services              72,318                60,717  

Lending activity              14,260               21,804 

Total    290,021            254,229 

 

25. FEE AND COMMISSION EXPENSES 

Fees and commissions expense were comprised as follows: 

 For the year ended 

December 31, 2018  
For the year ended 

December 31, 2017 

Banking services              37,251                32,065  

Treasury operations                4,734                  3,165  

Other     11,522       11,685  

Total            53,507              46,915  

 

26. NET IMPAIRMENT LOSS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS  

The table below summarizes the charge for ECL/ loss allowance for the year ended: 

 

 
Note 

For the year ended 

December 31, 2018  
For the year ended 

December 31, 2017 

Charges for ECL  on cash and Central Bank  8            962   - 

Reversal of ECL on Due to Banks  9         (1,929)  - 

Charges for ECL/Impairment loss on loans and 

advances to customers  11        63,371      277,098 

Charges for ECL on investment securities  10          9,612   - 

Charges for ECL on other financial assets 15        31,969   - 

Charges for ECL on Guarantees and Letters of credit 33            294   - 

Total       104,279     277,098 

 

27. NET GAIN FROM DERECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED AT 

AMORTISED COST  

On September 2018, the Group sold a small part of the bond portfolio issued by Albanian Government, in Eur 

(the “Note”), held at amortized cost. The reason for such decision was the Priority in Allocation set from 

Albanian Government through an offer (the “Offer”) when issuing the new Eurobond (New Note) on October 

2018, that was “A Noteholder that wishes to subscribe for New Notes in addition to tendering Notes for 

purchase pursuant to the Offer may request and receive priority in the allocation of the New Notes”. 

The carrying amount of the derecognized bond held at amortized cost was of LEK 315,085 thousand and the 

gain from that de-recognition was of LEK 23,734 thousand. No such sale happened in the comparative period. 
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28. NET FOREIGN EXCHANGE RESULT  

Net foreign exchange gain includes gains less losses from trading activities and foreign currency differences 

arising on open position revaluation. Net foreign exchange result in 2018 is loss of LEK 144,277 thousand 

(2017: gain of LEK 14,008 thousand). The effect of the open position revaluation at the year-end for the paid-

up share capital (denominated in EUR) was loss of LEK 213,472 thousand (2017: loss of LEK 51,072 

thousand).  

29. PERSONNEL COSTS  

 For the year ended 

December 31, 2018  
For the year ended 

December 31, 2017 

Salaries and other compensations              450,931                429,145  

Social insurance                51,901                  50,060  

Total             502,832               479,205  

As at 31 December 2018 the Group had 384 employees (2017: 386). 

30. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES  

Other operating expenses were comprised as follows: 

 
For the year ended 

December 31, 2018  
For the year ended 

December 31, 2017 

Rent 208,973  215,707 

Other external services 148,669  129,877 

Premium insurance of deposits 132,976  101,933 

Software maintenance 45,890  39,337 

Security services 42,059  36,153 

Marketing 36,684  32,804 

Communication expenses 32,799  34,329 

Consulting and Legal fees 33,261  15,953 

Utilities energy, water etc. 23,842  24,144 

Maintenance and repairs 13,495  13,220 

Office supplies 12,280  14,173 

Transportation and business trip expense 12,123  9,992 

Insurance 9,092  7,358 

Board remuneration 4,280  3,974 

Representation 2,379  2,235 

Trainings 1,726  965 

Total 760,528  682,154 

Other external services include expenses made for services related to debit and credit cards offered by 

MasteCard Europe SA, expenses for customization of cards, expenses made for local taxes, expenses made 

for personalized printing etc.  

31. INCOME TAX  

 For the year ended 

December 31, 2018  
For the year ended 

December 31, 2017 

Current tax expense             115,513           83,678 

Deferred tax income             (16,341)         (10,094) 

Total tax expense         99,172          73,584 

Income tax in Albania is assessed at the rate of 15% (2017: 15%) of taxable income.  
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31. INCOME TAX (CONTINUED) 

The following represents a reconciliation of the accounting profit to the income tax: 

 Effective Tax rate 2018 Effective Tax rate 2017 

Profit before tax  636,529   450,750 

Income tax at 15% 15.00% 95,479 15.00% 67,612 

Non-deductible expenses 0.64% 4,085 1.37% 6,191 

Income exempted from income tax -0.06%     (392) -0.05%     (219) 

Income tax expense 15.58% 99,172 16.32% 73,584 

The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities is presented as follows: 

 
For the year ended 

December 31, 2018  

For the year ended 

December 31, 2017 

Deferred tax asset at the beginning of the year               19,794                  9,700 

Impact of adopting IFRS9- ECL on bonds                    6,844                        - 

Recognized in profit or loss            3,447                    10,094 

Deferred tax asset at the end of the year                        30,085                19,794 

Deferred tax liability at the beginning of the year -  - 

Impact of adopting IFRS9- ECL on loans           12,894  - 

Recognized in profit or loss          (12,894)  - 

Deferred tax liability at the end of the year -  - 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following items: 

 

2018 

Recognized in 

Profit or loss 

Impact of 

adopting IFRS9 2017 

Recognized in 

Profit or loss 

Deferred tax asset:      

Repossessed collateral        9,259        (348)          -       9,607            6,300  

Investment property      14,050      5,469           -       8,581                    3,575  

ECL on bonds        4,833     (2,011)      6,844          -                      - 

Finance lease receivable    1,943           337          -       1,606                      219  

   20,169   3,447      6,844     19,794                  10,094  

Deferred tax liability:      

ECL on loans  -    (12,894)  12,894 - - 

 -    (12,894) 12,894 - - 

Based on the local accounting law, starting from 1 January 2008 the Group must report in accordance with 

IFRS. In addition, Law No. 10364, dated 16.12.2010 provides for certain amendments (effective as of 24 

January 2011). Based on these amendments, the impairment allowances on loans and advances charged by 

banks in accordance with IFRS shall be considered as tax deductible expenses, provided that they are certified 

by the external auditors.  

Income tax is prepaid to Albanian tax office in monthly installments. Due to application of elimination of 

double taxation treatment, income tax resulted from transactions with non-residents (foreign tax credit) is 

prepaid to nonresident authorities and is held from nonresidents in monthly installments. The table below 

shows the total amount due to tax authorities for income tax after taking into consideration the amount of it 

paid in respective years. 

 2018  2017 

Income tax payable/(receivable) as at 1 January        14,066        (16,437) 

Income tax paid (due as at the end of previous year)        (14,066)           (1,759) 

Income tax prepaid to Albanian tax office        (84,046)         (51,313) 

Income tax prepaid to nonresidents (due to elimination of 

double taxation)              (11)             (103) 

Current tax    115,513           83,678 

Income tax payable/ (receivable) as at 31 December        31,456         14,066 
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32. MATURITY ANALYSIS OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 

The table below shows an analysis of assets and liabilities analysed according to when they are expected to be 

recovered or settled.  

31 December 2018 

Within 12 

months 

 After 12 

months 

 

Total 

 Assets       

Cash and balances with Central Bank  5,492,154  -  5,492,154 

Due from banks 3,771,132  33,703  3,804,835 

Investment securities 4,488,358  13,934,924  18,423,282 

Loans and advances to customers 7,843,803  14,309,095  22,152,898 

Intangible assets -  127,611  127,611 

Property and equipment -  265,640  265,640 

Investment property -  396,458  396,458 

Other assets  396,349  213,819  610,168 

Deferred tax -  30,085  30,085 

Total assets 21,991,796  29,311,335  51,303,131 

      

 Liabilities       

 Due to Central Bank  2,456,241  -  2,456,241 

 Due to banks and financial institutions  653,814  1,784,788  2,438,602 

 Due to customers  8,620,794  32,677,898  41,298,692 

 Other liabilities  443,824  31,465  475,289 

 Income tax payable 31,456  -  31,456 

Total liabilities 12,206,129  34,494,151  46,700,280 

Net 9,785,667  (5,182,816)  4,602,851 

 

31 December 2017 

Within 12 

months 

 After 12 

months 

 

Total 

 Assets       

Cash and balances with Central Bank  5,300,462  -  5,300,462 

Due from banks 3,936,812  23,449  3,960,261 

Treasury Bills held-to-maturity 1,051,668  -  1,051,668 

Bonds held-to-maturity 3,455,270  12,277,185  15,732,455 

Loans and advances to customers 7,177,664  12,018,239  19,195,903 

Intangible assets -  98,418  98,418 

Property and equipment -  230,279  230,279 

Investment property -  358,977  358,977 

Other assets  259,703  330,708  590,411 

Deferred tax -  19,794  19,794 

Total assets 21,181,579  25,357,049  46,538,628 

      

 Liabilities       

 Due to Central Bank  2,374,465  -  2,374,465 

 Due to banks and financial institutions  532,843  1,026,367  1,559,210 

 Due to customers  7,950,969  30,285,854  38,236,823 

 Other liabilities  278,077  30,576  308,653 

 Income tax payable 14,066  -  14,066 

Total liabilities 11,150,420  31,342,797  42,493,217 

Net 10,031,159  (5,985,748)  4,045,411 
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33. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  

Cash and cash equivalents consisted of the following: 

 

As at  

December 31, 2018  

As at  

December 31, 2017 

Cash on hand         1,295,036           1,102,623  

Accounts with Central Bank           953,209           1,614,870  

Financial instruments with maturity of 3 months or less         3,705,222           3,936,731  

Total       5,953,467        6,654,224  

34. RELATED PARTIES  

Parties are considered to be related if one of them has the ability to control the other or exercise significant 

influence over the one making financial and operating decisions. 

In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the substance of the relationship 

and not the merely to the legal form.  

The Group has related party relationships with its shareholders and affiliates, directors and executive officers. 

The shareholding structure of the Group as at 31 December 2018 and 2017 is presented in Note 20. Unioni 

Financiar Tirane (UFT) Sh.p.k is the ultimate parent of the Group. 

Related entities (owed directly or indirectly by UFT) include: Union Distribucion Servis Albania Shpk, Media 

Union Shpk, Union Travel Shpk, Albanian Courier Shpk, United Transport, Union Group Shpk, Uni-Com 

Sha, Albanian Cargo Service Shpk, Auto Master Sha, United Motors Shpk, S-Systems Sha, Atex Shpk, Auto 

City Sha, Pluton Investor Shpk, Arch Investor Shpk, Plus Communication, Auto Net Shpk, Qendra Kerkime 

Monitor, Uni-Cons Shpk, Union Net Shpk, Paylink Sha, Union of Financial Corners sa, Unioni Financiar 

Prishtine, Expo City shpk, ASL Construc 2 shpk, E-ticketing systems, Union net Kroaci, Prestige Service 

Shpk, Digit-alb sha, Tirana Real Invest Capital, Niko Leka pf, Kato Vora Albania, Kato Aromatic Albania, 

Sicily by car- Autoeuropa, Automobile Touring Club, Automaster Service Shpk, Klubi i Automobilit te 

Shqiperise. In associated entities are also included some entities owned by other Bank’s related parties: 

Inovation ne krijim, Locomotives Shpk, Start Plus, Intergrafika Shpk. 

As at each reporting date the Group has the following balances with its related parties: 

 As at  

December 31, 2018  

As at  

December 31, 2017 

Assets:    

Loans and advances to customers:    

  Other Shareholders         6,060          1,609   

   Related entities 1,549,482   1,417,793  

   Key management personnel of the entity and their relatives                61,516         94,335  

Other Assets:    

   Parent company                    151             423  

   Other Shareholders                        2                 2  

    Related entities                    101             100  

    Key management personnel of the entity and their relatives                      -                 10  

Liabilities:     

Due to banks and financial institutions:    

     Parent company              709,600       454,861  

     Related entities              376,832       286,170  

Due to customers:    

     Other Shareholders                32,051         41,638  

     Related entities              422,194       534,166  

     Key management personnel of the entity and their relatives              239,071       196,627  

Other Liabilities:    

     Parent company                        4          2,729  

     Other Shareholders                      -               247  

    Related entities       15,593          7,939  

    Key management personnel of the entity and their relatives                    116                 7  
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34.  RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 

Below is disclosed an information on ECL/ impairment allowances for loans and advances given to related 

parties: 

 

As at  

December 31, 2018 

 As at  

December 31, 2017 

ECL/ Impairment allowance:    

        Other Shareholders 73  45 

 Related entities 3,524  19,066 

 Key management personnel of the entity and their 

relatives 690  3,801 

Loans to related entities in the amount of LEK 1,549,482 thousand (2017: LEK 1,417,793 1thousand) are 

covered by cash collateral of LEK 896,486 thousand (2017: LEK 972,513 thousand) and the remaining balance 

is covered by other collaterals provided by the parent company and related entities. 

The Group has entered into the following transactions with related parties: 

 For the year ended 

December 31, 2018 

 For the year ended 

December 31, 2017 

Interest income:    

    Parent company             -     - 

    Other Shareholders           123   161 

    Related entities       53,475         54,438  

    Key management personnel of the entity and their relatives        3,301          4,295  

Interest expense:    

    Parent company             11   - 

    Other Shareholders           302   61 

    Related entities        1,053          1,288  

    Key management personnel of the entity and their relatives           798             800  

Fee and commission income:    

    Parent company        2,033          2,135  

    Other Shareholders           169             236  

    Related entities        5,449          4,635  

    Key management personnel of the entity and their relatives           439             476  

Operating income:    

    Related entities         1,074         1,079 

Operating expense:    

    Parent company             -            2,412  

    Other Shareholders         3,924          2,086  

    Related entities     154,971       149,473  

    Key management personnel of the entity and their relatives       88,564         87,656  

Sale of Fixed assets:    

    Related entities         1,816   - 

Purchase of Fixed assets:    

    Related entities       42,942  6,635 



Union Bank Sh.a 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the year ended December 31, 2018 

(Amounts in LEK ‘000 unless otherwise stated) 

52 

34.  RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 

 

Off balance sheet commitments 

As at  

December 31, 2018 

 As at  

December 31, 2017 

Un-drawn credit facilities from the Bank:    

    Other Shareholders                  8,607         10,097  

    Related entities                64,432       158,411  

    Key management personnel of the entity and their relatives                11,453         10,715  

Commitment received:    

     Other Shareholders              246,840                   - 

Guarantees received:    

    Parent company              220,942         99,733  

    Other Shareholders                43,049         47,525  

    Related entities            2,019,071    2,248,960  

    Key management personnel of the entity and their relatives              235,460       205,754  

Guarantees given:    

    Parent company 20              20  

    Related entities                  4,142          2,908  

 

35. COMMITTMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES  

Commitments and contingencies include the following: 

 2018  2017 

Un-drawn credit facilities           1,263,451   1,274,881 

Guarantees given in favor of customers 247,636  145,271 

Commitments for LC 75,475  79,722 

Allowance for impairment losses       (3,242)                   - 

Guarantees and commitments 

The Group issues guarantees for its customers. These instruments bear a credit risk similar to that of loans 

granted.  

An analysis of changes in gross carrying amount and the corresponding ECL allowances is as follows: 

 
Stage 1  Stage 2  Stage 3  Total 

Gross carrying amount as at 1 January 2018    145,271                   -                    -        145,271  

New assets originated or purchased    82,936                   -                     -        82,936  

Assets de-recognised or  repaid  (21,437)                  -                     -      (21,437) 

Transfers to Stage 1               -                     -                     -                      -    

Transfers to Stage 2                -                     -                     -                      -    

Transfers to Stage 3                   -                     -                     -                      -    

Amounts written off                  -                     -                     -                      -    

Foreign exchange adjustments    40,866                   -                     -        40,866  

Total  247,636                  -                     -      247,636  
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35.  COMMITMENTS AND CONTIGENCIES (CONTINUED) 

 

 
Stage 1  Stage 2  Stage 3  Total 

ECL allowance as at 1 January 2018 

under IFRS 9     1,588  
 

                -    
 

               -    
 

    1,588  

New assets originated or purchased    1,970                   -                     -        1,970  

Assets de-recognised or  repaid    (1,490)                  -                     -        (1,490) 

Transfers to Stage 1                        -                     -                     -                      -    

Transfers to Stage 2                         -                     -                     -                      -    

Transfers to Stage 3                         -                     -                     -                      -    

Net re-measurement of ECL                         -                     -                     -                      -    

Amounts written off                  -                     -                     -                      -    

Foreign exchange adjustments (97)                  -                     -     (97) 

Total     1,971                  -                     -         1,971  

An analysis of changes in gross carrying amount and the corresponding ECL allowances for Commitments 

for Letters of Credit given to customers is as follows: 

 
Stage 1  Stage 2  Stage 3  Total 

Gross carrying amount as at 1 January 2018   79,722                   -                    -       79,722  

New assets originated or purchased  216,979                   -                     -      216,979  

Assets de-recognised or  repaid (215,512)                  -                     -     (215,512) 

Transfers to Stage 1               -                     -                     -                      -    

Transfers to Stage 2                -                     -                     -                      -    

Transfers to Stage 3                   -                     -                     -                      -    

Amounts written off                  -                     -                     -                      -    

Foreign exchange adjustments    (5,714)                  -                     -        (5,714) 

Total   75,475                  -                     -       75,475  

 

 
Stage 1  Stage 2  Stage 3  Total 

ECL allowance as at 1 January 2018 

under IFRS 9     1,570  
 

                -    
 

               -    
 

    1,570  

New assets originated or purchased     1,272                   -                     -        1,272 

Assets de-recognised or  repaid     (1,458)                  -                     -        (1,458) 

Transfers to Stage 1                        -                     -                     -                      -    

Transfers to Stage 2                         -                     -                     -                      -    

Transfers to Stage 3                         -                     -                     -                      -    

Net re-measurement of ECL                         -                     -                     -                      -    

Amounts written off                  -                     -                     -                      -    

Foreign exchange adjustments      (113)                  -                     -          (113) 

Total   1,271                  -                     -       1,271  

Commitments for un-drawn credit facilities represent the undrawn balances of loans, overdraft and card limits 

granted to the customers. 

Legal 

The Group was involved in various claims and legal proceedings of a nature considered normal to its business 

as at 31 December 2018. The level of these claims and legal proceedings corresponds to the level of claims 

and legal proceedings in previous years. The Group’s management is of the opinion that no material losses 

will be incurred in relation to legal claims. 
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35.  COMMITMENTS AND CONTIGENCIES (CONTINUED) 

Operating lease commitments  

The Group has entered into non-cancelable lease commitments. Such commitments are composed as follows: 

 2018  2017 

Not later than 1 year           113,005                110,547  

Total           113,005                 110,547  

 

36. FINANCIAL RISK  

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks and those activities involve analysis, evaluation, 

acceptance and management of some degree of risk or combination of risks. Taking risks is core to the 

financial business, and the operational risks are inevitable consequence of being in business. The Group’s aim 

is therefore to achieve an appropriate balance between risk and return and minimize potential adverse effects 

on the Group’s financial performance. 

The Group’s risk management policies are designed to identify and analyze these risks, to set appropriate risk 

limits and controls, and to monitor the risks and adherence to limits by means of reliable and up to date 

information systems. 

The most important types of risk are discussed further. 

36.1. Credit risk 

Credit risk is the risk that the Group will incur a loss because its customers or counterparties fail to discharge 

their contractual obligations. The Group manages and controls credit risk by setting limits on the amount of 

risk it is willing to accept for individual counterparties and for geographical and industry concentrations, and 

by monitoring exposures in relation to such limits. 

Each of the Group entities manages the Credit risk based on the policies approved by the respective Board of 

Directors. The Bank Credit Committee and the Lease Committee for the Subsidiary are responsible for the 

management of the Group’s entities credit risk. Credit risk is monitored by the respective entities credit risk 

departments. It is their responsibility to review and manage credit risk, including environmental and social 

risk for all types of counterparties. Each business unit is required to implement credit policies and procedures, 

with credit approval authorities delegated from the Bank’s Credit Department and Credit Committee or 

Subsidiary Lease Committee. Each business unit has a responsible officer who reports on all credit related 

matters to local management and the Bank Credit Committee or Subsidiary Lease Committee. Each business 

unit is responsible for the quality and performance of its credit portfolio and for monitoring and controlling 

all credit risks in its portfolios, including those subject to central approval, as well as de-centralized loans. 

The Group entities have established a credit quality review process to provide early identification of possible 

changes in the creditworthiness of counterparties, including regular collateral revisions. Counterparty limits 

are established by the use of a credit risk classification system, which assigns each counterparty a risk rating. 

The credit quality review process aims to allow the Group entities to assess the potential loss as a result of the 

risks to which it is exposed and take corrective actions. 

Based on the policies approved by the Board of Directors, the Bank's Assets and Liabilities Management 

Committee is responsible for the management of the credit risk related to investments in securities. In addition, 

the Treasury Department, Reporting to the Bank Chief Financial Officer and a separate Bank Risk 

Management Department, reporting to the Bank Chief Executive Officer are also responsible for monitoring 

of the Bank’s credit risk related to investments in securities. 

In addition, regular annual audits of business units and Group entities credit processes, and the Bank treasury 

department are undertaken by Internal Audit. 
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36.        FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 

36.1 Credit risk (continued) 

36.1.1. Credit related commitments risk 

 

The Group makes available to its customers guarantees that may require that the Group makes payments on 

their behalf and enters into commitments to extend credit lines to secure their liquidity needs. Letters of credit 

and guarantees (including standby letters of credit) commit the Group to make payments on behalf of 

customers in the event of a specific act, generally related to the import or export of goods. Such commitments 

expose the Group to similar risks to loans and are mitigated by the same control processes and policies. 

36.1.2. Impairment assessment (applicable from 1 January 2018) 

36.1.2.1 Definition of default and cure 

 

The Group considers a financial instrument defaulted and therefore Stage 3 (credit-impaired) for ECL 

calculations in all cases when the borrower becomes 90 days past due on its contractual payments. The 

Group considers treasury and interbank balances defaulted and takes immediate action when the required 

intraday payments are not settled by the close of business as outlined in the individual agreements. 

As a part of a qualitative assessment of whether a customer is in default, the Group also considers a variety 

of instances that may indicate unlikeliness to pay. When such events occur, the Group carefully considers 

whether the event should result in treating the customer as defaulted and therefore assessed as Stage 3 for 

ECL calculations or whether Stage 2 is appropriate. Such events include: 

• Significant financial difficulties of the obligor/guarantor or information in relation to the probability 

of a bankruptcy or other financial re-organization;  

• Legal actions started for the borrower from the state authorities, etc.; 

• The disappearance of an active market where the borrower had a market share because of financial 

difficulties;  

• Observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flow from 

a group of customers with the same characteristics, although the decrease cannot yet be identified with 

any individual customer in such group; 

• Counterparty rating category (for International Banks & Sovereigns): Default rating; 

• Restructured /Forborne during the first 12 months of the restructuring period, being in 

underperforming status (up to 90 DPDs).  

 

It is the Group’s policy to consider a financial instrument as ‘cured’ and therefore re-classified out of 

Stage 3 when none of the default criteria have been present for at least six consecutive months. The 

decision whether to classify an asset as Stage 2 or Stage 1 once cured depends on a set of criteria, at the 

time of the cure.  

36.1.2.2. Significant increase in credit risk 

 

The Group continuously monitors all assets subject to ECLs. In order to determine whether an instrument 

or a portfolio of instruments is subject to 12mECL or LTECL, the Group assesses whether there has been 

a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.  

The Group considers both quantitative and qualitative criteria in order to assess whether significant 

increase in credit risk has occurred, for staging purposes. The Group defines criteria that are indicative of 

a significant increase in credit risk. The Group has set different indicators to demonstrate the priority of 

indicators used to assess whether significant increase in credit risk has occurred, such indicators/criteria 

address the significant increase of credit risk for loans (divided in business and retails) and investment in 

securities (divided in sopranaturals and corporates). Despite their priority, all criteria have the same weight 

in the assessment process for significant increase in credit risk.  
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36.        FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 

36.1 Credit risk (continued) 

36.1.2 Impairment assessment (applicable from 1January 2018) (continued) 

             36.1.2.2  Significant increase in credit risk (continued) 

Regardless of the change in credit grades, if contractual payments are more than 30 days past due, the 

credit risk is deemed to have increased significantly since initial recognition. 

When estimating ECLs on a collective basis for a group of similar assets, the Group applies the same 

principles for assessing whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. 

36.1.3. Impairment model  

36.1.3.1. Individual vs. Collective 

 

As explained in Note 4.8.7.5 dependant on the factors below, the Group calculates ECLs either on a collective 

or an individual basis. 

Assets classes where the Group calculates ECL on individual basis include: 

 All Stage 3 assets, regardless the class of financial asset 

 Loan business customers being in Stage 3, with an aggregate exposure above 50 thousand Eur 

 Loans given to individuals being in Stage 3, with an exposure above 50 thousand Eur 

 The treasury and interbank relationships (such as Due from Banks, Investment securities) 

 Exposures that have been classified as POCI when the original loan was de-recognised and a new loan 

was recognised as a result of a credit driven debt restructuring 

Asset classes where the Group calculates ECL on a collective basis include: 

 Stage 1 and 2 categories of lending; 

 Stage 3 loans, with the o/s exposure below 50k Euro; 

 Purchased POCI exposures managed on a collective basis 

The Group groups these exposures into smaller homogeneous portfolios based on exposure value per business 

lending and on product type for lending to individuals.  

 

36.1.3.2. Expected loss parameters 

 

36.1.3.2.1. PD estimation for loan portfolio 

PDs for loan exposure to customers are calculated from the transition matrices, which are built based on 

the past behavior of a specified portfolio (i.e. portfolios that share credit risk characteristics). Transition 

matrices are calculated at “customer level” for business’ exposures (considering the worse status among 

different loan accounts) and at “product level” for individuals’ exposure (specific product approach). 

Considering homogeneity of the exposures and concentration factors, calculations have been made based 

on amount level for business customers’ exposures and on account level for individuals’ ones. 

For Stage 1 exposures PD is calculated as the portion of the portfolio falling under default definition over 

a defined period of time (one year). 

Lifetime cumulative unadjusted PD is derived by utilizing Markov Chain assumption to power 1 year 

relative transition matrix as many time as the maximum remaining maturity of the loans in the respective 

classes that share the same credit risk. 

Marginal lifetime PDs (used in Stage 2 portfolios) are calculated as a difference of the two consecutive 

cumulative PDs. 
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36.        FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 

36.1 Credit risk (continued) 

36.1.3 Impairment model (continued) 

36.1.3.2  Expected loss parameters (continued) 

36.1.3.2.2. PD estimation for treasury exposures 

For these relationships, the Bank’s risk department analyses publicly available information such as 

financial information and other external data, e.g., the rating of Good Rating Agency, and assigns the 

internal rating. 

 

36.1.3.2.3. Forward looking adjustment of lifetime marginal PD 

IFRS 9 requires considering forward-looking elements; forecast of future economic conditions that are 

relevant to estimating PD and ECL. The future economic conditions are captured through forecasts of 

macroeconomic data available in the Group or through publicly available data sources.  

In order to apply a forward looking perspective and potential effect on life-time PDs, a statistical exercise 

has been performed measuring the relationship among different macroeconomic parameters based on 

Albanian available data. The macroeconomic indicators available being considered in the model are GDP, 

inflation rate and unemployment rate. The above indicators are modeled against the total banking system 

Non Performing Loans (‘NPL’) rate (%). Each of the relationship had been modeled through linear 

regression, specifically NPL – GDP, NPL – Inflation rate, NPL – Unemployment rate. The correlations 

among parameters have been calculated. Considering the above linear regression model among NPLs and 

different variables, only GDP resulted statistically important. By weighting the impact of the Baseline, 

Downturn and Upturn scenarios, the Group calculated the weighted forward-looking effect. So the Group 

determined a forecasted correction factor for marginal PD, based in which the PD curve should be 

adjusted, and the number of years after which the forecasted marginal PD curve will converge to the 

original (unadjusted) curve.  

  

36.1.3.2.4. Exposure at default 

The exposure at default (EAD) represents the gross carrying amount of the financial instruments subject 

to the impairment calculation, addressing both the client’s ability to increase its exposure while 

approaching default and potential early repayments too. The Group’s modeling approach for EAD reflects 

expected changes in the balance outstanding over the lifetime of the loan exposure that are permitted by 

the current contractual terms, such as amortization profiles and changes in utilization of undrawn  

commitments. 

 

36.1.3.2.5. Loss Given Default 

Loss Given Default (LGD) represents the estimated of the loss arising on a default event. It is based on 

the difference between the contractual cash flows due and those that the Group would expect to receive, 

including flows from any collateral. 

For loans to customers, for each of the defined categories of loans the Group calculates LGD based on 

this formula LGD = 1 – RR (where RR = “Recovery Rate”) which includes Cash Payment Rate and 

Collateral consideration.  

Cash Payment Rate is the percentage of the loans repaid in cash from customers on each year after entering 

into the default zone, calculated over the outstanding exposure in default at the year they entered into 

default. For each category of loans, an average yearly recovery rate is calculated. These yearly average 

rates are then used in LGDs as per specific Stage. 

The Group takes into consideration only real estate properties while calculating the ECLs of the respective 

portfolios. To come to the recovery rates by types of collaterals, the Group has analyzed the time and 

realization value of collaterals repossessed for the loans once being in default zone. These "recoveries" 

are then discounted to find out PV of collateral held as pledge. 

The Group calculates LGDs for exposures on securities, with Bank of Albania and money market 

placements, using the same publications of Good Rating Agencies.    



Union Bank Sh.a 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the year ended December 31, 2018 

(Amounts in LEK ‘000 unless otherwise stated) 

58 

36.        FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 

36.1 Credit risk (continued) 

36.1.4. Analysis of credit quality 

The following table sets out information about the credit quality of financial assets measured at amortised cost. Unless specifically indicated, for financial assets, 

the amounts in the table represent gross carrying amounts. For loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts, the amounts in the table represent the 

amounts committed or guaranteed. Explanation of the terms: Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3 are included in Note 4.8.7.1. 

 

 As at 31 December 2018  As at 31 December 2017 

 Stage 1  Stage 2  Stage 3  POCI  Total  Total 

Cash and Central Bank            

            

Low- fair risk 5,496,272  -  -  -  5,496,272  5,300,462 

Less: allowance  (4,118)  -  -  -  (4,118)  - 

Carrying amount 5,492,154  -  -  -  5,492,154  5,300,462 

 

 As at 31 December 2018  As at 31 December 2017 

 Stage 1  Stage 2  Stage 3  POCI  Total  Total 

Due from banks            

            

Low- fair risk 3,813,196  -  -  -  3,813,196  3,960,261 

Less: allowance  (8,361)  -  -  -  (8,361)  - 

Carrying amount 3,804,835  -  -  -  3,804,835  3,960,261 

 

 

 As at 31 December 2018  As at 31 December 2017 

 Stage 1  Stage 2  Stage 3  POCI  Total  Total 

Investment securities            

            

Low- fair risk 610,773  -  -  -  610,773  656,270 

Monitoring 17,867,471        17,867,471  16,127,853 

Less: allowance  (54,962)  -  -  -  (54,962)  - 

Carrying amount 18,423,282  -  -  -  18,423,282  16,784,123 
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36.        FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 

36.1 Credit risk (continued) 

36.1.4. Analysis of credit quality (continued) 

 

 As at 31 December 2018  As at 31 December 2017 

 Stage 1  Stage 2  Stage 3  POCI  Total  Total 

Loans and advances            

            

Low- fair risk 19,293,830  767,600  106,355  -  20,167,785  16,673,696 

Monitoring  -  1,125,098  296,659  -  1,421,757  1,284,159 

Substandard -  -  324,437  -  324,437  994,028 

Doubtful -  -  537,001  -  537,001  635,991 

Lost -  -  1,251,519  -  1,251,519  1,282,672 

Less: allowance  (247,148)  (49,845)  (1,252,608)  -  (1,549,601)  (1,674,643) 

Carrying amount 19,046,682  1,842,853  1,263,363  -  22,152,898  19,195,903 

 

 As at 31 December 2018  As at 31 December 2017 

 Stage 1  Stage 2  Stage 3  POCI  Total  Total 

Financial guarantees and other 

commitments            

            

Low- fair risk 3,776,558  -  -  -  3,776,558  3,934,951 

Less: allowance  (8,108)  -  -  -  (8,108)  - 

Carrying amount 3,768,450  -  -  -  3,768,450  3,934,951 
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36.        FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 

36.1 Credit risk (continued) 

36.1.5. Analysis of risk concentrations 

 

The following table shows the risk concentration by industry for the components of the statement of financial position, before collateral held or other credit 

enhancements and net of impairment: 

 

As at 31 December 2018        

 
Financial 

services  Government  Consumers  

Retail and 

wholesale  Construction  Services  

Agriculture 

and 

processing 

industries  Total 

                
Cash on hand and Central Bank 5,492,154  -  -  -  -  -  -  5,492,154 

Due from banks 3,804,835  -  -  -  -  -  -  3,804,835 

Investment securities 248,132  18,002,322  -  63,309  -  109,519  -  18,423,282 

Loans and advances to 

customers                

Lending to businesses 837,612  -  -  3,642,751  2,526,182  3,999,620  804,475  11,810,640 

Consumer lending -  -  2,974,424  -  -  -  -  2974424 
Overdrafts and credit cards -  -  269,423          269423 

Mortgage Lending -  -  6,040,739  -  -  -  -  6040739 

Financial Lease 4,471  -  113,099  274,770  82,746  513,973  68,613  1,057,672 

Total Loans and advances to 

customers 842,083  -  9,397,685  3,917,521  2,608,928  4,513,593  873,088  22,152,898 

 10,387,204  18,002,322  9,397,685  3,980,830  2,608,928  4,623,112  873,088  49,873,169 

                

Financial guarantees 1,254  -  1,450  26,357  65,645  150,928  31  245,665 

Standby letters of credit -  -  -  -  -  -  74,203  74,203 

Commitments to extend credit 162,313  -  503,948  225,363  184,262  121,726  65,839  1,263,451 

 163,567  -  505,398  251,720  249,907  272,654  140,073  1,583,319 

Total 10,550,771  18,002,322  9,903,083  4,232,550  2,858,835  4,895,766  1,013,161  51,456,488 
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36.        FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 

36.1 Credit risk (continued) 

36.1.5. Analysis of risk concentrations (continued) 

 

As at 31 December 2017        

 
Financial 

services  Government  Consumers  

Retail and 

wholesale  Construction  Services  

Agriculture 

and 

processing 

industries  Total 

                
Cash on hand and Central Bank 5,300,462  -  -  -  -  -  -  5,300,462 

Due from banks 3,960,261  -  -  -  -  -  -  3,960,261 

Treasury bills held to maturity -  1,051,668  -  -  -  -  -  1,051,668 

Bonds held-to-maturity 259,575  15,252,117  -  137,442  -  83,321  -  15,732,455 

Loans and advances to 

customers                

Lending to businesses 654,308  -  -  2,524,244  2,151,412  4,390,945  395,294  10,116,203 

Consumer lending -  -  2,774,946  -  -  -  -  2,774,946 

Overdrafts and credit cards -  -  297,665  -  -  -  -  297,665 
Mortgage Lending -  -  5,038,726  -  -  -  -  5,038,726 

Financial Lease 3,091  -  134,034  242,652  46,721 ¤  405,967  135,898  968,363 

Total Loans and advances to 

customers 657,399  -  8,245,371  2,766,896  2,198,133  4,796,912  531,192  19,195,903 

 10,177,697  16,303,785  8,245,371  2,904,338  2,198,133  4,880,233  531,192  45,215,439 

                

Financial guarantees 1,350  -  2,050  23,029  64,656  54,155  31  145,271 

Standby letters of credit -  -  -  -  -  -  79,722  79,722 

Commitments to extend credit 142,936  -  465,660  126,478  221,141  254,750  63,916  1,274,881 

 144,286  -  467,710  149,507  285,797  308,905  143,669  1,499,874 

Total 10,321,983  16,303,785  8,713,081  3,053,845  2,483,930  5,189,138  674,861  46,715,313 
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36.        FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 

36.1 Credit risk (continued) 

36.1.5. Analysis of risk concentrations (continued) 

Exposure to credit risk is also managed in part by obtaining collateral and guarantees. The principal collateral 

types are: 

 Mortgage over residential properties 

 Pledges over business assets and inventories 

 Deposits and accounts placed (cash collateral) 

 Personal guarantee for the loan 

In addition to the term loans and business overdrafts that are secured by the above type of collateral, overdrafts 

on payroll accounts are extended to individuals as well. No pledges are taken for these advances as the monthly 

salary offsets the used part of the limit given. Financial guarantees and stand-by letters of credit are cash-

collateralized. 

Impaired loans and advances 

Impaired loans and advances are loans and advances for which the Group determines that it is probable that it 

will be unable to collect all principal and interest due according to the contractual terms of the loan 

agreement(s). 

Past due but not impaired loans 

Loans and advances where contractual interest or principal payments are past due but the Group believes that 

impairment is not appropriate on the basis of the level of security, collateral available and / or the stage of 

collection of amounts owed to the Group. 

Loans with renegotiated terms 

Loans with renegotiated terms are loans that have been restructured due to deterioration in the borrower’s 

financial position and where the Group has made concessions that it would not otherwise consider. Once the 

loan is restructured it remains in this category independently from eventual satisfactory performance after 

restructuring. 

Allowances for impairment 

The Group establishes an allowance for impairment losses that represents its estimate of incurred losses in its 

loan portfolio. It consists in the specific loss component that relates to individually significant exposures. 

Credit impaired loans and advances  

The credit impaired loans and advances before taking into consideration the cash flows from collateral held is 

LEK 2,441,497 thousand (2017: LEK 2,808,200 thousand). 

The breakdown of the carrying amount of the individually impaired loans and advances by class, along with 

the fair value of the collateral held by the Bank as security, are as follows: 

 

31 December 2018 Credit impaired loans Collateral 

Mortgage Lending         221,928           715,853  

Personal loans         253,196           422,032  

Overdrafts and credit cards          56,402                 743  

Loans to businesses      1,909,971        3,988,580  

Financial Lease                 74,474               74,474  

Total 2,515,971 5,201,682 
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36.        FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 

36.1 Credit risk (continued) 

36.1.5. Analysis of risk concentrations (continued) 

 

31 December 2017 Credit impaired loans Collateral 

Mortgage Lending         189,135           590,818  

Personal loans         227,557           371,656  

Overdrafts and credit cards          48,023            23,782  

Loans to businesses      2,343,483        5,226,049  

Financial Lease              108,541             108,541  

Total 2,916,739 6,320,846 

Loans and advances renegotiated 

Restructuring activities include extended payment agreements, modification and deferral of payments. 

Following restructuring, a previously overdue customer account is reset to normal status and managed together 

with other similar accounts. The total restructured portfolio during 2018 is LEK 367,175 thousand (2017: LEK 

612,386 thousand). The increase in the total restructured portfolio is a consequence of the management 

decision to use loan restructuring for certain borrowers that are facing financial difficulties with negative 

impact in their cash flows, when the restructuring is deemed to increase the probability that the borrower will 

be able to repay the credit exposure and the new payment plan is in line with the actual and expected future 

payment capacity of the borrower. 

Write-off policy 

The Group writes off a loan / security balance (and any related allowances for impairment losses) when Risk 

Committee determines that the loans / securities are uncollectible. This determination is reached after 

considering information such as the occurrence of significant changes in the borrower / issuer’s financial 

position such that the borrower / issuer can no longer pay the obligation, or that proceeds from collateral will 

not be sufficient to pay back the entire exposure. The total amount written off during 2018 is LEK 21,166 

thousand (2017: LEK 157,948 thousand). 

The Group holds collateral against loans and advances to customers in the form of mortgage interests over 

property, other registered securities over assets, and guarantees. Estimates of fair value are based on the value 

of collateral assessed at the time of borrowing, and generally are not updated except when a loan is individually 

assessed as impaired. Collateral generally is not held over loans and advances to banks, except when securities 

are held as part of reverse repurchase and securities borrowing activity.  

The collateral structure of loans in different stages is presented below. 

31 December 2018 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total 

Property 34,105,499 3,556,577 4,764,106 42,426,182 

Pledge 7,446,038 1,397,057 431,425 9,274,520 

Cash 1,853,229 14,548 6,151 1,873,928 

Total 43,404,766 4,968,182 5,201,682 53,574,630 

 

31 December 2017 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total 

Property 27,627,902 2,966,840 5,567,263 36,162,005 

Pledge 8,105,365 1,170,794 744,800 10,020,959 

Cash 1,879,458 18,497 8,783 1,906,738 

Total 37,612,725 4,156,131 6,320,846 48,089,702 
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36.        FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 

36.1 Credit risk (continued) 

36.1.5. Analysis of risk concentrations (continued) 

The table below shows the breakdown of the carrying amount of loans and advances given to customers and 

financial institution by ranges of their collateral coverage: 

31 December 2018 Over-collateralized portfolio Under-collateralized portfolio 

 Carrying amount 

of portfolio 

Fair value of 

collateral 

Carrying amount 

of portfolio 

Fair value of 

collateral 

Mortgage Lending 5,203,025 14,534,542 912,883 389,740 

Personal loans 1,244,071 4,043,894 1,947,272 78,014 

Overdrafts and credit cards 20,295 67,453 298,279 824 

Loans to businesses 10,244,907 32,852,683 2,736,113 353,829 

Financial Lease 1,095,654 1,253,651              -              -    

Total 17,807,952 52,752,223 5,894,547 822,407 

 

31 December 2017 Over-collateralized portfolio Under-collateralized portfolio 

 Carrying amount 

of portfolio 

Fair value of 

collateral 

Carrying amount 

of portfolio 

Fair value of 

collateral 

Mortgage Lending 3,993,151 11,848,549      1,155,702           64,656  

Personal loans 1,276,996 3,726,962      1,645,237           25,604  

Overdrafts and credit cards 27,212 403,973         294,587           34,235  

Loans to businesses 9,226,141 30,537,411      2,240,820          306,351  

Financial Lease 1,010,700 1,141,961              -              -    

Total 15,534,200 47,658,856      5,336,346         430,846  

 

36.2. Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments 

associated with financial instruments, and, in general to retain continuity of its core business lines.  

For the Bank 

On an operational basis, the Bank monitors the performance of its customer deposits, and on that basis adjusts 

the balance of its current assets’ access to funding, in order to maintain a satisfactory payment capability. On 

a more strategic level, the Bank through its Asset and Liability Committee (“ALCO”) manages this risk by 

continually monitoring expected cash flows from financial instruments and adjusting its investments to match 

the timing of payments and receipts.  

When an operating branch is subject to a liquidity limit imposed, the branch is responsible for managing its 

overall liquidity within regulatory limit in co-ordination with Bank’s Treasury Department. Treasury 

Department monitors compliance for all operating branches with limits set on daily basis. 

All liquidity policies and procedures are subject to annual review and approval by Board and ALCO 

respectively. Daily reports cover the liquidity position of both the Bank and operating branches.  

The Bank relies on deposits from customer and banks, Repos and short term borrowings as its primary source 

of funding. The short term nature of this source of funding increases the Bank’s liquidity risk and the  Bank 

actively manages this risk through maintaining competitive pricing and constant monitoring of market trends.  

One of the key measures used by the Bank for managing liquidity risk is the ratio of liquid assets to short term 

liabilities. This ratio was within the limits set by Central Bank in each and all currencies converted for the 

period. 
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36.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 

36.2 Liquidity risk (continued) 

To manage the liquidity risk arising from financial liabilities, the Bank holds liquid assets comprising cash 

and cash equivalents and investment securities for which there is an active and liquid market. These assets can 

be readily sold to meet liquidity requirements. 

The monitoring and control function for the Bank’s investments are performed by ALCO. Bank’s ALCO 

policy includes sets of daily, weekly and monthly reports to be prepared and analyzed. Daily report, “Liquidity 

Position Report”, controls respectively daily inflows/outflows of liquidity till 1-year maturity, under business 

usual scenario. Monthly reports include ratio, gap and simulated gap analyses under separate bank specific 

and market crisis scenarios. Reports are produced for each single currency LEK, USD and EUR and for the 

total assets and liabilities as well. Specific limits are set and monthly monitored on liquidity and simulated 

maturity gap result. 

For the Subsidiary 

The Subsidiary approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient 

liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the 

Subsidiary and Group reputation. 

One of the key measures used by the Subsidiary for managing liquidity risk is the ratio of liquid assets to short 

term liabilities.  

The Supervisory Board reviews the liquidity situation of the Subsidiary frequently and makes appropriate 

recommendations. 
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36.        FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 

36.2 Liquidity risk (continued) 

An analysis of the maturity profile of the remaining undiscounted contractual cash flows of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities is as follows: 

 

31 December 2018 

Up to 1 

month 

1 to 

3 months 

3 to 6 

months 

6 to 12 

months 

1 to 5 

years 

Over 5 

years 

Total 

Assets        

Cash and balances with Central Bank 5,496,272 - - - - - 5,496,272 

   Due from banks 3,581,837 123,482 74,052 - - 33,879 3,813,250 

   Investment securities 897,462 841,887 1,106,586 2,091,451 9,783,281 7,385,155 22,105,822 

   Loans and advances to customers 2,443,458 1,212,408 1,711,506 3,939,934 11,627,770 7,177,405 28,112,481 

Other assets 269,434 - - - - 665 270,099 

        

   Total undiscounted financial assets 12,688,463 2,177,777 2,892,144 6,031,385 21,411,051 14,597,104 59,797,924 

        

Liabilities        

Due to Central Bank 845,304 1,615,988 - - - - 2,461,292 

Due to banks and Financial institutions 1,648,130 - 109,950 382,690 312,121 - 2,452,891 

Due to customers 17,009,413 2,085,360 2,597,019 9,250,115 11,147,690 - 42,089,597 

Other liabilities 426,872 1,915 791 1,582 11,813 5,900 448,873 

Income tax payable - 31,456 - - - - 31,456 

        

   Total undiscounted financial liabilities 19,929,719 3,734,719 2,707,760 9,634,387 11,471,624 5,900 47,484,109 

  Net undiscounted financial assets/liabilities (7,241,256) (1,556,942) 184,384 (3,603,002) 9,939,427 14,591,204 12,313,815 
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36.        FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 

36.2 Liquidity risk (continued) 

 

  

31 December 2017 

Up to 1 to 3 to 6 6 to 12 1 to 5 Over 5 Total 

1 month 3 months Months months years years 

Assets        

Cash and balances with Central Bank 5,300,462 - - - - - 5,300,462 

Placements and balances with banks 3,803,879 133,018 - - - 23,449 3,960,346 

Treasury Bills held-to-maturity 195,083 204,089 441,829 362,795 - - 1,203,796 

Bonds held-to-maturity 315,269 342,251 1,088,109 2,280,251 9,883,753 4,954,720 18,864,353 

Loans and advances to customers 2,054,325 1,089,045 1,798,458 3,845,120 9,755,317 5,901,393 24,443,658 

Other assets 257,974 899 - - - 665 259,538 

        

Total undiscounted financial assets 11,926,992 1,769,302 3,328,396 6,488,166 19,639,070 10,880,227 54,032,153 

        

Liabilities        

Due to Central Bank 1,091,548 1,287,927 - - - - 2,379,475 

Due to banks and Financial institutions 1,192,504 84,062 53,339 168,821 62,224 3,333 1,564,283 

Due to customers 15,500,876 2,285,984 2,702,780 8,697,402 9,845,801 10,073 39,042,916 

Other liabilities 264,559 780 786 2,723 19,512 9,716 298,076 

Income tax payable - 14,066 - - - - 14,066 

        

Total undiscounted financial liabilities 18,049,487 3,672,819 2,756,905 8,868,946 9,927,537 23,122 43,298,816 

Net undiscounted financial 

assets/liabilities (6,122,495) (1,903,517) 571,491 (2,380,780) 9,711,533 10,857,105 10,733,337 
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36.        FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 

36.2 Liquidity risk (continued) 

The table below shows the contractual expiry by maturity of the Group’s contingent liabilities and commitments. Each undrawn loan commitment is included 

in the time band containing the earliest date it can be drawn down. For issued financial guarantee contracts, the maximum amount of the guarantee is allocated 

to the earliest period in which the guarantee could be called. 

 

31 December 2018 

Up to 1 to 3 to 6 6 to 12 1 to 5 Over 5 Total 

1 month 3 months Months months years years 

        

Financial Guarantees 18,078 16,078 97,167 17,563 98,725 25 247,636 

Letters of credit 45,044 30,431 - - - - 75,475 

Other undrawn commitments to lend 104,020 26,074 74,832 922,935 135,590 - 1,263,451 

Total Commitments and guarantees 167,142 72,583 171,999 940,498 234,315 25 1,586,562 

 

31 December 2017 

Up to 1 to 3 to 6 6 to 12 1 to 5 Over 5 Total 

1 month 3 months Months months years years 

        

Financial Guarantees 8,870 16,808 6,685 76,955 35,928 25 145,271 

Letters of credit 48,014 21,155 10,553 - - - 79,722 

Other undrawn commitments to lend 53,319 34,394 271,877 849,981 65,310 - 1,274,881 

Total Commitments and guarantees 110,203 72,357 289,115 926,936 101,238 25 1,499,874 
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36.        FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 

36.3. Market risk 

The Group is exposed to the market risk whenever the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument 

fluctuates due to changes in market prices. Market risks arise from open positions in interest rates and 

currency, all of which are exposed to general and specific market movements and changes in the level of 

volatility of market rates or prices such as interest rates, credit spreads and foreign exchange rates. 

Currency risk 

The Group is exposed to currency risk through transactions in foreign currencies. Currency risk is the risk that 

the value of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group attempts 

to manage this risk by closing daily open foreign currency positions and by establishing and monitoring limits 

on open positions. As the currency in which the Group presents its consolidated financial statements is the 

LEK, the Group’s consolidated financial statements are affected by movements in the exchange rates between 

the LEK and other currencies.  

The Group’s transactional exposures give rise to foreign currency gains and losses that are recognized in the 

statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. These exposures comprise the monetary assets 

and liabilities of the Group that are not denominated in the measurement currency of the Group. The applicable 

exchange rates for the principal currencies are as follows:  

  

 2018 2017 

EUR:LEK 123.42 132.95 

USD:LEK 107.82 111.10 

The analysis of monetary assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2018 and 2017 by the foreign currencies in 

which they were denominated is shown below: 

31 December 2018 LEK USD EUR Other Total 
      

 Assets       

Cash and balances with Central Bank  1,939,700 253,865 3,139,965 158,624 5,492,154 

Due from banks 2,464 559,519 2,627,452 615,400 3,804,835 

Investment securities 16,459,304 484,493 1,479,485 - 18,423,282 

Loans and advances to customers 5,672,374 79,871 16,400,653 - 22,152,898 

Other assets  123,820 454 42,848 70 167,192 
      

 Total  24,197,662 1,378,202 23,690,403 774,094 50,040,361 
      

 Liabilities       

 Due to Central Bank  2,456,241 - - - 2,456,241 

 Due to banks and financial institutions  956,297.44 45,400 1,416,483 20,422 2,438,602 

 Due to customers  19,872,896 1,392,062 19,292,655 741,078 41,298,691 

 Other liabilities  184,666 12,518 258,838 4,286 460,308 

 Income tax payable 31,456 - - - 31,456 
      

 Total  23,501,556 1,449,980 20,967,976 765,786 46,685,299 

Net commitments and Foreign 

Exchange Spot  105,479 269,261 (127,330) (12,277) 235,133 

 Net Position  801,585 197,483 2,595,097 (3,969) 3,590,195 
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36.        FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 

36.3 Market risks (continued) 

Currency risk (continued) 

 

31 December 2017 LEK USD EUR Other Total 

      

Assets      

Cash and balances with Central Bank 1,479,173 381,365 3,275,087 164,837 5,300,462 

Placements and balances with banks 324,483 263,185 2,972,414 400,179 3,960,261 

Treasury Bills held-to-maturity 1,051,668 - - - 1,051,668 

Bonds held-to-maturity 13,864,000 508,140 1,360,315 - 15,732,455 

Loans and advances to customers 4,712,432 160,548 14,322,923 - 18,948,934 

Other assets 113,928 98,088 47,365 157 259,538 
      

Total 21,545,684 1,411,326 21,978,104 565,173 45,500,287 

      

Liabilities      

Due to Central Bank 2,374,465 - - - 2,374,465 

Due to banks and financial institutions 431,916 143,153 966,058 18,083 1,559,210 

Due to customers 18,357,287 1,420,756 17,983,170 475,610 38,236,823 

Other liabilities 132,612 7,860 150,980 6,557 298,009 

Income tax payable 14,066 - - - 14,066 
      

Total 21,310,346 1,571,769 19,100,208 500,250 42,482,573 

Net commitments and Foreign 

Exchange Spot 56,738 152,959 10,224 (47,384) 172,537 

Net Position 235,338 (7,484) 2,888,120 17,539 3,017,714 

Interest rate risk 

Interest rate price risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market 

interest rates relative to the interest rate that applies to the financial instrument. Interest rate cash flow risk is 

the risk that the interest cost will fluctuate over time. The Group attempts to mitigate this risk by maintaining 

the Repricing Gap fully matched, so that both its assets and liabilities mature and re-price simultaneously. 

This limits the risk of the Group becoming over-sensitive to interest rate changes.  

The Group’s interest rate gap as at 31 December 2018 is analyzed below. As at 31 December 2018, majority 

of the Group’s short-term financial assets and liabilities, except for the loan portfolio, carry fixed interest rates.  

i.  Interest rate information 

The weighted average interest rates of significant categories of financial assets and liabilities of the Group 

were as follows: 

 Weighted average interest rate 

  LEK USD EUR Other 

 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 

Assets:         

Statutory reserves 0.70% 0.88% N/A N/A -0.40% -0.40% N/A N/A 

Due from banks N/A 1.28% N/A N/A 0.15% 0.20% N/A N/A 

Investment securities 5.06% 5.12% 3.69% 2.58% 4.29% 4.22% N/A N/A 

Loans to customers 8.65% 8.93% 6.63% 5.49% 5.14% 5.32% N/A N/A 

Liabilities:         

Due to banks  2.06% 1.68% N/A N/A 0.30% 0.33% N/A N/A 

Due to customers 2.04% 1.78% 0.8% 0.65% 0.49% 0.49% 0.31% 0.31% 

T-Bills under Repos 1.2% 1.37% N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 



Union Bank Sh.a 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the year ended December 31, 2018 

(Amounts in LEK ‘000 unless otherwise stated) 

72 

36.        FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 

36.3 Market risks (continued) 

Interest rate risk (continued) 

ii. Interest rate repricing analysis 

The following table presents the interest rate repricing dates for the Group’s assets and liabilities. Variable-rate assets have been reported according to their 

next rate revision date. Fixed-rate assets and liabilities have been reported according to their scheduled principal repayment dates. 

 

31 December 2018 

Up to 

1 month 

1-3 

Month 

3-6 

Months 

6-12 

Months 

Over 

1 year 

Non-interest 

bearing Total 

Assets        

Cash and balances with Central Bank 3,378,895 - - - - 2,113,259 5,492,154 

Due with banks 3,545,188 123,438 - - - 136,209 3,804,835 

Investment securities 811,716 877,695 943,426 2,075,282 13,527,853 187,310 18,423,282 

Loans and advances to customers 5,043,362 1,932,744 3,307,590 5,938,293 7,589,087 (1,658,178) 22,152,898 

Other assets - - - - - 167,192 167,192 
 

       

Total 12,779,161 2,933,877 4,251,016 8,013,575 21,116,940 945,792 50,040,361 

        

Liabilities        

Due to Central Bank 842,790 1,611,139 - - - 2,312 2,456,241 

Due to banks and financial institutions 187,831 - 109,444 378,310 293,800 1,469,217 2,438,602 

Due to customers 12,814,086 2,013,742 2,604,638 9,100,697 10,478,686 4,286,843 41,298,692 

Other liabilities - 781 781 1,563 17,608 426,872 447,605 

Income tax payable - - - - - 31,456 31,456 
 

       

Total 13,844,707 3,625,662 2,714,863 9,480,570 10,790,094 6,216,700 46,672,596 

Gap (1,065,546) (691,785) 1,536,153 (1,466,995) 10,326,846 (5,270,908) 3,367,765 

Cumulative gap 

(1,065,546) 

(1,757,331

) (221,178) (1,688,173) 8,638,673 3,367,765  
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36.        FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 

36.3 Market risks (continued) 

 

Interest rate risk (continued) 

31 December 2017 

Up to 

1 month 

1-3 

Month 

3-6 

Months 

6-12 

Months 

Over 

1 year 

Non-interest 

bearing Total 

Assets        

Cash and balances with Central Bank 3,806,661 - - - - 1,493,801 5,300,462 

Placements and balances with banks 3,911,502 - - - - 48,759 3,960,261 

Treasury Bills held-to-maturity 149,963 199,196 422,735 279,774 - - 1,051,668 

Bonds held-to-maturity 400,000 300,000 1,378,052 1,626,530 11,812,997 214,876 15,732,455 

Loans and advances to customers 4,289,764 1,762,440 3,180,200 5,114,890 6,613,383      (1,764,774) 19,195,903 

Other assets - - - - - 259,538 259,538 

Total 12,557,890 2,261,636 4,980,987 7,021,194 18,426,380 252,200 45,500,287 

        

Liabilities        

Due to Central Bank 1,088,625 1,283,556 - - - 2,284 2,374,465 

Due to banks and financial institutions 28,286 83,285 53,280 164,956 60,680 1,168,723 1,559,210 

Due to customers 14,507,941 2,188,754 2,717,363 8,569,905 9,156,452 1,096,408 38,236,823 

Other liabilities 786 - 1,542 1,195 30,577 263,909 298,009 

Income tax payable                   -                      -                      -                      -                      -                14,066            14,066  

Total   15,625,638      3,555,595      2,772,185        8,736,056      9,247,709       2,545,390    42,482,573  

Gap  (3,067,748)  (1,293,959)     2,208,802      (1,714,862)     9,178,671      (2,293,190)     3,017,714  

Cumulative gap  (3,067,748)  (4,361,707)  (2,152,905)     (3,867,767)     5,310,904       3,017,714                    
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36.        FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 

36.3 Market risks (continued) 

Sensitivity analyses 

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates at the reporting 

date and the stipulated change taking place at the beginning of the financial year and held constant throughout 

the reporting period. The following is a stipulation of effects of changes in interest rate in the net profit, 

assuming all the other variables are held constant: 

 31 December 2018 31 December 2017 

Interest rate increases by 2%             172,773             106,218  

Interest rate increases by 1.5%             129,580               79,664  

Interest rate increases by 1%               86,387               53,109  

Interest rate decreases by 1%             (86,387)            (53,109) 

Interest rate decreases by 1.5%            (129,580)            (79,664) 

Interest rate decreases by 2%            (172,773)           (106,218) 

The sensitivity rate, used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management personnel, 

represents management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates based on 

information available after the balance sheet date. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign 

currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at the period end for the change in exchange 

rates as described above. 

Below is a stipulation of effects of changes in exchange rates in the net profit, assuming that all the other 

variables are held constant: 

 31 December 2018 31 December 2017 

LEK depreciates against USD by 5%            9,874             (374) 

LEK appreciates against USD by 5%          (9,874)             374  

LEK depreciates against EUR by 5%          129,755          144,406  

LEK appreciates against EUR by 5%         (129,755)        (144,406) 

LEK depreciates against other ccys by 5%               (199)          877  

LEK appreciates against other ccys by 5%                199         (877) 

 

36.4. Operational  risk 

The operational risk is incurred on the delivery of all of the Group’s products and services and arises on a 

daily basis as transactions are being processed. It may occur also as a result of inadequate information systems, 

technology failures, breaks of internal controls, and fraud or unforeseen catastrophes. 

To cover for operational risk, the Group has established a framework that incorporates clear definitions of 

operational risk throughout the organization, and a philosophy of business processes self-assessment. It has 

also developed, and is actively monitoring, the performance of key risk indicators. Operational risk events are 

carefully analysed and monitored in terms of exposures toward unforeseen risks or potential failure of controls. 

The Bank’s Operational Risk Committee (ORC) is periodically monitoring the occurrences of operational 

losses and has assigned responsibilities for mitigating losses and providing back-up solutions and risk 

coverage for activities subject to operational risk. 
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37. DISCLOSURE AND ESTIMATION OF FAIR VALUE  

Fair value estimates are based on existing financial instruments on the Group’s financial position statement 

without attempting to estimate the value of anticipated future business and the value of assets and liabilities 

not considered financial instruments. 

Financial instruments not measured at fair value – fair value hierarchy 

The following table sets out the fair values of financial instruments not measured at fair value and analyses 

them by the level in the fair value hierarchy into which each fair value measurement is categorized. 

  As at 31 December 2018 

 

Carrying 

amount 

Fair value 

Level 1 

Fair value 

Level 2 

Fair value 

Level 3 

Financial assets     

Due from banks     3,804,835 - - 3,804,835 

Investment securities 18,423,282 1,949,640 16,786,870 - 

Loans and advances to customers     22,152,898 - -  19,129,279 

     

Financial liabilities     

Due to Central Bank 2,456,241 - 2,456,241 - 

Due to banks and financial institutions          2,438,602 - -   2,431,666 

Due to customers 41,298,691 - - 40,906,464 

Due to government 20,733 - - 18,257 

 

  As at 31 December 2017 

 

Carrying 

amount 

Fair value 

Level 1 

Fair value 

Level 2 

Fair value 

Level 3 

Financial assets     

Due from banks 3,960,261 -      -      3,960,261 

Treasury Bills held-to-maturity 1,051,668 -    1,051,072  - 

Loans and advances to customers 19,195,903 - - 16,339,331 

Bonds held-to-maturity 15,732,454  1,613,122    14,476,881  - 

     

Financial liabilities     

Due to Central Bank 2,374,465 -      2,374,465  - 

Due to banks and financial institutions 1,629,222 -       - 1,685,879 

Due to customers 38,236,823 -     - 38,177,190 

Due to government 34,100 -          - 34,100 

 

Due from banks   

Due from other banks include inter-bank placements and items in the course of collection. As loans, advances 

and overnight deposits are short term and at floating rates, their fair value is considered to equate to their 

carrying amount. 

Loans and advances to customers and to financial institutions 

The fair value of loans and advances to customers and to financial institutions is estimated using discounted 

cash flow techniques, applying the rates that are offered for loans of similar maturities and terms and customer 

or product wise. The fair value of overdraft balances is approximately equal to its book value. 
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37.  DISCLOSURE AND ESTIMATION OF FAIR VALUE (CONTINUED) 

Investment securities 

Treasury Bills include treasury bills issued by Government which are bought with the intention to hold till 

maturity. Since no active market exists for treasury bills, the fair value has been estimated using a discounted 

cash flow model based on a current yield curve appropriate for the remaining term to maturity.  

Bonds include treasury bonds issued by Albanian Government in LEK, bonds issued by Albanian and foreign 

Governments in EUR and Corporate bonds issued in EUR which are bought with the intention to hold till 

maturity. Quoted prices in active markets were not available for securities issued in LEK. However, there was 

sufficient information available to measure the fair values of these securities based on observable market 

inputs. Therefore, whenever the quoted prices exist, the securities are included in the Level 1 of the fair value 

hierarchy, whereas those securities that observable market inputs were used to determine their fair value were 

transferred to Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy. 

Due to banks, financial institutions and customers 

The fair value of deposits from banks and customers is estimated using discounted cash flow techniques, 

applying the rates that are offered for deposits of similar maturities and terms. The fair value of deposits 

payable on demand is the amount payable at the reporting date. 

38. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT  

Regulatory capital 

The Bank monitors the adequacy of its capital using, among other measures, the rules and ratios established 

by the Albanian regulator, the Bank of Albania (“BoA”), which ultimately determines the statutory capital 

required to underpin its business. The regulation “On capital adequacy” is issued pursuant to Law No. 8269 

date 23.12.1997 "On the Bank of Albania", and Law No. 8365 date 02.07.1998 "Banking Law of the Republic 

of Albania".  

Capital Adequacy Ratio 

Starting from 1 April 2015, the Capital Adequacy Ratio (“CAR”) is the proportion of the regulatory capital to 

total risk weighted exposures, expressed as a percentage. The minimum required Capital Adequacy Ratio is 

12%. 

Risk-Weighted Exposures (RWEs) 

Risk- weighted exposures are calculated as a sum of the followings: 

 risk weighted exposures due to credit and counterparty risk where the balance and off balance sheet 

exposures are weighted according to standardized approach of the BOA regulation on ‘Capital 

Adequacy Ratio’. According to this method all exposures and possible exposures are grouped on 

certain exposure categories and within each of them into smaller groups according to risk associated 

to them. 

 capital requirement to cover market risk 

 capital requirement to cover operational risk, using the basic indicator approach  

 

Based on amendments to the regulation effective up to May 2018, the risk-weighted exposures were adjusted 

with the increase of balances due from/ (to) nonresident banks, net during the two years period from the 

reporting period. From May 2018 this is not applicable.  

The Bank’s policy is to maintain an optimal capital base so as to sustain future development of the business 

and to maintain market confidence. The impact of the level of capital on future shareholders’ return is also 

recognized and the Bank recognizes the need to maintain a balance between the higher returns that might be 

possible with greater gearing within regulatory and prudential limits and the advantages and security afforded 

by a sound capital position. The Bank monitors all externally imposed capital requirements throughout the 

period and anticipates future needs on an ongoing basis. The Bank has complied with the minimum capital 

requirements during 2018 and 2017 and as at the end of respective years these ratio were 14.84% and 14.81%. 
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39. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE  

Based on the Sale and Purchase Agreement signed in 1 November 2018, subsequent to balance sheet date, on 

20 March 2019, the Bank acquired 100% of the shares in Banka Nderkombetare Tregetare sha (“BNT”), and 

is the only shareholder of this bank. BNT is an Albanian bank that was established as a joint stock company 

in 1996 and licensed on 20 February 1997. 

There are no other events after the reporting date that would require either adjustments or additional 

disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. 
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